
Meeting of
West Berkshire
District Council

Tuesday, 31st May, 2016

Summons and Agenda

Public Document Pack



To:  All Members of the Council

You are requested to attend a meeting of
WEST BERKSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL

to be held in the
COUNCIL OFFICES, MARKET STREET, NEWBURY

on
Tuesday, 31st May, 2016

at 7.00 pm

Andy Day
Head of Strategic Support
West Berkshire District Council

Date of despatch of Agenda:  Friday, 20 May 2016

AGENDA
1.   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

To receive apologies for inability to attend the meeting (if any).
  

2.   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
To remind Members of the need to record the existence and nature of any Personal, 
Disclosable Pecuniary or other interests in items on the agenda, in accordance with the 
Members’ Code of Conduct.
  

3.   SHORT BREAKS FOR DISABLED CHILDREN (URGENT ITEM)
Purpose: Due to Judicial Review proceedings brought against the Council by parents 
of users of short breaks services, Members are asked to consider the budgetary 
decision taken 1 March 2016 to reduce short breaks funding and to confirm whether 
that decision should stand.  (Pages 5 - 166)

If you require this information in a different format or translation, please contact 
Moira Fraser on telephone (01635) 519045.

http://info.westberks.gov.uk/CHttpHandler.ashx?id=38477&p=0


West Berkshire Council Council 31 March 2016

Short Breaks for Disabled Children - Summary 
Report

Committee considering 
report: Council

Date of Committee: 31 May 2016
Portfolio Member: Councillor Lynne Doherty
Date Portfolio Member 
agreed report: 24 May 2016

Report Author: Juliet Penley
Forward Plan Ref: Urgent Item

1. Purpose of the Report

1.1 Due to Judicial Review proceedings brought against the Council by parents of users 
of short breaks services, Members are asked to consider the budgetary decision 
taken 1 March 2016 to reduce short breaks funding and to confirm whether that 
decision should stand.

2. Recommendation

2.1 The Council considers the report and its appendices and resolves that the decision 
of the 1st March 2016 be reaffirmed.

3. Implications

3.1 Financial: Should the Council, subsequent to this further Review, 
rescind on its decision, further savings from another area 
would need to be sought.
We have also requested the precise amount of costs being 
sought by the litigants on this matter, but at the time of this 
report, this has not been confirmed.

3.2 Policy: None

3.3 Personnel: None

3.4 Legal: As detailed in the report

3.5 Risk Management: The risks associated with this Review concern  financial 
matters.  Should subsequent to the Council’s Review, the 
Judicial Review proceeds and is successful, the Council is 
likely to be expected to cover costs of the Claimants and 
find additional savings elsewhere.

3.6 Property: None

3.7 Other: None 

Page 3

Agenda Item 3.



Short Breaks for Disabled Children - Summary Report

West Berkshire Council Council 31 May 2016

4. Other options considered

4.1 As detailed in the report

Page 4



Short Breaks for Disabled Children - Summary Report

West Berkshire Council Council 31 May 2016

Executive Summary

5. Introduction

5.1 Due to litigation brought against the Council by parents of users of short breaks 
services, Members are asked to consider the budgetary decision taken on 1 March 
2016 to reduce short breaks funding and to confirm whether that decision should 
stand.

5.2 That decision was to increase short breaks funding at Castle Gate from 
£515,690.00 to £555,690.00 but to reduce short breaks funding provided to local 
voluntary organisations from £415,600.00 to £200,000.00 including transitional 
funding of £130,000.00.

5.3 Members are reminded that protecting and promoting the interests of vulnerable 
children is one of the Council’s key strategic priorities. However, although the 
budgetary reduction will impact on children with special educational needs and/or 
disabilities, and family members and others who care for them, the recommendation 
remains to reaffirm the decision made on the 1 March 2016. This is due to the need 
to make budgetary savings, the need to protect other budgets from even greater 
reductions and the difficulty in raising the Council’s income than it is or using 
reserves.

5.4 Enclosed with this report at Appendix B are documents relating to the decision of 
the 1 March 2016 including (i) the Budget Report; (ii) the Budget Consultation 
Report; (iii) Budget Proposals 2016-17: Short Breaks for Disabled Children 
Overview of Responses and Recommendations; (iv) Summary of Feedback 
Received and Key Findings; (v) Verbatim Responses (vi) Equality Impact 
Assessments at Stage 1 and Stage 2; and (vii) minutes of the budget meeting.

5.5 Also enclosed with this report at Appendix C are witness statements by (i) Alice 
Cullingworth of Irwin Mitchell solicitors including her exhibit AC1 where she sets out 
the likely effect of the budgetary decision on West Berkshire Mencap, Crossroads 
Care, Castle Gate and Guideposts, (ii) parents of children affected (these have 
been anonymised) setting out their concerns, (iii) Leila Ferguson of West Berkshire 
Mencap (iv) Mary Rainford of Crossroads Care and (v) Christine Lenehan of the 
Council for Disabled Children. Members are asked to consider the concerns 
expressed in these statements, in addition to the summary of the original 
consultation responses and the equality impact assessments referred to above. The 
witness statements of Alice Cullingworth, Leila Ferguson and Mary Rainford in 
particular address the likely loss of short breaks provision.

5.6 In addition, at Appendix A is a report by Juliet Penley, the Council’s Children’s 
Services manager. Her report is aimed at presenting Members with an additional 
analysis of the likely consequences of the budgetary decision about short breaks 
than Members had before, which should be read alongside the witness statements 
referred to above. 

5.7 The essential question for Members is whether the budgetary reduction is justifiable 
despite the important need to protect and promote the welfare of children with 
special educational needs/disabled children and notwithstanding the consequences 
for such children and their carers. As Members will appreciate, whilst “statutory 

Page 5



Short Breaks for Disabled Children - Summary Report

West Berkshire Council Council 31 May 2016

needs” will continue to be met, there is likely to be less provision of targeted social 
and leisure activities where children can mix with other children and a variety of 
adult support workers outside of school hours and during holidays. This may have 
implications for the children concerned and their carers.

6. The Children Act 1989 and the Breaks for Carers of Disabled Children 
Regulations 2011

6.1 Paragraph 6 of Schedule 2 to the Children Act 1989 provides as follows:

 (1) Every local authority shall provide services designed—
(a) to minimise the effect on disabled children within their area of their 

disabilities; 
(b) to give such children the opportunity to lead lives which are as normal as 

possible; and
(c) to assist individuals who provide care for such children to continue to do so, 

or to do so more effectively, by giving them breaks from caring.

6.2 From this, Members can see that the Council is required to provide services that are 
designed to minimise the effect on children of their disabilities, that help children 
lead lives that are as normal as possible and that help carers continue to care for 
children and/or to do so more effectively by giving them breaks from caring.

6.3 The Council will continue to provide services designed to have the effects just 
described and the Council will continue to meet the needs of children and carers 
who are in the greatest need and who qualify for statutory services under the 
Children Act 1989 and the Chronically Sick and Disabled Persons Act 1970. The 
effect of the reduction in the short breaks budget will be that the Council will fund 
fewer services of those kinds. This will mean that children and carers with statutory 
needs will have less choice, which may impact on the children’s ability to lead lives 
which are as normal as possible., whilst children and carers who do not have 
statutory needs will have fewer targeted services available to them. This may 
impact on the provisions set out in paragraph 6.1., as set out above and this may 
result in such children or carers developing statutory care needs. However the 
Council remains committed to meeting these needs.

6.4 It is not possible to assess the likely impact precisely in numbers, or otherwise, but 
Juliet Penley’s report together with the witness statements referred to above provide 
the best assessment the Council is able to provide on the likely impact of children 
and their carers. 

6.5 Regulation 3 of the 2011 Regulations provides as follows:

3. Duty to make provision
In performing their duty under paragraph 6(1)(c) of Schedule 2 to the 1989 Act, a 
local authority must—

(a) have regard to the needs of those carers who would be unable to 
continue to provide care unless breaks from caring were given to them; 
and

Page 6

http://login.westlaw.co.uk/maf/wluk/app/document?src=doc&linktype=ref&context=33&crumb-action=replace&docguid=IB922B2B1E44B11DA8D70A0E70A78ED65


Short Breaks for Disabled Children - Summary Report

West Berkshire Council Council 31 May 2016

(b) have regard to the needs of those carers who would be able to provide 
care for their disabled child more effectively if breaks from caring were 
given to them to allow them to—

(i) undertake education, training or any regular leisure activity,
(ii) meet the needs of other children in the family more effectively, or
(iii) carry out day to day tasks which they must perform in order to run 

their household.

6.6 From this, Members can see that in performing their duty to provide services 
designed to help carers continue to care for children and/or to do so more 
effectively by giving them breaks from caring. Members must have regard to (i) the 
needs of carers who would be unable to continue to provide care without breaks 
from caring and (ii) the needs of carers who would be able to care for their children 
more effectively if they had breaks from caring that (a) enabled them to undertake 
education, training or some leisure activity, (b) that enabled them to meet the needs 
of other children in the family more effectively or (c) that enabled them to carry out 
day-to-day household tasks.

6.7 Carers who would be unable to continue to provide care without breaks from caring 
will have a statutory entitlement to respite care but that is not the end of the matter 
because they may prefer and sometimes strongly prefer their children to have a 
wider range of breaks than will be available as a result of the Council’s decision on 
short breaks funding.

6.8 Carers who will be able to provide care more effectively if they had breaks from 
caring, those carers and/or their children may or may not have a statutory 
entitlement to short breaks and respite care. If they have a statutory entitlement, 
then as a result of the Council’s decision there will be a reduced choice of short 
breaks and respite provision and, in particular, there are likely to be  fewer 
opportunities for their children to socialise and engage in activities involving other 
children. If they do not have a statutory entitlement then, there will be less of any 
targeted provision available which may result in those carers providing care less 
effectively. This may impact on the quality of life of cares and children. 

6.9 Regulation 4 of the 2011 Regulations provides as follows:

4.— Types of services which must be provided

(1) In performing their duty under paragraph 6(1)(c) of Schedule 2 to the 1989 
Act, a local authority must provide, so far as is reasonably practicable, a range 
of services which is sufficient to assist carers to continue to provide care or to 
do so more effectively.

(2) In particular, the local authority must provide, as appropriate, a range of—
(a) day-time care in the homes of disabled children or elsewhere,
(b) overnight care in the homes of disabled children or elsewhere,
(c) educational or leisure activities for disabled children outside their homes, 

and
(d) services available to assist carers in the evenings, at weekends and 

during the school holidays.

6.10 As Members will see from Juliet Penley’s report no difficulty arises in relation to the 
provision of day-time care or overnight care which is generally provided where there 

Page 7



Short Breaks for Disabled Children - Summary Report

West Berkshire Council Council 31 May 2016

are statutory needs and which is and will remain sufficient. Where the budgetary 
reduction will have consequences is in relation to the provision by voluntary 
organisations of educational or leisure activities outside their homes and in the 
provision of services to assist carers in the evenings, at weekends and during the 
school holidays. This provision goes beyond basic care and enables disabled 
children/children with SEN to socialise more widely and undertake activities that 
other children may take for granted and that assist carers both to care more 
effectively and also look after other family members, have some relief from the 
pressures of caring and undertake other activities.

6.11 Section 27 of the Children and Families Act 2014 provides as follows:

7 Duty to keep education and care provision under review
(1) A local authority in England must keep under review—

(a) the educational provision, training provision and social care 
provision made in its area for children and young people who have 
special educational needs or a disability, and

(b) the educational provision, training provision and social care 
provision made outside its area for—

(i) children and young people for whom it is responsible who 
have special educational needs, and

(ii) children and young people in its area who have a disability.

2) The authority must consider the extent to which the provision referred to in 
subsection (1)(a) and (b) is sufficient to meet the educational needs, training 
needs and social care needs of the children and young people concerned.

(3) In exercising its functions under this section, the authority must consult—
(a) children and young people in its area with special educational 

needs, and the parents of children in its area with special 
educational needs;

(b) children and young people in its area who have a disability, and 
the parents of children in its area who have a disability;

(c) the governing bodies of maintained schools and maintained 
nursery schools in its area;

(d) the proprietors of Academies in its area;
(e) the governing bodies, proprietors or principals of post-16 

institutions in its area;
(f) the governing bodies of non-maintained special schools in its area;
(g) the advisory boards of children's centres in its area;
(h) the providers of relevant early years education in its area;
(i) the governing bodies, proprietors or principals of other schools and 

post-16 institutions in England and Wales that the authority thinks 
are or are likely to be attended by—

(i) children or young people for whom it is responsible, or
(ii) children or young people in its area who have a disability;

(j) a youth offending team that the authority thinks has functions in 
relation to—

(i) children or young people for whom it is responsible, or
(ii) children or young people in its area who have a disability;

(k) such other persons as the authority thinks appropriate.

Page 8



Short Breaks for Disabled Children - Summary Report

West Berkshire Council Council 31 May 2016

(4) Section 116B of the Local Government and Public Involvement in Health 
Act 2007 (duty to have regard to assessment of relevant needs and joint 
health and wellbeing strategy) applies in relation to functions exercisable 
under this section.

(5) “Children's centre” has the meaning given by section 5A(4) of 
the Childcare Act 2006.

As Members will see, this requires the Council to consult (which it has done) and 
also keep under review whether the educational, training and social care provision 
made in its area for children and young people who have special educational needs 
or a disability is sufficient to meet those children’s educational, training and social 
care needs. Members will be aware, the Council will always be under a duty to meet 
statutory needs for education, training and social care; including where there is an 
assessed statutory need for education, training or social care to be met in a 
particular way, for example, in a social or group setting.

6.12 However, Members should consider broadly whether, as a result of the Council’s 
decision about short breaks funding, there will be sufficient short breaks provision in 
the Council’s area to meet the wider, non-statutory needs of children with special 
educational needs or a disability. This may include the needs of children who (i) do 
not have a statutory need for short breaks provision, or (ii) whose need for short 
breaks provision exceeds their “statutory need” and (iii) children who need short 
breaks provision and who have a non-statutory need to have such provision in 
social or group settings.

6.13 The result of the decision i there will be lesser short breaks provision in the area, in 
particular of a kind that enable children to socialise with other children and a variety 
of adults in the ways that other children may take for granted., Juliet Penley’s report 
sets out provides in what that would involve.

6.14 Section 11 of the Children Act 2004
This provides as follows:

11(2) Each person and body to whom this section applies must make arrangements 
for ensuring that–

(a) their functions are discharged having regard to the need to safeguard and 
promote the welfare of children; and

(b) any services provided by another person pursuant to arrangements made 
by the person or body in the discharge of their functions are provided 
having regard to that need.

6.15 As a result Members need to consider whether the proposed reduction in short 
breaks provision is justifiable because of the need to make budgetary savings 
having regard to the need to safeguard and promote the welfare of children, in 
particular the children who stand to be adversely affected by the proposed decision.

6.16 Members must treat the need to safeguard and promote the welfare of children as a 
very important and powerful consideration, although it is not absolute and can be 
overridden if there are even more powerful considerations, which can include the 
need to make budgetary savings and the need to protect other areas of children’s 
and adult’s social care provision from further savings. In particular, Members need 

Page 9



Short Breaks for Disabled Children - Summary Report

West Berkshire Council Council 31 May 2016

to consider whether it is possible to use the Council’s reserves, increase charges 
elsewhere or make even greater savings elsewhere.

6.17 Section 149 of the Equalities Act 2010
This provides as follows:

149 Public sector equality duty
(1) A public authority must, in the exercise of its functions, have due regard 
to the need to—

(a) eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any other 
conduct that is prohibited by or under this Act;

(b) advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a 
relevant protected characteristic and persons who do not share it;

(c) foster good relations between persons who share a relevant 
protected characteristic and persons who do not share it.

(2) A person who is not a public authority but who exercises public functions 
must, in the exercise of those functions, have due regard to the matters 
mentioned in subsection (1).

(3) Having due regard to the need to advance equality of opportunity 
between persons who share a relevant protected characteristic and persons 
who do not share it involves having due regard, in particular, to the need to—

(a) remove or minimise disadvantages suffered by persons who share 
a relevant protected characteristic that are connected to that 
characteristic;

(b) take steps to meet the needs of persons who share a relevant 
protected characteristic that are different from the needs of 
persons who do not share it;

(c) encourage persons who share a relevant protected characteristic 
to participate in public life or in any other activity in which 
participation by such persons is disproportionately low.

(4) The steps involved in meeting the needs of disabled persons that are 
different from the needs of persons who are not disabled include, in 
particular, steps to take account of disabled persons' disabilities.

(5) Having due regard to the need to foster good relations between persons 
who share a relevant protected characteristic and persons who do not share 
it involves having due regard, in particular, to the need to—

(a) tackle prejudice, and
(b) promote understanding.

(6) Compliance with the duties in this section may involve treating some 
persons more favourably than others; but that is not to be taken as permitting 
conduct that would otherwise be prohibited by or under this Act.

(7) The relevant protected characteristics are—
 age;
 disability;
 gender reassignment;
 pregnancy and maternity;
 race;

Page 10



Short Breaks for Disabled Children - Summary Report

West Berkshire Council Council 31 May 2016

 religion or belief;
 sex;
 sexual orientation.

(8) A reference to conduct that is prohibited by or under this Act includes a 
reference to—

(a) a breach of an equality clause or rule;
(b) a breach of a non-discrimination rule………..

6.18 Members are reminded of the consultation responses, Juliet Penley’s report and in 
particular the witness statements and the equality impact assessments referred to 
above.

6.19 The essential point is that Members are required carefully to consider the important 
needs of children with special educational needs and/or disabilities and whether the 
short breaks funding decision is justifiable given theimportance of (i) advancing 
equality between such children and others, (ii) reducing the disadvantages that such 
children suffer from, (iii) meeting the needs that they have that are different from the 
needs of other children and (iv) encouraging them to take part in public life, 
including in particular social, recreational and leisure activities in social and group 
settings.

6.20 As Members will appreciate, children with special educational needs and/or a 
disability will  find it much harder than other children to engage in social, 
recreational and leisure activities and so enjoy a childhood of equal quality to other 
children. This problem will not be overcome simply by meeting statutory needs 
and/or by meeting statutory needs by providing one-to-one respite care by a carer in 
that it is obviously important for children with special educational needs and/or 
disabilities to engage in activities with other children and groups of adults as far as 
possible, as other children are able to do, irrespective of whether they are assessed 
as having a formal statutory need to do so.

6.21 Members will also appreciate that many children with special educational needs 
and/or a disability will struggle to cope with the loss of particular kinds of service, 
even if their needs continue to be met in different ways.

6.22 In addition, the provision of short breaks enables carers to provide care more 
effectively, allows greater time to be afforded to other children of the family and 
allows carers – who will often be women – to engage in education, work, leisure, 
household chores to a greater extent than would otherwise be the case.

6.23 These are all very important and powerful considerations but they are not absolute. 
Whilst these considerations must be treated as being very important and powerful it 
is still appropriate to try to weigh up exactly how important in these particular 
circumstances. It is legitimate to conclude that it is necessary for the Council to do 
less to promote the welfare of children and their carers than it would wish to do for 
budgetary reasons, including to protect the budgetary allocation for other vulnerable 
children and adults. It is however necessary for Members to feel confident that the 
short breaks budget reduction is proportionate and justified and that there are no 
other measures that reasonably could be taken, for example using reserves or 
increasing fees or reducing other budgets.

Page 11



Short Breaks for Disabled Children - Summary Report

West Berkshire Council Council 31 May 2016

6.24 Members will also need to be satisfied that officers will properly monitor the impact 
of the reduction in short breaks funding and report back, in particular if any 
unforeseen risks materialise.

7. Best Value

7.1 The Council’s decision reduces funding for voluntary providers but slightly increases 
funding for Castle Gate. As Members will be aware, the Council should not pass on 
disproportionate reductions to the voluntary and community sector.

7.2 The reason why funding for Castle Gate has been slightly increased is that Castle 
Gate is the only short breaks provider that provides residential care, which is an 
essential part of the Council’s ability to discharge its statutory duties. It provides 
very high quality care and runs efficiently and if its funding was reduced the Council 
might be unlikely to be able to discharge its statutory duties. Castle Gate can also 
be used as a hub for providing a wide range of services and that is an aspect that 
Council officers are looking to develop.

7.3 By contrast, whilst the voluntary organisations concerned provide services or very 
great social value, to a high standard, their funding can be reduced without 
endangering the Council’s ability to meet its statutory duties. 

7.4 On 25th May a letter at Appendix D was received from Irwin Mitchell Solicitors 
representing the two claimants in court proceedings. The letter asks that the Council 
confirms that it will rescind its decision of the 1st March 2016 (in relation to short 
breaks), and meet again before the 30th June to take a new decision or reinstate the 
previous level of funding immediately and meet their reasonable costs. Members 
are asked to consider this in light of the Officer Recommendation. 

8. Conclusion

8.1 It is recommended the Council approves the Officer’s Recommendation that the 
decision of the 1st March 2016 should be reaffirmed.

9. Appendices

9.1 Appendix A –Report of Juliet Penley

9.2 Appendix B – Documents referred to in Paragraph 5.4 of this Report 

9.3 Appendix C – Statements referred to in paragraph 5.5

9.4 Appendix D – Letter from Irwin Mitchell dated 25th May 2016

Page 12



West Berkshire Council Council 31 May 2016

Appendix A

Short Breaks for Disabled Children – Supporting Information

1. Introduction/Background

1.1 The council made the decision in March 16 to accept the recommendations in 
respect of the budget proposals to reduce the funding for Short Breaks for Disabled 
Children. This Council decision is now subject to a Judicial Review hearing in the 
High Court. The basis of this challenge is that the council only had general 
information about the impact of this decision and this report seeks to give more 
concrete and specific information to Council Members so that they can review the 
decision. The challenges by the claimants in the Judicial Review are in relation to 
specific legislation and statutory requirements that the council must have regard to 
when making these decision.  

2. Supporting Information

2.1 There are currently 170 families in receipt of statutory services from children’s social 
care, all of whom receive short breaks provision. The budget for these children is 
not affected and no packages of care are being re-assessed or reduced.

2.2 The total number of disabled children receiving short breaks in 2014/15 and 
2015/16 was 350 – 400.  For the reasons given below it is not possible to be 
precise. 

2.3 In 2014/15 different providers provided short breaks to 560 children and in 2015/16 
the figure was about 526. These figures are compiled by short breaks providers, on 
the basis that each child who receives a particular service from a provider counts as 
one child. This has the consequence that a child who receives a service from 
Mencap and also Crossroads will appear twice in these numbers; and a child who 
receives 2 different services from Mencap and one service from Crossroads will 
appear 3 three times (see the attached data sheets). 

2.4 The data provided to the Council by different providers is anonymised so while it is 
possible to see how many different services are provided to how many numbers of 
children, it is not possible to work out exactly how many different children are in 
receipt of services. It is estimated  that 350 – 400 children receive one or more short 
breaks services each year. 

2.5 The figures referred to above in paragraph 2.4 also include children who are entitled 
to statutory care services. There are currently 170 children in receipt of statutory 
care services. There is no double counting involved in those figures because they 
are from the Council’s own records. These children may also be subjected to the 
double counting described in paragraph 2.3. We estimate of the 350 – 400 children 
in receipt of short breaks services each year, 200-300 are entitled to statutory 
services. Approximately 200 children who receive short breaks services do not have 
a statutory entitlement to them.

2.6 The short breaks service providers and the numbers of children they provide 
services for are as follows, as set out in the attached data sheets for 2015/16.

Page 13



Short Breaks for Disabled Children – Supporting Information

West Berkshire Council Council 31 May 2016

 2015/16

 
Number of young people receiving a 

service

Organisation Total (Q1)
Total 
(Q2)

Total 
(Q3)

Total 
(Q4)

Mencap     
Sleepovers   5  
Home Sitting Service     
Holiday Playschemes 50 75 42  
Saturday Club 36 36 42  
Youth Club 28 27 26  
Greenfields 10 10   
Residential     
After school club 73 73 74  
Crossroads     
Sitting service     
Oxfordshire Overnight 5 31   
Youth Provision 6 7 8  
Playschemes 26 32 27  
Befriending 7 10 8  
Home-StartWB     
Care/Sitting service 22 20 10  
GUIDEPOSTS TRUST     
Guideposts Trust 13 13 8  
National Autistic Society     
National Autistic Society 14 10 18  
Oasis club 21 20 18  
Oasis Transition Group 5 4 5  
Dingley     
Summer playscheme 28 29 25  
The Castle School     
Summer playscheme/Easter Holiday 
Club 16 12 15  
Brookfields School     
Youth Club 27 27 25  
After School Club 38 39 46  
Holiday Club 73 71   
KIDS     
KIDS 0 8 32  
PALS     
PALS 24 17 16  
TOTALS 522 571 450 0

2.7 As can be seen from Alice Cullingworth’s statement:

 Mencap West Berkshire, which is by far the largest short breaks provider will 
continue to provide its after school club on Mondays, Tuesdays, Wednesdays 
and Fridays and its youth club on Thursdays. This will benefit approximately 15 
children per day, about 60 per week for 38 weeks of the year. It will, however, 
cease to provide its Saturday club (except in the case of 6 children), its 
Greenfields play schemes in the summer and Easter holidays, its residential 

Page 14



Short Breaks for Disabled Children – Supporting Information

West Berkshire Council Council 31 May 2016

holiday during February half term and its sleepovers (4 nights a year), whilst it 
will have to significantly reduce its holiday play schemes in the summer and 
Easter holidays (from 22 days per year to 12 days). Mencap will continue to 
provide 20 children’s places a day for playschemes which is 240 sessions per 
year in total. It may increase its charges for its home sitting carers service;

 Crossroads Care Oxfordshire provides activity days during weekends and 
holidays and trips away during school holiday, as follows: 

Crossroads 15/16 Q1 Q2 Q3  
Sitting service     
Oxfordshire Overnight 5 31   
Youth Provision 6 7 8  
Playschemes 26 32 27  
Befriending 7 10 8  

2.8 This provision will be reduced by about 40%;

 As can be seen, Guideposts planned to cease provision in any event. It used to 
provide holiday playschemes:

GUIDEPOSTS TRUST 15/16 Q1 Q2 Q3  
Guideposts Trust 13 13 8  

2.9 As far as other providers are concerned the position is as follows:

 My information is that Home-start, National Autistic Society, Brookfields School, 
Castle School, PALS, and Dingley will continue to provide services to similar 
numbers as previously. 

 Swings and Smiles is a new provider in 16/17 and will provide Holiday play 
schemes for 8 children for 20 sessions a year and 8 children at a Saturday Club 
over 10 sessions throughout the year;

 In addition to these short breaks providers, there are 2 schools in West 
Berkshire, Brookfields and Castle School, that provide short breaks. Brookfields 
provides holiday, after school and youth club services and Castle School 
provides after school activities such as a film club to children with special 
educational needs and/or a disability. These services have been partly funded 
by short breaks funding and this will continue in 16/17.

2.10 Officers are working with voluntary organisations to develop their use of transitional 
funding, so as to become more sustainable without Council financial assistance 
and, as can be seen, Mencap has already had some limited success in that it has 
secured alternative funding for its Thursday night youth club. In addition, officers will 
develop Castle Gate to provide a hub which will allow families with statutory needs 
to use their budgets to purchase services that involve social and group activities.

2.11 There will be a  reduction in the level of social and group activities; in particular 
during the weekends and school holidays. As a result of that:

Page 15



Short Breaks for Disabled Children – Supporting Information

West Berkshire Council Council 31 May 2016

 The 170 families with statutory needs may find it harder to secure group 
activities for their children, where their children can socialise with other children 
and a variety of adults even though their statutory needs will still be met through 
funding that enables alternative activities and respite breaks to be purchased. 
There may be the upset of having to change a service, which some disabled 
children can find particularly distressing;

 The remaining families without statutory needs (around 200) and, of course, 
families with statutory needs who desire more services than their statutory 
entitlement, may find it difficult to secure activities that both allow their carers 
some respite from caring and that allow the children to engage in sociable 
activities.

2.12 It is not possible to provide accurate figures and the picture is a shifting one, in that 
local voluntary groups have some scope for obtaining alternative funding, the 
Council’s transitional funding is designed to help voluntary groups develop 
sustainable alternative forms of provision and families with statutory needs have 
budgets that they are entitled to use to meet those needs how they wish so that 
there is scope for the market to respond to how those families wish to use their 
budgets.

2.13 It may be harder for carers of disabled children who do not have statutory needs 
(approximately 200) to pursue education, training, any regular leisure activity or 
employment, meet the needs of other children of the family more effectively or carry 
out household tasks. 

2.14 The funding decision may impact on the ability of children without statutory needs to 
secure educational or leisure activities outside their homes and during evenings, 
weekends and school holidays. Children with statutory needs may find it harder and 
may have less choice, in terms of finding services to pay for that involve group 
activities where the children can socialise with other children and a range of adults.

2.15 Of course, socialising activities will still occur during school (there are, for example, 
910 children in West Berkshire with a SSEN), and may also occur by obtaining 
services from remaining providers and by way of purchasing decisions from the 
budgets available to those who have statutory care needs.

2.16 Day-time care and home sitting has reduced in demand – in 2014/15 about 8,000 
hours were provided but in 2015/16 about 2500 hours were provided. 2 providers 
have ceased provision due to lack of demand. Those with statutory needs can 
readily purchase services of this kind from agencies, or pay their own support 
worker. Other families will have to rely on services provided by voluntary 
organisations supported by transitional funding but there  may be less available.

2.17 In 2014/15 the Council provided short breaks funding to providers who delivered 
280 nights of overnight care and in 2015/16 that figure was 165. Families with 
statutory needs will continue to have their statutory needs met in full at Castle Gate 
or with short break foster families. Families without statutory needs will experience 
less provision in that 2 providers out of 4 will continue to provide this kind of service.

Page 16



Short Breaks for Disabled Children – Supporting Information

West Berkshire Council Council 31 May 2016

3. Proposals

3.1 The Council to take into account the information provided in this report in reviewing 
their decision as to whether to proceed with the budget proposals in relation to the 
Short Breaks Budget.

4. Conclusion

4.1 It is acknowledged that a reduction in funding will reduce the range of Short Breaks 
provision for children with disabilities and their carers but West Berkshire are still 
committed to working with providers, parents and carers to ensure the provision 
available continues to exceed the statutory minimum expected and will continue to 
monitor this provision and ensure children’s needs are prioritised. 

5. Consultation and Engagement

5.1 It is considered that the consultation process undertaken for the proposal to reduce 
the budget for short breaks for children with disabilities was progressed in an 
informed and appropriate way. This included the council engaging Parent Voice, a 
parent participation group, to ensure parents views were heard, as well as meetings 
being undertaken with local providers of Short Breaks provision across West 
Berkshire to ensure the impact of any reduction in services were fully understood. 
These meetings are ongoing with the awarding of the Transition funding to further 
ensure maximum benefits are derived from the services delivered.

5.2 Officers consulted: Mac Heath, Shiraz Sheikh and David Holling as Monitoring 
Officer.

Background Papers:
None

Subject to Call-In:
Yes:  No:  

The item is due to be referred to Council for final approval
Delays in implementation could have serious financial implications for the Council
Delays in implementation could compromise the Council’s position
Considered or reviewed by Overview and Scrutiny Management Commission or 
associated Task Groups within preceding six months
Item is Urgent Key Decision
Report is to note only

Wards affected:
All

Officer details:
Name: Juliet Penley
Job Title: Service Manager
Tel No: 01635 510903
E-mail Address: Juliet.penley@westberks.gov.uk

Page 17



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 18



West Berkshire Council Council 1 March 2016

Revenue Budget 2016/17
Committee considering 
report: Council

Date of Committee: 1 March 2016
Portfolio Member: Councillor Roger Croft
Date Portfolio Member 
agreed report: 18 February 2016

Report Author: Andy Walker
Forward Plan Ref: C2979

1. Purpose of the Report

1.1 To consider and agree the 2016/17 Revenue Budget. This report highlights that for 
West Berkshire residents there will be a Council Tax requirement of £82.28m 
requiring a Council Tax increase of 1.99% in 2016/17 and a 2% ring-fenced precept 
for adult social care. The Council has had to find savings of £14m in 2016/17, the 
highest in the Council’s history. 

1.2 Given the scale of task to arrive at a balanced budget for next year a number of 
significant saving proposals have been made including reductions to libraries, 
children centres, home to school transport, public transport subsidy, highway 
maintenance, provision of care services and many others.

1.3 The proposed savings will have significant implications for staff. Subject to the 
outcome of public consultations, 127 employees will be at risk of redundancy and 
associated exit costs are estimated to be in the region of £2m. 

1.4 The report also proposes the Fees and Charges for 2016/17 as set out in Appendix 
H and the Special Expenses as set out in Appendix I.

2. Recommendations

The Council is recommended to resolve as follows:

(1) That the responses received to each of the 47 public facing savings 
proposals in relation to Phase 1 of the public consultation exercise 
undertaken on the 2016/17 budget be noted. 

(2) That Council consider the use of the 2016/17 transitional grant as a 
means of mitigating the impact of some of the Phase 1 proposals and 
where this is not used, the recommendations set out in the Overview 
and Recommendations template be approved.

(3) That Council recommend that those public health grant funded services 
(marked as “to be progressed”) in the Overview and Recommendations 
template totalling £114,000 be progressed.

Page 19



Revenue Budget 2016/17

West Berkshire Council Council 1 March 2016

(4) That the 2016/17 revenue budget requirement for Council Tax setting 
purposes of £82.28 million requiring a Council Tax increase of 1.99% 
be approved

(5) That the 2% ring-fenced adult social care precept be applied.

(6) That the Fees and Charges be approved as set out in Appendix H and 
the appropriate statutory notices be placed where required.

(7) That the Special Expenses be approved as set out in Appendix I.

(8) That the Efficiency Strategy for Use of Capital Receipts be approved as 
set out in Appendix O.

(9) That the Executive, on 24 March 2016, be given delegated authority to 
adjust the Council’s budget plans, should the responses to Phase 2 of 
the public consultation require it to do so.

(10) That the Executive, on 24 March 2016, propose where the transitional 
grant funding of £1.39m will be used. 

(11) That it be noted that the following amounts for the year 2016/2017 in 
accordance with regulations made under Section 31B of the Local 
Government Finance Act 1992, as amended (by the Localism Act 
2011):-

(a) 62,626.13 being the amount calculated by the Council, (Item T) in 
accordance with regulation 31B of the Local Authorities (Calculation of 
Council Tax Base) Regulations 1992 (as amended by the Localism Act 
2011), as its council tax base for the year. 

(b) Part of the Council’s area as per Appendix M being the amounts 
calculated by the Council, in accordance with regulation 6 of the 
Regulations, as the amounts of its council tax base for the year for 
dwellings in those parts of its area to which a Parish precept relates. 

(12) Calculate that the Council Tax requirement for the Council’s own 
purposes for 2016/2017 (excluding Parish precepts) is £82,281,340.

(13) That the following amounts be now calculated by the Council for the 
year 2016/2017 in accordance with Sections 32 to 36 of the Local 
Government Finance Act 1992, amended by the Localism Act 2011:-

(a) £292,700,038 being the aggregate of the amounts which the Council 
estimates for the items set out in Section 31A (2)(a) to (f) of the Act 
taking into account all precepts issued to it by Parish councils. 

(b) £206,549,768 being the aggregate of the amounts which the Council 
estimates for the items set out in Section 31A(3)(a) to (d) of the Act. 

(c) £86,150,270 being the amount by which the aggregate at 13(a) above, 
exceeds the aggregate at 13(b) above, calculated by the Council, in 
accordance with Section 31A(4) of the Act, as its Council Tax 
requirement for the year (Item R).

Page 20



Revenue Budget 2016/17

West Berkshire Council Council 1 March 2016

(d) £1375.63 being the amount at 13(c) above (Item R), all divided by 11 
(a) above (Item T), calculated by the Council, in accordance with 
Section 31B of the Act, as the ‘basic amount of its Council Tax for the 
year (including Parish precepts).

(e) £3,868,930 being the aggregate amount of all special items (parish 
precepts) referred to in Section 34(1) of the Act (as per Appendix M).

(f) £1313.85 being the amount at 13(d) above less the result given by 
dividing the amount at 13(e) above by the amount at 11(a) above, 
calculated by the Council, in accordance with Section 34(2) of the Act, 
as the basic amount of its council tax for the year for dwellings in those 
parts of its area to which no special items relates. 

(14) That it be noted that for the year 2016/2017 Police and Crime 
Commissioner for Thames Valley & The Royal Berkshire Fire and 
Rescue Service have issued precepts to the Council in accordance 
with Section 40 of the Local Government Finance Act 1992 for each 
category of dwellings in the Councils area as indicated in Appendix M.

(15) That the Council in accordance with Sections 30 and 36 of the Local 
Government Finance Act 1992, hereby sets the aggregate amounts 
shown in the tables in Appendix M as the amounts of Council Tax for 
2016/2017 for each part of its area and for each of the categories of 
dwellings.

3. Implications

3.1 Financial: These are contained in further detail within the report. The 
key implication is the proposed 1.99% Council Tax increase 
and a ring-fenced 2% adult social care precept, which leads 
to a significant savings programme of £14m in 2016/17, the 
highest level of savings required in any one year in the 
Council’s history, which in turn will present some additional 
risks surrounding their implementation and which will be 
closely monitored during the year.
The proposed savings will have significant implications for 
staff. Subject to the outcome of the Phase 2 public 
consultations, 127 employees will be at risk of redundancy 
(96 FTE) and associated exit costs are estimated to be in 
the region of £2m.  The Government has recognised that 
councils will be challenged to fund these costs given the 
level of organisational change being proposed and is now 
allowing the Council to use capital receipts expected during 
next year to fund these costs provided that the conditions 
covering their use in this way are met.  This will help the 
Council protect its level of General Fund reserves at what is 
considered to be a minimum prudent level of £6m.

3.2 Policy: Because of the scale of the funding reductions required for 
2016/17 it will be necessary to undertake a review of the 
Council Strategy to ensure that the priorities and projects 

Page 21



Revenue Budget 2016/17

West Berkshire Council Council 1 March 2016

are still appropriate, affordable and achievable.
3.3 Personnel: There will be significant implications for staff. Subject to the 

outcome of the Phase 2 public consultations, 127 
employees will be at risk of redundancy (96 FTE); and in 
addition 27 FTE vacant posts will be deleted.  The trade 
unions have been consulted and the reductions in staffing 
will be handled in accordance with the Organisational 
Change Procedure.

3.4 Legal: Requirement to produce a Revenue Budget under the 
various Local Government Finance Acts. The savings 
proposals have been out to public consultation in order to 
meet the Council’s Public Sector Equality Duty and 
responses considered in setting the budget. Challenges 
may be made to certain proposals by means of judicial 
review as well as under employment legislation in respect of 
staffing reductions. All cases have been assessed in order 
to reduce risk of challenge regarding the lawfulness of 
proposals.

3.5 Risk Management: There is a real inherent risk in achieving the scale of savings 
required in 2016/17. As part of the 2016/17 financial 
monitoring, savings proposals will be kept under monthly 
review to ensure they are deliverable. Appendices F and G 
set out how the impact of increased volatility in Local 
Government finance will be managed and consider the 
impact on levels of reserves.
 

3.6 Property: The full property implications will need to be determined and 
a strategy developed for dealing with the impact where the 
Council retracts from the whole or part of a property, for 
example, a library or children’s centre. There could be a 
number of options to be investigated when the decision on 
the revenue budget have been agreed from; sale of the site, 
re-development, shared use, mothballing and/or change of 
use or re-letting for another purpose.

3.7 Other: In the light of the scale of the funding reductions required for 
2016/17 the options available to the Council for making 
savings were very limited and it is acknowledged that in 
some cases the Council will be providing the minimum level 
of service for some of its Statutory Services.

4. Other options considered

4.1 The scale of the Local Government Settlement has left West Berkshire Council with 
limited options. We are proposing to increase Council Tax by 1.99% and apply the 
adult social care ring-fenced precept of a 2% increase to Council Tax. If these 
options were not taken, the savings requirement would be £3.2m higher. We have 
considered all options available to us in order to keep the savings requirement to 
the level it is. These options include use of capital receipts and transitional grant 
funding. 

Page 22



Revenue Budget 2016/17

West Berkshire Council Council 1 March 2016

5. Executive Summary

5.1 Over the last six years, West Berkshire Council has had to find over £36m of 
revenue savings, which has been achieved through finding efficiencies, staff 
reductions and transforming services. Over two thirds of the Council’s income 
comes from Council Tax, which has seen no increases in four out of the last six 
years, with the last increase being in 2013/14. Where there have been increases, 
these have been kept below 2%. 

5.2 The provisional settlement figures for the next four years were issued on 17 
December 2015 and the settlement for West Berkshire was much worse than 
expected. In 2016/17 we will receive 44% less in Revenue Support Grant (RSG) 
than in 2015/16, equating to a loss of £7.6m. This is the third largest cut to RSG of 
all Unitary Authorities in England. Although we had planned for RSG to be cut by 
25% year on year, the cuts to RSG are being applied much faster than expected. A 
number of grants have been rolled into the RSG and have then been cut. The most 
significant of these is the freeze grant funding that we received for freezing Council 
Tax in prior years. For West Berkshire this amounted to £2.8m. This grant has now 
been rolled into the RSG and will be cut as part of the RSG cuts so that by 2019/20 
none of our freeze grant will remain. 

5.3 Central Government has introduced without warning, a new formula for distribution 
of council funding. West Berkshire loses from this formula because it is based on 
assumptions about our ability to raise Council Tax income. Central Government has 
assumed that local authorities will increase their Band D Council Tax by 1.75% (CPI 
forecast) and take up the ring-fenced 2% adult social care precept. Based on these 
assumptions, our grant funding has been reduced accordingly. 

5.4 From 2013/14, the Council has been exposed to the volatility of our local business 
rate generation. Of the £89m collected locally the vast majority is paid over to 
central government leaving the Council with £17m. Whilst councils did not 
previously bear any risk from successful appeals by businesses to the Valuation 
Office, they are now liable for half of the cost, including any backdating liability, 
which in some cases may go back to 2005 or earlier. Appeals have had a significant 
impact on West Berkshire which has resulted in  a loss of nearly £3m from back 
dated appeals and an ongoing loss of circa £850k per year. The Spending Review 
included proposals for further major transformation of local government funding, 
confirming that the Government will move to the retention of 100% of business rates 
by 2020, but no details have yet been issued on whether this will benefit local 
authorities.

5.5 The Care Act 2014 came into force in April 2015, introducing the most significant 
changes to social care legislation for 60 years. The most significant financial impact 
for the Council was the implementation of the new national eligibility criteria. This 
required the Council, which had previously met service users’ “critical” needs only, 
to expand the number of clients supported, and the scope of packages of care, to 
meet this new definition of eligibility which is closer to that previously defined as 
“substantial”. Despite the Government stating they would meet the costs of the Care 
Act in full, the total additional funding received (which has covered other elements 
of the Care Act, such as services to carers) has left the Council to cover a funding 
gap of £3m caused by this particular change. The Council (with another LA) 
judicially reviewed the Department of Health’s assessment and decision making 
process and it agreed a further review of the eligibility criteria based on that 

Page 23



Revenue Budget 2016/17

West Berkshire Council Council 1 March 2016

challenge. The local MP also made representation to the Secretary of State and 
additional funding may become available following the final outcome of all the 
review processes.

5.6 The Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG) does not form part of the Revenue budget as it 
is received by government and then passed straight out to schools. The funding is 
split into three blocks – schools, early years and high needs. The DSG settlement 
for 2016/17 was announced on 17 December 2015 and there will be a shortfall of 
£1.4m. The shortfall in funding will have a significant impact on all schools, making 
it harder for schools to balance their own individual budgets.

5.7 West Berkshire Council receives a ring-fenced grant to fund Public Health. The 
Government has announced savings in public health spending averaging annual 
real terms savings of 3.9% over the next five years and that the grant is to remain 
ring-fenced for a further two years in 2016/17 and 2017/18. In 2016/17 we will 
receive £6.2m.

5.8 A collection fund deficit of £1.01m has arisen because council tax debits raised 
have not matched expectations when the taxbase was set in December of the 
previous year. The taxbase reflects the actual number of properties liable to council 
tax adjusted for any relevant discounts and exemptions and with a further 
adjustment for the effect of new build property. In 2015/16 the physical number of 
new builds has met expectations but the rate of build has been slower, resulting in a 
lower value of debit. The deficit reduces our funding available by £1.01m.

5.9 Each year an increase in budget is required for the Council to perform exactly the 
same functions. As part of the budget setting process, the Council provides for 
general inflationary pressures such as salary increases, contractual inflation and 
increases to National Insurance and pension contributions. 

5.10 Each year new unavoidable service pressures arise and need to be built into the 
revenue budget. The unavoidable pressures for 2016/17 amount to £3.89m and 
include £908k for children’s placements, £551k for Ofsted Improvement plans for 
Children’s Services, £600k for the transition of learning disability clients from 
children to adult placements and £179k for costs associated with Deprivation of 
Liberty Safeguarding. Full details are given in Appendix D. 

5.11 Prior to the provisional settlement we had identified a need to find £10.8m savings 
in 2016/17, but in the light of these grant figures, this increased to £19m. By 
increasing Council Tax by 1.99% and applying the ring-fenced Adult Social Care 
precept of 2%, and making some changes to our assumptions around cost 
pressures and inflation, we have reduced this savings requirement to £14m. 
However, by choosing not to fund some cost pressures we are exposed to greater 
risk.

5.12 Given the scale of the task to arrive at a balanced budget for next year a number of 
significant saving proposals have been made including reductions to libraries, 
children centres, home to school transport, public transport subsidy, highway 
maintenance, provision of care services and many others.

5.13 As a result of these savings plans, 127 employees are at risk of redundancy (96 
FTE) and in addition 27 vacant posts will be deleted. The associated exit costs are 
estimated to be in the region of £2m. 

Page 24



Revenue Budget 2016/17

West Berkshire Council Council 1 March 2016

5.14 Given the scale of the savings requirement for 2016/17, some tough decisions have 
had to be made. We recognised that a number of the proposals being put forward 
within the revenue budget would be considered ‘front line’ services that people use 
and will miss.  As a result, from 3 November to 14 December 2015, a public 
consultation exercise (Phase 1) was undertaken on the need to make £10.8m of 
savings in 2016/17. £4.6m of these savings affected frontline services. The 
consultation generated over 2,500 responses and covered 47 individual budget 
proposals. 

5.15 Since the consultation closed on 14 December 2015 Members and officers have 
had the task of reading and assessing all of the comments received.  The Revenue 
Budget papers has included, as Appendix N, the report which went to the Executive 
on 11 February 2016 which has been amended to reflect the comments made at 
that meeting including referencing the three petitions and a letter objecting to the 
proposed funding reductions for short breaks for children and bus route 143.  This 
report also contains links to the verbatim comments, a summary of comments 
template, an overview and recommendations template and the Equality Impact 
Assessments templates for each of the 47 savings proposal.

5.16 Members are fully aware of the Public Sector Equality Duty which requires “decision 
makers” to keep the welfare of service users and their families at the forefront of 
their mind particularly those that are most disadvantaged.  This is an important 
consideration when setting the 2016/17 budget.

5.17 In view of the unexpectedly poor Government RSG settlement it has been 
necessary to undertake a Phase 2 public consultation exercise.  This commenced 
on 15 February 2016 and will conclude on 7 March 2016.  There are 16 public 
facing savings proposals representing £2.1m.  

5.18 It is proposed that the Council will set its budget on 1 March 2016.  However, it is 
also proposed that the Executive, at its meeting on 24 March 2016, be given 
delegated authority to adjust these plans afterwards, should it need to.  Once the 
consultation closes on 7 March 2016, the responses to our proposals will be fully 
considered. The Executive will be able to respond accordingly to any issues raised 
and will be proposing where the transitional grant funding of £1.39m will be used.

5.19 On 8 February 2016, Government announced their response to the consultation of 
the provisional Local Government Settlement. A transitional grant has been made 
available to be paid in each of the first two years of the settlement. West Berkshire 
will receive additional transitional grant funding from central government of £1.39m 
in 2016/17 and £1.37m in 2017/18. After the Phase 2 consultation on savings is 
closed, the Executive on 24 March 2016 will be proposing where the transitional 
grant funding will be used. The full list of savings proposals for 2016/17 are detailed 
in Appendix E, amounting to £14m.

6. Conclusion

6.1 The Council has been left with little room for manoeuvre to deliver a balanced 
budget for next year and has to propose significant savings to many valued services 
as detailed in the report.  

Page 25



Revenue Budget 2016/17

West Berkshire Council Council 1 March 2016

6.2 As a result of these savings plans, 127 employees are at risk of redundancy (96 
FTE) and in addition 27 vacant posts will be deleted. The associated exit costs are 
estimated to be in the region of £2m. 

6.3 A public consultation exercise (Phase 1) was undertaken on the need to make 
£10.8m of savings in 2016/17. £4.6m of these savings affected frontline services. In 
view of the unexpectedly poor Government RSG settlement it has been necessary 
to undertake a Phase 2 public consultation exercise.  This commenced on 15 
February 2016 and will conclude on 7 March 2016.  There are 16 public facing 
savings proposals representing £2.1m.  

6.4 It is proposed that the Council will set its budget on 1 March 2016.  However, it is 
also proposed that the Executive, at its meeting on 24 March 2016, be given 
delegated authority to adjust these plans afterwards, should it need to.  Once the 
Phase 2 consultation closes on 7 March 2016, the responses to our proposals will 
be fully considered.  The Executive will be able to respond accordingly to any issues 
raised, and will be proposing where the transitional grant funding of £1.39m will be 
used.

6.5 The Council s151 officer (the Head of Finance) recommends that General Reserves 
are a minimum of 5% of the Council’s net budget, which in 2016/17 should be £6m. 

7. Appendices

7.1 Appendix A - Supporting Information

7.2 Appendix B – Equalities Impact Assessment

7.3 Appendix C – Contract Inflation

7.4 Appendix D – Unavoidable Service Pressures

7.5 Appendix E – Savings Proposals 2016/17

7.6 Appendix F - Reserves statements 

7.7 Appendix G - Adequacy of reserves and robustness of budget estimates 

7.8 Appendix H - Fees and charges

7.9 Appendix I - Special Expenses 

7.10 Appendix J - Council Tax Collection Fund 

7.11 Appendix K - Unison comments – to be tabled

7.12 Appendix L – Minutes of the Business Panel information meeting held on 22nd 
February 2016 - to be tabled

7.13 Appendix M – Council Tax Resolution 

7.14 Appendix N – Budget Consultation

7.15 Appendix O – Efficiency Strategy for use of Capital Receipts 2016/17

Page 26



West Berkshire Council Council 1 March 2016

Appendix A

Revenue Budget 2016/17 – Supporting Information

1. Introduction 

1.1 The purpose of this paper is to propose the Council’s revenue budget for 2016/17, 
to outline the context within which it is set, and to set a Council Tax requirement for 
2016/17. 

1.2 This report highlights that for West Berkshire residents there will be a Council Tax 
requirement of £82.28m requiring a Council Tax increase of 1.99% in 2016/17 and a 
ring-fenced 2% precept for adult social care. The Council has had to find savings of 
£14m in 2016/17, the highest in the Council’s history. 

1.3 Given the scale of task to arrive at a balanced budget for next year a number of 
significant saving proposals have been made including reductions to libraries, 
children centres, home to school transport, public transport subsidy, highway 
maintenance, provision of care services and many others.

1.4 The proposed savings will have significant implications for staff. Subject to the 
outcome of public consultations, 127 employees will be at risk of redundancy and 
associated exit costs are estimated to be in the region of £2m. 

1.5 The report also proposes the Fees and Charges for 2016/17 as set out in Appendix 
H and the Special Expenses as set out in Appendix I.

2. Background

2.1 Over the last six years, West Berkshire Council has had to find over £36m of 
revenue savings, which has been achieved through finding efficiencies, staff 
reductions and transforming services. This level of savings was required as a result 
of a number of factors: 

(1) Since 2010, Council funding from Central Government has significantly 
reduced as part of the deficit reduction programme. 

(2) Since 2013/14, the Council has been exposed to the volatility of our 
local business rate generation. This represents both an opportunity to 
benefit from growth, but also a risk. Since the introduction of local 
business rate retention, growth has stagnated and a number of large 
appeals from business to the Valuation Office have reduced the 
Council’s income. We have faced a loss of nearly £3m from backdated 
appeals and an ongoing loss of circa £850k per year. 

(3) The Care Act 2014 came into force in April 2015, introducing the most 
significant changes to social care legislation for 60 years. Despite the 
Government stating they would meet the costs of the Care Act in full, 
the Council has been left to cover an annual funding gap of £3m.

(4) The Council’s costs rise by about 2% each year to perform exactly the 
same functions with no new demands. There have also been new cost 

Page 27



Revenue Budget 2016/17 – Supporting Information

West Berkshire Council Council 1 March 2016

pressures such as increased demands on children’s placements, social 
worker recruitment, demand for social care and demand for services 
such as waste management.

(5) Over two thirds of the Council’s income comes from Council Tax, which 
has seen no increases in four out of the last six years, with the last 
increase being in 2013/14. Where there have been increases, these 
have been kept below 2%. 

2.2 During this period, we have put in place a programme to remain within our budget 
which has delivered savings of around £36m as shown in the following chart:

£-

£1 

£2 

£3 

£4 

£5 

£6 

£7 

£8 

£9 

2010-11 2011-12 2012-13 2013-14 2014-15 2015-16

Millions

£36m savings delivered over the last six years

3. Local Government Settlement 2016-17

3.1 The provisional settlement figures for the next four years were issued on 17 
December 2015 and the settlement for West Berkshire was much worse than 
expected. In 2016/17 we will receive 44% less in Revenue Support Grant (RSG) 
than in 2015/16, equating to a loss of £7.6m. This is the third largest cut to RSG of 
all Unitary Authorities in England. Although we had planned for RSG to be cut by 
25% year on year, the cuts to RSG are being applied much faster than expected. 
The scale of RSG cuts are shown in the following chart:

Page 28



Revenue Budget 2016/17 – Supporting Information

West Berkshire Council Council 1 March 2016

-£5 

£-

£5 

£10 

£15 

£20 

£25 

£30 

£35 

£40 

Millions

Revenue Support Grant

3.2 By 2019/20 we will no longer receive any RSG, and will also be charged an 
additional tariff on our business rates in order to meet the overall reductions to local 
government funding set in the Spending Review. A number of grants have been 
rolled into the RSG and have then been cut. The most significant of these is the 
freeze grant funding that we received for freezing Council Tax in prior years. For 
West Berkshire this amounted to £2.8m. This grant has now been rolled into the 
RSG and will be cut as part of the RSG cuts so that by 2019/20 none of our freeze 
grant will remain.

3.3 The Spending Review included proposals for further major transformation of local 
government funding, confirming that the Government will move to the retention of 
100% of business rates by 2020, but no details have yet been issued on whether 
this will benefit local authorities. 

3.4 Central Government has introduced without warning, a new formula for distribution 
of council funding. West Berkshire loses from this formula because it is based on 
assumptions about our ability to raise Council Tax income. Central Government has 
assumed that local authorities will increase their Band D Council Tax by 1.75% (CPI 
forecast) and take up the 2% ring-fenced adult social care precept. Based on these 
assumptions, our grant funding has been reduced accordingly. 

3.5 Our Education Services grant has been cut as a result of the General Funding Rate 
for schools being reduced from £87 to £77 per pupil. This has cost us £180k in 
2016/17.

3.6 The New Homes Bonus funding is below our previous expectations as a result of 
proposed reforms, and this is forecast to fall by £1.5m in 2018/19 and a further 
£100k in 2019/20.

3.7 Prior to the provisional settlement we had identified a need to find £10.8m savings 
in 2016/17, but in the light of these grant figures, this increased to £19m. By 
increasing Council Tax by 1.99% and applying the Adult Social Care ring-fenced 
precept of 2%, and making some changes to our assumptions around cost 

Page 29



Revenue Budget 2016/17 – Supporting Information

West Berkshire Council Council 1 March 2016

pressures and inflation, we have reduced this savings requirement to £14m. 
However, by choosing not to fund some cost pressures we are exposed to greater 
risk. The scale of savings compared to previous years is shown in the following 
chart: 

£-

£2 

£4 

£6 

£8 

£10 

£12 

£14 

£16 

2010-11 2011-12 2012-13 2013-14 2014-15 2015-16 2016-17

Millions

Scale of savings required in 2016/17 
compared to previous years

3.8 On 8 February 2016, Government announced their response to the consultation of 
the provisional Local Government Settlement. A transitional grant has been made 
available to be paid in each of the first two years of the settlement. West Berkshire 
will receive additional transitional grant funding from central government of £1.39m 
in 2016/17 and £1.37m in 2017/18. After the Phase 2 consultation on savings is 
closed, the Executive on 24 March 2016 will be proposing where the transitional 
grant funding will be used. 

4. Sources of Funding

4.1 The sources of funding for the revenue budget for West Berkshire Council in 
2016/17 are shown in the following chart. This does not include ring-fenced grants 
which are used to fund specific areas.

Page 30



Revenue Budget 2016/17 – Supporting Information

West Berkshire Council Council 1 March 2016

£82.3m
68%

£9.5m
8%

£17.6m
15%

£4.4m
4%

£1.4m
1%

£6.0
5%

Funding Sources 2016/17

Council Tax (including ASC 
precept)
Revenue Support Grant

Transitional Grant Funding

Retained Business Rates

Department of Health 
Funding
Other funding

4.2 Council Tax. West Berkshire Council’s main source of funding is from Council Tax, 
which is collected from local residents based on the value of the property in which 
they live. The recommendation included within this report is a Council Tax increase 
of 1.99% for 2016/17 and a 2% ring-fenced precept for adult social care. 

4.3 Revenue Support Grant (RSG). Councils receive a general grant from 
Government to support the services provided. There are no restrictions on how this 
is used, within a council’s legal powers. West Berkshire Council will receive 
Revenue Support Grant of £9.5m in 2016/17. This represents a reduction in this 
funding of 44%, or a £7.6m reduction from 2015/16.  

4.4 Transitional Grant Funding. This was announced on 8 February 2016 as a 
response to the consultation on the Provisional Local Government Finance 
Settlement and is available for the first two years of the settlement. 

4.5 Retained Business Rates. From 2013/14, councils keep a proportion of the 
income they receive from business rates raised in their area. Of the £87m collected 
locally the vast majority is paid over to central government leaving the Council with 
£17.6m. Currently councils have limited ability to counteract risk in relation to 
appeals and avoidance, and this is especially the case for councils dependent on a 
small number of large businesses. Whilst councils did not previously bear any risk 
from successful appeals, they are now liable for half of the cost, including any 
backdating liability, which in some cases may go back to 2005 or earlier. Appeals 
have had a significant impact on West Berkshire which has resulted in a loss of 
nearly £3m from back dated appeals and an ongoing loss of circa £850k per year. 

4.6 The chart below shows the change to the three main funding sources compared to 
last year. 

Page 31



Revenue Budget 2016/17 – Supporting Information

West Berkshire Council Council 1 March 2016

-£8.0 -£6.0 -£4.0 -£2.0 £0.0 £2.0 £4.0 £6.0

Council Tax (including ASC precept)

Revenue Support Grant

Transitional Grant Funding

Retained Business Rates

£ Millions

Change in Key WBC Funding Sources 2015/16 to 2016/17 (£m)

4.7 Department of Health Funding. This funding via the Better Care Fund is to be 
spent locally on health and care with the aim of achieving closer integration and 
improve outcomes for patients and service users and carers. In 2016/17 the fund 
will be allocated to local areas where it will be put into pooled budgets under 
Section 75 joint governance arrangements between CCGs and councils. A condition 
of accessing the money is that the CCGs and councils must jointly agree plans for 
how the money will be spent, and these plans must meet certain requirements. In 
addition to this the Department of Health is providing grants to meet some of the 
new burdens arising from the Care Act but this does not include the additional 
eligibility cost of £3m the Council is currently having to accommodate despite 
previous reassurances from the Department of Health that these additional costs 
would be funded and discussions on this matter are still continuing.

4.8 Other Funding. West Berkshire Council receives a number of specific grants to 
support its priorities:

(1) Education Services Grant. This is allocated on a per-pupil basis to 
local authorities according to the number of pupils for whom they are 
responsible.  For 2016/17 this amounts to £1.84m for West Berkshire 
Council, a reduction of £187k from 2015/16. The reduction is as a 
result of reducing the pupil funding rate from £87 per pupil to £77. 

(2) New Homes Bonus. This is paid to councils to encourage them to 
build new homes. This gives councils a grant equivalent to their 
increase in Council Tax income for a period of six years for each new 
home. There is additional money if any of these new homes are 
affordable housing. West Berkshire Council will receive £3.95m from 
this grant in 2016/17, which is an increase of £892k from 2015/16 as a 
result of reaching year six of the scheme.

(3) Collection Fund Deficit. A collection fund deficit of £1.01m has arisen 
because council tax debits raised have not matched expectations when 

Page 32



Revenue Budget 2016/17 – Supporting Information

West Berkshire Council Council 1 March 2016

the taxbase was set in December of the previous year. The taxbase 
reflects the actual number of properties liable to council tax adjusted for 
any relevant discounts and exemptions and with a further adjustment 
for the effect of new build property. In 2015/16 the physical number of 
new builds has met expectations but the rate of build has been slower, 
resulting in a lower value of debit. The deficit reduces our funding 
available by £1.01m.

(4) Capital Receipt. As part of the Local Government Spending Review, 
the Government has provided councils with the flexibility to use capital 
receipts to fund transformation and restructuring of services in order to 
achieve efficiencies and revenue cost savings. In order to qualify for 
this flexibility, the authority must prepare an Efficiency Strategy which is 
included in Appendix O. The initial strategy must be approved by 
Council by 31 March 2016. This may be updated at any point in the 
year to take account of any change to the estimated level of capital 
receipts available and their planned use. Any amendments must also 
be approved by Council. The main capital receipt available in 2016/17 
is £2.9m from the sale of the former Pound Lane depot. This will be 
used to fund the expected cost of redundancies in 2016/17 of £1.9m, 
which will generate annual savings of £2.7m, and to fund the 
transformation of service provision costing an estimated £1m, which 
will generate annual savings of £500k.

4.9 Ring-fenced Funding. The Council receives ring-fenced funding which must be 
spent on these specific areas. The largest of these are detailed below:

(1) Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG). The DSG does not form part of the 
Revenue budget as it is received by government and then passed 
straight out to schools. The funding is split into three blocks – schools, 
early years and high needs. The DSG settlement for 2016/17 was 
announced on 17 December 2015 and there will be a shortfall of 
£1.4m. The shortfall in funding will have a significant impact on all 
schools, making it harder for schools to balance their own individual 
budgets. The available funding compared to the budget estimates for 
2016/17 is shown in the following table: 

2016/17 Estimate DSG 
Funding

£’000

Budget
Estimate

£’000

Headroom/ 
(Shortfall)

£’000
Schools Block 96,718 96,112 606
Early Years Block 6,708 6,824 -116
High Needs Block 19,464 21,379 -1,915

Total 122,890 124,315 -1,425

(2) Public Health Grant. West Berkshire Council receives a ring-fenced 
grant to fund Public Health. The Government has announced savings 
in public health spending averaging annual real terms savings of 3.9% 
over the next five years and that the grant is to remain ring-fenced for a 

Page 33



Revenue Budget 2016/17 – Supporting Information

West Berkshire Council Council 1 March 2016

further two years in 2016/17 and 2017/18. In 2016/17 we will receive 
£6.2m. Details of the savings required to meet the cut in grant in 
2016/17 are shown in Appendix E iv).

5. Planned Revenue Expenditure

BASE BUDGET GROWTH

5.1 This is the budget increase required for the Council to perform exactly the same 
functions year on year. As part of the budget setting process, the Council provides 
for general inflationary pressures such as salary increases (1% assumption) based 
on the established number of posts, together with salary increments and increases 
to National Insurance and pension contributions.  From April 2016, the new State 
Pension will replace the existing basic and additional State Pension and will bring to 
an end ‘contracting-out’ and the National Insurance rebate. For employers, the 
standard rate of National Insurance is 13.8% of all earnings above the secondary 
threshold for all employees and we will no longer receive the 3.4% National 
Insurance rebate. The impact for West Berkshire Council in 2016/17 is expected to 
be in the region of £800k.

BASE BUDGET GROWTH - CARE ACT ELIGIBILITY

5.2 The first phase of the Care Act 2014 came into force in April 2015 and introduced 
the most significant changes to social care legislation for 60 years. The most 
significant financial impact for the Council was the implementation of the new 
national eligibility criteria. This required the Council, which had previously met 
service users’ “critical” needs only, to expand the number of clients supported, and 
the scope of packages of care, to meet this new definition of eligibility which is 
closer to that previously defined as “substantial”. Despite the Government stating 
they would meet the costs of the Care Act in full, the total additional funding 
received (which has covered other elements of the Care Act, such as services to 
carers) has left the Council to cover a funding gap of £3m in caused by this 
particular change. The Council (with another LA) judicially reviewed the Department 
of Health’s assessment and decision making process and it agreed a further review 
of the eligibility criteria based on that challenge. The local MP also made 
representation to the Secretary of State and additional funding may become 
available following the final outcome of all the review processes.

CONTRACT INFLATION

5.3 Budgets are inflated where a contract is in place and is subject to annual inflationary 
increases. This amounts to £383k in 2016/17. The main amount of contract inflation 
the Council faces is from the waste PFI contract. This contract increase is based on 
the RPIx measure in January of each year. Full details are given in Appendix C.

UNAVOIDABLE SERVICE PRESSURES

5.4 Each year new unavoidable service pressures arise and need to be built into the 
revenue budget. The unavoidable pressures for 2016/17 amount to £3.9m and 
include £908k for children’s placements, £551k for Ofsted Improvement plans for 
Children’s Services, £600k for the transition of learning disability clients from 
children to adult placements and £179k for costs associated with Deprivation of 
Liberty Safeguarding. Full details are given in Appendix D. 

Page 34



Revenue Budget 2016/17 – Supporting Information

West Berkshire Council Council 1 March 2016

OTHER RISKS

5.5 The Council is also facing a number of risk items that will arise during 2016/17 but 
cannot yet be quantified. The main risk items are:

(1) introduction of the National Living Wage, which will affect some Council 
employees and service providers that we commission

(2) part year impact of any delays to implementing the savings plans for 
2016/17

(3) possible delay to the recruitment and retention of permanent social 
workers in Children’s Services 

(4) increases in demand for services over and above budget assumptions.

6. Savings

6.1 Given the scale of task to arrive at a balanced budget for next year a number of 
significant saving proposals have been made including reductions to libraries, 
children centres, home to school transport, public transport subsidy, highway 
maintenance, provision of care services and many others as detailed in Appendix E 
totalling £14m.

6.2 As a result of these savings plans, 127 employees are at risk of redundancy (96 
FTE) and in addition 27 vacant posts will be deleted. The associated exit costs are 
estimated to be in the region of £2m. The Council is proposing in the Efficiency 
Strategy at Appendix O, to use capital receipts to fund these costs given the level of 
organisational change being proposed. 

7. Budget Consultation 2016/17

7.1 Given the scale of the savings requirement for 2016/17, some tough decisions have 
had to be made. We recognised that a number of the proposals being put forward 
within the revenue budget would be considered ‘front line’ services that people use 
and will miss.  As a result, from 3 November to 14 December 2015, a public 
consultation exercise (Phase 1) was undertaken on the need to make £10.8m of 
savings in 2016/17. £4.6m of these savings affected frontline services. The 
consultation generated over 2,500 responses and covered 47 individual budget 
proposals. 

7.2 Since the consultation closed on 14 December 2015 Members and officers have 
had the task of reading and assessing all of the comments received.  The Revenue 
Budget papers has included, as Appendix N, the report which went to the Executive 
on 11 February 2016 which has been amended to reflect the comments made at 
that meeting including referencing the three petitions and a letter objecting to the 
proposed funding reductions for short breaks for children and bus route 143.  This 
report also contains links to the verbatim comments, a summary of comments 
template, an overview and recommendations template and the Equality Impact 
Assessments templates for each of the 47 savings proposal.

7.3 Members are fully aware of the Public Sector Equality Duty which requires “decision 
makers” to keep the welfare of service users and their families at the forefront of 

Page 35



Revenue Budget 2016/17 – Supporting Information

West Berkshire Council Council 1 March 2016

their mind particularly those that are most disadvantaged.  This is an important 
consideration when setting the 2016/17 budget.

7.4 In view of the unexpectedly poor Government RSG settlement it has been 
necessary to undertake a Phase 2 public consultation exercise.  This commenced 
on 15 February 2016 and will conclude on 7 March 2016.  There are 16 public 
facing savings proposals representing £2.1m.  

7.5 It is proposed that the Council will set its budget on 1 March 2016.  However, it is 
also proposed that the Executive, at its meeting on 24 March 2016, be given 
delegated authority to adjust these plans afterwards, should it need to.  Once the 
consultation closes on 7 March 2016, the responses to our proposals will be fully 
considered.  The Executive will be able to respond accordingly to any issues raised, 
and will be proposing where the transitional grant funding of £1.39m will be used. 
The full list of savings proposals for 2016/17 are detailed in Appendix E, amounting 
to £14m. 

8. Levies and Capital Financing Costs

8.1 This budget includes approximately £9.6 million for principal and interest payments 
on the long term loans which the Council has taken out to fund its capital 
programme.  This cost is offset by interest earned on the Council’s investments 
estimated at about £0.39 million.  The remaining budget also includes levies set by 
the Environment Agency and the Thames Valley Magistrates Courts Service.

9. Fees and Charges

9.1 The proposed changes to each Directorates fees and charges are shown in 
Appendix H. There are generally two types of charges; statutory and discretionary 
and the rationale behind the proposed increases are included in detail in 
Appendices H i) to H iv).  

10. Funding Statement

10.1 The Funding Statement for 2016/17 shows all non-ringfenced funding available to 
the Council which can be used to fund the budget requirement. 

Page 36



Revenue Budget 2016/17 – Supporting Information

West Berkshire Council Council 1 March 2016

2016/17 Funding Statement £m £m

Income
Council Tax income 82.28
Revenue Support Grant 9.53
Transitional Grant Funding 1.39
Other Non-Ringfenced Grants 0.07
Retained Business Rates 17.65
Education Services Grant (ESG) 1.84
Department of Health Funding 4.37
New Homes Bonus 3.95
Council Tax Collection Fund deficit -1.01
Use of Capital Receipt 1.17
Funds available 121.25

Expenditure
Opening Directorate Budget 116.30
Base budget growth 2.07
Contract inflation 0.38
Unavoidable service pressures 3.89
Other risks 1.97
Savings identified -13.90
Use of transitional grant funding 1.39
Directorate budget requirement 112.09
Levies & capital financing costs 9.10
Net Budget Requirement for Management Accounting 121.19

Use of Reserves (-) 0.00
CTSS support for Parishes 0.05
Budget requirement 121.25

11. Reserves

11.1 As part of the financial planning process, the Council will consider the establishment 
and maintenance of reserves. Reserves are categorised into General Reserves, 
Earmarked Reserves, Capital Reserves and Unusable Reserves. 

11.2 The General Reserves consist of the General Fund and the Medium Term Financial 
Volatility Reserve (MTFVR). 

(1) The General Fund exists to cover a number of risks. These are detailed 
as per the s151 officer’s statement in Appendix G; there are a number 
of items that have inherent but not specific risks. If the risks occur, then 
this would reduce the General Reserves, assuming that every other 
Council budget breaks even. If the Council over spends then it will 
need to establish a mechanism for replenishing reserves in future 
years.

Page 37



Revenue Budget 2016/17 – Supporting Information

West Berkshire Council Council 1 March 2016

(2) The Medium Term Financial Volatility Reserve (MTFVR) was created in 
2012/13 to cover a number of risks, primarily resulting from changes to 
local government finances and the volatility that these present. 

11.3 At 31 March 2015 the General Reserves amounted to £7.97m, comprising £6.44m 
in the General Fund and £1.53m in the MTFVR. During 2015/16, the General 
Reserves decreased by £2.75m for the following reasons:

(1) £1.15m to support the 2015/16 budget

(2) £1m to create an earmarked reserve for schools in financial difficulty

(3) £0.6m to fund the 2015/16 over spend as forecast at quarter three.

11.4 The Council s151 officer (the Head of Finance) recommends that General Reserves 
are a minimum of 5% of the Council’s net budget, which in 2016/17 should be £6m. 
In order to ensure the General Reserves meet the £6m prudent level recommended 
by the s151 officer, £780k has been released from Earmarked Reserves by 
reassessing the risks relating to these items. General Reserves are now expected 
to amount to £6m, comprising £4.97m General Fund and £1.03m MTFVR. 

12. Special Expenses

12.1 There are six Parish special expenses areas within the District and the special 
expenses to be levied are detailed below:

North Fawley – St Mary the Virgin £350

Hungerford Footway Lighting £4,280

Kintbury – St Mary’s Churchyard £5,100

Shaw – St Mary’s Churchyard £910

Theale – Holy Trinity £1,270

Tilehurst – St Michael’s £12,500

Total £24,410

12.2 The special expenses to be levied for these areas are detailed in Appendices I.

13. Options for Consideration

13.1 The scale of the Local Government Settlement has left West Berkshire Council with 
limited options. We are proposing to increase Council Tax by 1.99% and apply the 
adult social care ring-fenced precept of a 2% increase to Council Tax. If these 
options were not taken, the savings requirement would be £3.2m higher. We have 
considered all options available to us in order to keep the savings requirement to 
the level it is. These options include use of capital receipts and transitional grant 
funding. 

Page 38



Revenue Budget 2016/17 – Supporting Information

West Berkshire Council Council 1 March 2016

14. Proposals

(1) That the responses received to each of the 47 public facing savings 
proposals in relation to Phase 1 of the public consultation exercise 
undertaken on the 2016/17 budget be noted. 

(2) That Council consider the use of the 2016/17 transitional grant as a 
means of mitigating the impact of some of the Phase 1 proposals and 
where this is not used, the recommendations set out in the Overview 
and Recommendations template be approved.

(3) That Council recommend that those public health grant funded services 
(marked as “to be progressed”) in the Overview and Recommendations 
template totalling £114,000 be progressed.

(4) That the 2016/17 revenue budget requirement for Council Tax setting 
purposes of £82.28 million requiring a Council Tax increase of 1.99% 
be approved.

(5) That the 2% ring-fenced adult social care precept be applied.

(6) That the Fees and Charges be approved as set out in Appendix H and 
the appropriate statutory notices be placed where required.

(7) That the Special Expenses be approved as set out in Appendix I.

(8) That the Efficiency Strategy for Use of Capital Receipts be approved as 
set out in Appendix O.

(9) That the Executive, on 24 March 2016, be given delegated authority to 
adjust the Council’s budget plans, should the responses to Phase 2 of 
the public consultation require it to do so.

(10) That the Executive, on 24 March 2016, propose where the transitional 
grant funding of £1.39m will be used. 

15. Conclusion

15.1 The Council has been left with little room for manoeuvre to deliver a balanced 
budget for next year and has to propose significant savings to many valued services 
across the Council as detailed in the report.  

15.2 As a result of these savings plans, 127 employees are at risk of redundancy (96 
FTE) and in addition 27 vacant posts will be deleted. The associated exit costs are 
estimated to be in the region of £2m. 

15.3 A public consultation exercise (Phase 1) was undertaken on the need to make 
£10.8m of savings in 2016/17. £4.6m of these savings affected frontline services. In 
view of the unexpectedly poor Government RSG settlement it has been necessary 
to undertake a Phase 2 public consultation exercise.  This commenced on 15 
February 2016 and will conclude on 7 March 2016.  There are 16 public facing 
savings proposals representing £2.1m.  

Page 39



Revenue Budget 2016/17 – Supporting Information

West Berkshire Council Council 1 March 2016

15.4 It is proposed that the Council will set its budget on 1 March 2016.  However, it is 
also proposed that the Executive, at its meeting on 24 March 2016, be given 
delegated authority to adjust these plans afterwards, should it need to.  Once the 
Phase 2 consultation closes on 7 March 2016, the responses to our proposals will 
be fully considered.  The Executive will be able to respond accordingly to any issues 
raised, and will be proposing where the transitional grant funding of £1.39m will be 
used.

15.5 The Council s151 officer (the Head of Finance) recommends that General Reserves 
are a minimum of 5% of the Council’s net budget, which in 2016/17 should be £6m. 

Background Papers:
None

Subject to Call-In:
Yes:  No:  

The item is due to be referred to Council for final approval 

Wards affected:
All
Strategic Aims and Priorities Supported:
The proposals will help achieve the following Council Strategy aims:

BEC – Better educated communities
SLE – A stronger local economy
P&S – Protect and support those who need it
HQL – Maintain a high quality of life within our communities
MEC – Become an even more effective Council

The proposals contained in this report will help to achieve the following Council Strategy 
priorities:

BEC1 – Improve educational attainment
BEC2 – Close the educational attainment gap
SLE1 – Enable the completion of more affordable housing
SLE2 – Deliver or enable key infrastructure improvements in relation to roads, 

rail, flood prevention, regeneration and the digital economy
P&S1 – Good at safeguarding children and vulnerable adults
HQL1 – Support communities to do more to help themselves
MEC1 – Become an even more effective Council

Officer details:
Name: Andy Walker
Job Title: Head of Finance
Tel No: (01635) 519433
E-mail Address: awalker@westberks.gov.uk

Page 40



West Berkshire Council Special Executive 25 February 2016

Appendix N
Phase 1 Budget Consultation 2016-17 - Summary 
Report

Committee considering 
report:

Special Executive on 25 February 2016 
Council on 1 March 2016

Portfolio Member: Councillor Roger Croft
Date Portfolio Member 
agreed report: 1 February 2016

Report Author: Andy Day, Head of Strategic Support
Forward Plan Ref: C2979

1. Purpose of the Report

1.1 This report provides an update on the results of Phase 1 of the public consultation 
exercise in relation to the 2016/17 budget. This report provides information on the 
total number of responses received to the consultation and details of the total 
number of responses received for each savings proposal.

1.2 This report also provides details where “counter proposals” have been made by 
organisations and looks at those savings proposals which are currently funded by 
the public health grant.

2. Recommendation

2.1 That the responses received to each of the 47 public facing savings proposals in 
relation to Phase 1 of the public consultation exercise undertaken on the 2016/17 
budget be noted. 

2.2 That, should transitional funding not be appropriate, Full Council progress each of 
the non-public health grant funded savings proposals (29 individual proposals in 
total) and the one income proposal relating to car parking as set out in Appendix A.

2.3 That it be a recommendation to Council that those public health grant funded 
services set out in paragraph 3.4 of Appendix “A” totalling £114,000 be progressed.

3. Implications

3.1 Financial: This report will contribute to and inform the 2016/17 budget 
report and discussion at Council on 1 March 2016. 

3.2 Policy: N/A

3.3 Personnel:  Some of the savings proposals will have an impact on staff 
and where this is the case these have been identified and 
appropriate action taken.

3.4 Legal: The Public Sector Equality Duty (149 (1) requires a Local 
Authority in exercise of its functions to have due regard to 

Page 41



Phase 1 Budget Consultation 2016-17 - Summary Report

West Berkshire Council Special Executive 25 February 2016

the need to:
(a)   eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation and 
any other conduct that is prohibited by or under this act.

(b)   advance equality of opportunity between persons who 
share a relevant protected characteristic and persons who 
do not share it.

(c)   foster good relations between persons who share a 
relevant protected characteristic and persons who do not 
share it.

The essential duty is that decision makers must keep the 
welfare of service users at the forefront of their mind, but 
also families, and especially their families who are most 
disadvantaged.

3.5 Risk Management: N/A

3.6 Property: N/A

3.7 Other: In relation to the Mortimer to Willink Home to School 
Transport route the On-Highways aspect has been 
assessed by our Highways Engineers in accordance with 
Road Safety GB guidelines. In response to feedback, the 
Council commissioned a 2nd independent review which also 
concluded that the On-Highways aspect was suitable as a 
route to school. 

4. Other options considered

4.1 The Council is required to consult on its 2016/17 budget by virtue of the Equality Act 
2010 and particularly in relation to any proposals which might have a public impact. 

Page 42



Phase 1 Budget Consultation 2016-17 - Summary Report

West Berkshire Council Special Executive 25 February 2016

5. Executive Summary

5.1 In agreeing a balanced budget for 2016/17 the Council was initially required to find 
a total of £10.8m of savings.  Approximately £4.6m of these savings were identified 
as potentially having a public impact.

6. Consultation Approach

6.1 The Council launched Phase 1 of its public consultation on its 2016/17 budget on 3 
November 2015.  The consultation ran for 6 weeks which concluded on 14 
December 2015.  A total of 2458 responses were received to the 47 individual 
savings proposals. Approximately 1,000 of these responses were received in the 
last week and required a significant effort to make sure that all of the responses 
were entered on to the system and reflected in this report. 

6.2 A table showing the number of responses for each proposal is set out in Appendix B 
to this report along with templates providing an overview and summary of the 
comments received to each proposal.  It should be noted at this stage that it is not 
the number of responses which should be focused on but the responses to the two 
questions about impact.

6.3 As already stated there were 47 public facing savings proposals for 2016/17 
compared to 18 in 2014/15 and 2015/16.  The 47 savings proposals represented 
£4.6m. The consultation was launched with a video of the Chief Executive 
explaining the financial challenges faced by the Council.  

6.4 The proposals were published on the Council’s consultation finder database with 
information disseminated to all registered consultees. The proposals were also e 
mailed round to approximately 900 members of the community panel as well 
information being posted on Facebook and Twitter accounts.  A press release was 
also issued drawing attention to the public consultation exercise. 

6.5 Of the 47 public facing savings proposals 18 related to services funded by the 
public health grant which has been ring fenced by the Government for a further two 
years. Although the Council has to make savings of £139,000 from the public health 
grant in 2016/17 it is only proposed to reduce funding to those public facing savings 
proposals set out in Paragraph 3.4 of Appendix A which totals £114,000.

6.6 At the Executive on 11 February 2016 three petitions and a letter were presented 
requesting the Council to reconsider its proposals to reduce funding in the following 
areas:

(i) Short Breaks for Children - The petition contained 3694 signatures.

(ii) 143 bus service in Purley and Pangbourne - The petition contained 253 
signatures.

(iii) 143 bus service in Basildon - The petition contained 352 signatures.

6.7 The letter was from the Pangbourne and Whitchurch Sustainability Group 
supporting the sentiments of the two petitions relating to the 143 bus service.

Page 43



Phase 1 Budget Consultation 2016-17 - Summary Report

West Berkshire Council Special Executive 25 February 2016

7. Conclusion

7.1 The public consultation on the 2016/17 budget attracted around 2500 responses.  
Details of all responses and recommendations are set out in the individual 
templates and further distilled in the spreadsheet attached to the report.

8. Appendices

8.1 Appendix A - Supporting Information (Main Report)

8.2 Appendix B - Summary of Recommendations

8.3 Appendix C - Table showing the total number of responses received to each 
proposal

8.4 Appendix D – Overview of Responses and Recommendations, Summary of 
Responses, Verbatim Responses and Equalities Impact Assessment are published 
on the 47 individual consultation pages and can be accessed via the central index 
page for Budget Proposals 2016/17 Phase One.

Page 44

http://info.westberks.gov.uk/index.aspx?articleid=31554
http://info.westberks.gov.uk/index.aspx?articleid=31554


West Berkshire Council Special Executive 25 February 2016

Appendix N (A)

Phase 1 Budget Consultation 2016/17 - Supporting 
Information

1. Introduction/Background

1.1 This report provides feedback on the results of Phase 1 of the public consultation 
exercise undertaken in relation to the 2016/17 budget. This report provides 
information on the total number of responses received to the consultation and 
details of the responses for each savings proposal and the themes of those 
responses.

1.2 This report also highlights those areas where organisations have made “counter” 
proposals in response to the question asked within the consultation about “what can 
you do to help mitigate the impact of this proposal?”

1.3 The report also looks at those savings proposals which are funded by the public 
health grant which has been ring fenced for a further two years.

1.4 The Council launched its public consultation on its 2016/17 budget on 3 November 
2015.  The consultation ran for 6 weeks and concluded on 14 December 2015.  A 
total of 2458 responses were received to the 47 individual savings proposals.  
Approximately 1,000 of these responses were received in the last week of the 
consultation and required a great deal of work to make sure that all responses were 
entered on to the system.

1.5 A spreadsheet (Appendix B) proposes a recommendation for each of the 47 
individual savings proposals.  A summary of the total number of responses to each 
of the proposals is also set out in Appendix C.  Appendices D and E provide a 
summary and overview of the responses received to each of the proposals. A 
further spreadsheet (Appendix F) is also attached which provides the Equality 
Impact Assessments, verbatim comments and summary of responses for each 
proposal.

1.6 As already stated there were 47 public facing savings proposals for 2016/17 
compared to 18 in 2014/15 and 2015/16. The scale of the consultation was 
therefore significantly different compared to the last two years. The total value of the 
public facing savings proposals was £4.6m. The consultation was launched with a 
video of the Chief Executive explaining the financial challenges faced by the 
Council. 

1.7 The 47 individual savings proposals were published on the Council’s consultation 
finder database with information disseminated to all registered consultees. The 
proposals were also e mailed round to around 900 members of the community 
panel as well information being posted on Facebook and Twitter accounts.  A press 
release was also issued drawing attention to the public consultation exercise. 

1.8 All of the organisations impacted by the proposals were also contacted prior to the 
consultation exercise going live so were aware of the proposals and the potential 
impact on them.

Page 45



Phase 1 Budget Consultation 2016/17 - Supporting Information

West Berkshire Council Special Executive 25 February 2016

1.9 The consultation asked the following questions:

1. What would be the impact on you or your community?

2. What can you do to help mitigate this impact?

1.10 The consultation exercise generated a great deal of feedback from the public . 
Where organisations have made counter proposals these are set out in the 
summaries and distilled further in Section 2 of this report.  

1.11 Section 3 deals with those savings proposals currently funded by the public health 
grant and makes recommendations on those public facing proposals which should 
be progressed given the need to save 2.2% of this budget in 2016/17.

1.12 Section 4 deals with the Equality Impact Assessment aspects of the savings 
proposals and details the four outcomes which are possible arising from the public 
consultation.

1.13 At the Executive on 11 February 2016 three petitions and a letter were presented 
requesting the Council to reconsider its proposals to reduce funding in the following 
areas:

(i) Short Breaks for Children - The petition contained 3694 signatures.
(ii) 143 bus service in Purley and Pangbourne - The petition contained 253

signatures.
(iii) 143 bus service in Basildon - The petition contained 352 signatures.

1.14 The letter was from the Pangbourne and Whitchurch Sustainability Group 
supporting the sentiments of the two petitions relating to the 143 bus service.

2. Counter Proposals

2.1 A number of “counter “proposals have been suggested by organisations impacted 
by some of these proposals and these are summarised below: 

(i) CCTV - This service currently costs the Council £224,000 annually. In response 
to the consultation, Newbury Town Council working with Newbury BID, Thames 
Valley Police are developing a proposal which will hopefully see a CCTV 
system being retained in Newbury. Thatcham, Hungerford Town Councils 
Lambourn and Theale Parish Councils are also considering whether to develop 
their own bespoke CCTV service.

(ii) Empowering West Berkshire - EWB are the umbrella organisation for the 
voluntary and community sector (VCS).  The £50,000 currently goes towards 
the employment of 1.5fte.  All other costs are currently met by Greenham 
Common Trust. 

EWB has made a “counter” proposal to the Council and has agreed to take a 
funding reduction of £10,000 per annum making the overall cost of operating an 
umbrella organisation for the VCS £40,000 a year.  EWB has committed to 
securing other funding to bridge this gap.  The responses received to this 
proposal show the value of the organisation and the help that they have 
provided across the sector.  

Page 46



Phase 1 Budget Consultation 2016/17 - Supporting Information

West Berkshire Council Special Executive 25 February 2016

(iii) Home to School Transport - The Council currently spends a total of £246,400 
on 366 pupils.  Having regard to the responses received the following options 
have been proposed by officers:

(a) The Council continues to operate its home to school transport services but 
for those pupils whose entitlement to free transport has ceased a seat could 
be offered on a Fare Payer basis.

(b) School or community-led bus service - The Council could encourage the 
schools or community to set up appropriate bus services.

(c) Mortimer to Willink Route - The Council could undertake appropriate 
infrastructure works such as signage, drainage, vegetation maintenance and 
purchase school lockers to make it easier for pupils to walk to school.

(iv) Learning Independence for Travel – It has been suggested that the Council 
retains £40,000 of its planned £114,000 reduction in order to be able to 
establish a remodelled service with the aim of reducing the SEN home to school 
transport costs.

 (v)  Public Transport - The methodology used to propose the savings was based on 
the highest cost per passenger journey.  It is suggested that this be revised and 
remodelled on the basis of existing passenger usage rather than cost.

3. Public Health Grant

3.1 The Public Health grant for 2015/16 was £4,819k.  The Council received a new 
budget in October 2015 for Health Visitors of £919k making a total public health 
grant of £5,738k. This has been reduced in year by £355k to £5,383k.

3.2  In 2016/17 the Council will receive the remainder of the Health Visitors’ budget ie a 
further £919k increasing its base to £6,301k. The Council is anticipating a reduction 
of 2.2% to this budget in 2016/17 (£139k) and a further 2.5% reduction in 2017/18   
(£154k). 

3.3 Of the 47 public facing savings proposals 11 are currently funded by the public 
health grant. The Government has recently confirmed that this grant will be ring 
fenced for a further two years, however, a reduction of £139,000 (2.2%) to this grant 
will be required in 2016/17 and £154,000 (2.5%) in 2017/18.

3.4 Having looked at the responses received to the savings proposals and having 
regard to the need to make savings in the public health grant of £139,000 in 
2016/17 it is proposed that the following public facing savings proposals be 
progressed.

(i) Eat 4 Health - £5,000

(ii) Feel Good Fortnight - £10,000

(iii) Oral Health Promotion - £24,000

(iv) Physical Activity in Children - £16,000 

(v) Smoking Cessation Service - “Smoke Free Life” - £32,000

Page 47



Phase 1 Budget Consultation 2016/17 - Supporting Information

West Berkshire Council Special Executive 25 February 2016

(vi) Thames Valley Positive Support - £7,000

(vii) The Edge - £14,000

(v) Youth Offending Team - £6,000

3.5 The balance of the savings required from the Public Health grant will be met from 
non public facing proposals.

4.       Equality Impact Assessments

4.1 The Public Sector Equality Duty (149 (1) requires a Local Authority in exercise of its 
functions to have due regard to the need to:
(a)   eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any other conduct that   

is prohibited by or under this act.

(b)   advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant 
protected characteristic and persons who do not share it.

(c)   foster good relations between persons who share a relevant protected 
characteristics and persons who do not share it.

4.2 The essential duty placed on decision makers is that they must keep the welfare of 
service users at the forefront of their mind, but also families, and especially their 
families who are most disadvantaged.

4.3      The Equality Impact Assessments attached to this report identify the chosen 
option(s) and their potential impacts and document the reasons for the decision in 
each of the 47 savings proposals. The following four outcomes are possible from an 
assessment and more than one may apply to a single proposal:

(i) No major change is required as the EIA has not identified any potential for 
discrimination or adverse impact and all opportunities to advance equality 
have been taken.

(ii) Adjustments are needed to remove barriers identified by the assessor or to 
promote equality (but the local authority has to ask itself if the adjustments 
will be effective).

(iii) Continue despite having identified some potential for adverse impacts or 
missed opportunities to advance equality.

(iv) Stop and rethink if an EIA shows actual or potential unlawful discrimination.  
Is there a way of reducing or mitigating any negative impact?

4.4 It is important that Members have carefully considered, assessed and fully 
understood the implications of any of the responses received to the savings 
proposals.  Members have already reviewed at length the detailed feedback for 
each of the proposals.

5. Conclusion

5.1      The public consultation on the 2016/17 budget attracted around 2500 responses.  
Details of all responses and recommendations are set out in the individual 
templates and further distilled in the Spreadsheet attached to the report.

Page 48



Phase 1 Budget Consultation 2016/17 - Supporting Information

West Berkshire Council Special Executive 25 February 2016

Subject to Call-In:
Yes:  No:  

The item is due to be referred to Council for final approval
Delays in implementation could have serious financial implications for the Council
Delays in implementation could compromise the Council’s position
Considered or reviewed by Overview and Scrutiny Management Commission or 
associated Task Groups within preceding six months
Item is Urgent Key Decision
Report is to note only

X

Officer details:
Name: Andy Day
Job Title: Head of Strategic Support
Tel No: 01635 519459
E-mail Address: aday@westberks.gov.uk

Page 49



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 50



Budget Proposals 2016/17:   Summary of Recommendations as result of feedback on the impact of budget proposals – for Full Council meeting 1 March 2016

Savings Proposals:

Service 
area

Proposal Total Budget 
2015/16

Initial proposed 
saving 2016/17

Finalised proposed 
saving 2016/17

Recommendation

P&C Access Officer £48,000 £48,000 (100%) £48,000 Feedback has not uncovered any further issues which would prevent the council from 
proceeding with this proposal.  
To proceed with this savings proposal. 

C&EP Arts and Leisure Development £54,000 £54,000 (100%) £54,000 Feedback has not uncovered any further issues which would prevent the council from 
proceeding with this proposal.  
To proceed with this savings proposal.

CS Cash Office, Market Street £166,000 £44,000 (26%) £44,000 Feedback has not uncovered any further issues which would prevent the council from 
proceeding with this proposal.  
To proceed with this savings proposal.

SSU CCTV £224,930 £224,930 (100%) £224,930 Feedback from the consultation has resulted in several of the appropriate Town and Parish 
Councils seeking to maintain a bespoke CCTV service in their area. 
To proceed with this savings proposal.

ASC Chestnut Walk Care Home £354,000 £94,000 (26%) £94,000 Feedback has not uncovered any further issues which would prevent the council from 
proceeding with this proposal.  
To proceed with this savings proposal.

Education Children's Centres £1,226,000 £300,000 (24%) £300,000 Feedback has not uncovered any further issues which would prevent the council from 
proceeding with this proposal.  
To proceed with this savings proposal.

SSU Citizens Advice Bureau £239,892 £15,000 (6%) £15,000 Feedback has not uncovered any further issues which would prevent the council from 
proceeding with this proposal.  
To proceed with this savings proposal.

C&EP Cleaner Greener £20,000 £20,000 (100%) £20,000 Feedback has not uncovered any further issues which would prevent the council from 
proceeding with this proposal.  
To proceed with this savings proposal.

SSU Empowering West Berkshire £50,000 £50,000 (100%) £50,000 Feedback has not uncovered any further issues which would prevent the council from 
proceeding with this proposal.  
To proceed with this savings proposal.

Child Family Resource Service £830,440 £100,000 (12%) £100,000 Feedback has not uncovered any further issues which would prevent the council from 
proceeding with this proposal.  
To proceed with this savings proposal.

H&T Highways Maintenance £2,875,010 £552,000 (19%) £552,000 Feedback has not uncovered any further issues which would prevent the council from 
proceeding with this proposal.  
To proceed with this savings proposal.

P
age 51



Budget Proposals 2016/17:   Summary of Recommendations as result of feedback on the impact of budget proposals – for Full Council meeting 1 March 2016

Service 
area

Proposal Total Budget 
2015/16

Initial proposed 
saving 2016/17

Finalised proposed 
saving 2016/17

Recommendation

Education Home to School Transport – available 
routes

£246,400 (15%) £246,400 Feedback has not uncovered any further issues which would prevent the council from 
proceeding with this proposal.  
To proceed with this savings proposal.

Education Home to School Transport – other 
proposals

£1.6 M (mainstream 
school transport)

£140,000 (9%) £140,000 Feedback has not uncovered any further issues which would prevent the council from 
proceeding with this proposal.  
To proceed with this savings proposal.

CCH&S Housing Related Outreach Support 
Service

£184,000 £184,000 (100%) £184,000 Feedback has not uncovered any further issues which would prevent the council from 
proceeding with this proposal.  
To proceed with this savings proposal.

C&EP Kintbury Jubilee Leisure Centre £9,000 £9,000 (100%) £9,000 Feedback has not uncovered any further issues which would prevent the council from 
proceeding with this proposal.  
To proceed with this savings proposal.

Education Learning Independence for Travel (LIFT) £114,000 £114,000 (100%) £114,000 Feedback has not uncovered any further issues which would prevent the council from 
proceeding with this proposal.  
To proceed with this savings proposal.

C&EP Library Service £1,525,000 £90,000 (5.9%) £90,000 Feedback has not uncovered any further issues which would prevent the council from 
proceeding with this proposal.  
To proceed with this savings proposal.

CCH&S Mental Health Supported Living Scheme £201,000 £100,000 (50%) £100,000 Feedback has not uncovered any further issues which would prevent the council from 
proceeding with this proposal.  
To proceed with this savings proposal.

P&C Pang and, Kennet Project £14,000 £14,000 (100%) £14,000 Feedback has not uncovered any further issues which would prevent the council from 
proceeding with this proposal.  
To proceed with this savings proposal.

Education Primary Children and Adolescent Mental 
Health Service (PCAMHS)

£80,000 £40,000 (50%) £40,000 Feedback has not uncovered any further issues which would prevent the council from 
proceeding with this proposal.  
To proceed with this savings proposal.

Education Pre School Teacher Counselling Service £170,000 £85,000 (50%) £85,000 Feedback has not uncovered any further issues which would prevent the council from 
proceeding with this proposal.  
To proceed with this savings proposal.

P
age 52



Budget Proposals 2016/17:   Summary of Recommendations as result of feedback on the impact of budget proposals – for Full Council meeting 1 March 2016

Service 
area

Proposal Total Budget 
2015/16

Initial proposed 
saving 2016/17

Finalised proposed 
saving 2016/17

Recommendation

P&C Public Conveniences - Newbury £70,000 £70,000 (100%) £70,000 Feedback has not uncovered any further issues which would prevent the council from 
proceeding with this proposal.  
To proceed with this savings proposal.

H&T Public Transport £1,463,090 £320,000 (21.9%) £320,000 The methodology used to propose savings in public transport was based on the highest cost per 
passenger journey.  The feedback has suggested that bus services should be retained in most 
areas but be based on existing passenger usage rather than cost. 
To proceed with the proposed saving, based on a methodology of passenger usage 
rather than cost.

H&T Rural Highways Grass Cutting £70,000 £10,000 (14%) £10,000 Feedback has not uncovered any further issues which would prevent the council from 
proceeding with this proposal.  
To proceed with this savings proposal.

Education School Crossing Patrol £21,000 £21,000 (100%) £21,000 Feedback has not uncovered any further issues which would prevent the council from 
proceeding with this proposal.  
To proceed with this savings proposal.

Child Short Breaks for Children £415,000 £345,000 (83%) £345,000 Feedback has not uncovered any further issues which would prevent the council from 
proceeding with this proposal.  
To proceed with this savings proposal.

CCH&S Step by Step Support Lodgings £100,000 £100,000 (100%) £100,000 Feedback has not uncovered any further issues which would prevent the council from 
proceeding with this proposal.  
To proceed with this savings proposal.

H&T Traffic Management and Road Safety £364,870 £91,000 (25%) £91,000 Feedback has not uncovered any further issues which would prevent the council from 
proceeding with this proposal.  
To proceed with this savings proposal.

C&EP Visitor Information Service £62,000 £62,000 (100%) £62,000 Feedback has not uncovered any further issues which would prevent the council from 
proceeding with this proposal.  
To proceed with this savings proposal.

C&EP Waste Management - Street Cleansing £2,200,000 £100,000 (4.5%) £100,000 Feedback has not uncovered any further issues which would prevent the council from 
proceeding with this proposal.  
To proceed with this savings proposal.

P
age 53



Budget Proposals 2016/17:   Summary of Recommendations as result of feedback on the impact of budget proposals – for Full Council meeting 1 March 2016

Public Health and Wellbeing Funded:

Service 
area

Proposal Total Budget 
2015/16

Initial proposed 
saving 2016/17

Finalised proposed 
saving 2016/17

Recommendation

PH&WB Alana House Satellite Service £22,500 £22,500 (100%) £0 Feedback has not uncovered any further issues which would prevent the council from 
proceeding with this proposal.   However, given that the Public Health grant has been ring-
fenced for a further two years it is recommended that this service continue to be funded at an 
annual sum of £22,500.
To continue to fund this service at the current level.

PH&WB Eat 4 health £60,000 £7,000 (12%) £5,000 Although this proposal is funded by the Public Health grant, feedback has not uncovered any 
further issues which would prevent the council from proceeding with this proposal.  
To proceed with this savings proposal, without any modifications.

PH&WB Feel Good Fortnight £10,000 £10,000 (100%) £10,000 Although this proposal is funded by the Public Health grant, feedback has not uncovered any 
further issues which would prevent the council from proceeding with this proposal.  
To proceed with this savings proposal, without any modifications.

PH&WB Friends in Need £25,000 £25,000 (100%) £0 Feedback has not uncovered any further issues which would prevent the council from 
proceeding with this proposal.   However, given that the Public Health grant has been ring-
fenced for a further two years it is recommended that this service continue to be funded at an 
annual sum of £25,000.
To continue to fund this service at the current level.

PH&WB Healthy Eating in Children £32,000 £5,000 (16%) £0 Feedback has not uncovered any further issues which would prevent the council from 
proceeding with this proposal.   However, given that the Public Health grant has been ring-
fenced for a further two years it is recommended that this service continue to be funded at an 
annual sum of £32,000. 
To continue to fund this service at the current level.

Educ Not in Education, Employment or 
Training (NEET) Support 

£20,000 £20,000 (100%) £0 Feedback has not uncovered any further issues which would prevent the council from 
proceeding with this proposal.   However, given that the Public Health grant has been ring-
fenced for a further two years it is recommended that this service continue to be funded at an 
annual sum of £20,000.
To continue to fund this service at the current level.

PH&WB Oral Health Promotion £24,000 £24,000 (100%) £24,000 Although this proposal is funded by the Public Health grant, feedback has not uncovered any 
further issues which would prevent the council from proceeding with this proposal.  
To proceed with this savings proposal, without any modifications.

PH&WB Physical Activity in Adults £13,000 £6,000 (46%) £0 Feedback has not uncovered any further issues which would prevent the council from 
proceeding with this proposal.   However, given that the Public Health grant has been ring-
fenced for a further two years it is recommended that this service continue to be funded at an 
annual sum of £13,000.
To continue to fund this service at the current level.

PH&WB Physical Activity in Children  £36,500 £16,000 (44%) £16,000 Although this proposal is funded by the Public Health grant, feedback has not uncovered any 
further issues which would prevent the council from proceeding with this proposal.  
To proceed with this savings proposal, without any modifications.

P
age 54



Budget Proposals 2016/17:   Summary of Recommendations as result of feedback on the impact of budget proposals – for Full Council meeting 1 March 2016

Service 
area

Proposal Total Budget 
2015/16

Initial proposed 
saving 2016/17

Finalised proposed 
saving 2016/17

Recommendation

C&EP Reduction to Healthy Eating 
Programme in Schools

£20,000 £10,000 (50%) £0 Feedback has not uncovered any further issues which would prevent the council from 
proceeding with this proposal.   However, given that the Public Health grant has been ring-
fenced for a further two years it is recommended that this service continue to be funded at an 
annual sum of £20,000.
To continue to fund this service at the current level.

SSU Relate £6,468 £6,468 (100%) £0 Feedback has not uncovered any further issues which would prevent the council from 
proceeding with this proposal.   However, given that the Public Health budget has been ring 
fenced for a further two years it is suggested that the Council continue to fund this service at an 
annual sum of £6,468.
To continue to fund this service at the current level.

SSU Shopmobility £26,000 £12,000 (46%) £0 Feedback has not uncovered any further issues which would prevent the council from 
proceeding with this proposal.  However, given that the Public Health grant has been ring-fenced 
for a further two years it is recommended that this service continue to be funded at an annual 
sum of £26,000.
To continue to fund this service at the current level.

PH&WB Smoking Cessation Service - 'Smoke 
Free Life'

£311,000 £32,000 (10.2%) £32,000 Although this proposal is funded by the Public Health grant, feedback has not uncovered any 
further issues which would prevent the council from proceeding with this proposal.  
To proceed with this savings proposal, without any modifications.

Education Special Needs Advice and Counselling 
Support (SNACS)

£10,000 £10,000 (100%) £0 Feedback has not uncovered any further issues which would prevent the council from 
proceeding with this proposal.  However, given that the Public Health grant has been ring-fenced 
for a further two years it is recommended that this service continue to be funded at an annual 
sum of £10,000.
To continue to fund this service at the current level.

PH&WB Thames Valley Positive Support £13,000 £7,000 (54%) £7,000 Although this proposal is funded by the Public Health grant, feedback has not uncovered any 
further issues which would prevent the council from proceeding with this proposal.  
To proceed with this savings proposal, without any modifications.

PH&WB The Edge £168,000 £42,900 (25%) £14,000 Although this proposal is funded by the Public Health grant, it is recommended to that the 
service continue to be funded, but with a small reduction of £14,000 (8%).
To continue to fund this service with the proposed reduction.

PH&WB Youth Offending Team (YOT) £24,183 £24,183 (100%) £6,000 Although this proposal is funded by the Public Health grant, it is recommended that the service 
continue to be funded at a reduced annual sum of £18,183 (with a saving of £6,000 (25%)).
To continue to fund this service with the proposed reduction.

P
age 55



Budget Proposals 2016/17:   Summary of Recommendations as result of feedback on the impact of budget proposals – for Full Council meeting 1 March 2016

Income Proposals:

Service 
area

Proposal Total Income 
2015/16

Initial expected 
income 2016/17

Finalised expected 
income 2016/17

Recommendation

H&T Car Parks £2,952,190 £3,316,190
(Increase of 13.3%)

£3,316,190
(Increase of 13.3%)

Feedback has not uncovered any further issues which would prevent the council from 
proceeding with this proposal. It’s therefore recommended to implement this proposal with no 
changes.  
To proceed with this proposal.

P
age 56



Overview of Responses and Recommendations

NB: This overview and recommendation paper should be read in conjunction with the Summary of Responses and Verbatim Responses received in relation to this 
proposal, circulated electronically to all members alongside the agenda pack and published online on our Consultation Portal.

Budget Proposals 16/17: Short Breaks for Disabled Children Juliet Penley - Service 
Manager

16 February 2016
Version 3 (Council)

Proposal:   To reduce the funding for this service.

Total budget 15/16: £415,000 Recommended officer 
saving 16/17:

£345,000 (83%)

Initial proposed 
saving 16/17:

£345,000 (83%) Final recommendation to 
Council:

To proceed with this savings proposal.

Nos of responses:  58 responses were received, including 46 from parents or carers. The remainder were from organisations, members of the 
public and two Parish Councils (Tilehurst and Pangbourne).
In addition to the online formal consultation:

 Met with 8 providers of short breaks (contracts) on 30/11/15 and 4/12/15. These were Mencap, Crossroads, KIDS, 
Dingley, Homestart, Guideposts, National Autistic Society and PALS.

 9 parents attended an open meeting arranged by Parent Voice (parent participation organisation) 

 Parents views collated by Mencap and Crossroads (14)

 Petition online (via 38 degrees) with 3,173 signatures

 Healthwatch – advocating on behalf of Mencap Users and carers. They questioned whether the proposal in conflict with 
the priorities of the Health and Wellbeing Board and key challenges in regard to Section 25 of the Children and Young 
Persons Act and the spirit of Section 138 of the Local Government and Public Investment in Health Act 2007 and the 
Equality Act 2010

Key issues raised:   Budget reductions will severely affect the range and quantity of short breaks available to families. 
 Some services will close all together due to lack of council funding. This will affect families by not giving them a break 

from pressures of caring and not providing social and leisure opportunities to disabled children. 
 More families will suffer stress / go into crisis and require more specialised services. 
 More children will require residential services which will end up costing more and have negative impact on families.
 Proposal in conflict with the priorities of the Health and Wellbeing Board and key challenges in regard to Section 25 of the 

Children and Young Persons Act and the spirit of Section 138 of the Local Government and Public Investment in Health 
Act 2007 and the Equality Act 2010

P
age 57

http://www.westberks.gov.uk/consultations


Overview of Responses and Recommendations

NB: This overview and recommendation paper should be read in conjunction with the Summary of Responses and Verbatim Responses received in relation to this 
proposal, circulated electronically to all members alongside the agenda pack and published online on our Consultation Portal.

Budget Proposals 16/17: Short Breaks for Disabled Children Juliet Penley - Service 
Manager

16 February 2016
Version 3 (Council)

Equality issues:    None in addition to those expected.

Suggestion Council response Suggestions for 
reducing the 
impact on service 
users:

Some providers of services will look 
for alternative funding or charge for 
services

This would be an appropriate action to take 

Suggestion Council response Alternative options 
for applying the 
saving in this area: Ask Special schools to provide 

additional services
This would be appropriate to consider by the schools

Suggestions for 
how others may 
help contribute:  

Ask special schools to provide services and provide more personal budgets. We have also advised Healthwatch and others 
that we recognise the importance of working with partner providers to ensure as comprehensive a service is able to be 
maintained as possible as to help coordinate options to deliver as wide an offer as possible.

Officer conclusion 
as a result of the 
responses: 

Part of the feedback questioned whether the Council could meet its statutory obligations under the Children and Young 
Persons Act if these savings proposals were progressed.  The Council recognises that it will need to work even closer with its 
partners to ensure statutory compliance but is confident that this will be achievable.

Officer 
recommendation 
as a result of 
responses:  

Feedback has not uncovered any further issues which would prevent the council from proceeding with this proposal. It’s 
therefore recommended to implement this proposal with no changes. 

P
age 58

http://www.westberks.gov.uk/consultations


Budget Proposals 2016-17: Short Breaks for Disabled Children

Summary of Feedback Received and Key Findings

Why we consulted?

Over the last four years we have had to make savings of £23m because we’ve received less 
money from central government. We have done this by becoming more efficient at what we 
do, by reducing some of our administrative functions and increasing our income. Throughout 
this period we have done our best to protect front line services.

We now have to find another £20m over the next four years, with almost £11m to be found in 
2016/17. Much of this will come from further efficiencies within the council, but £4.6m will 
have to come from services that will impact the public. 

In order to inform the budget setting process for 2016/17 we published a list of those 
proposals which would likely have a direct impact on service users, and sought the views 
from those affected and interested:

 to understand the likely impact 
 to identify any measures to reduce their impact
 to explore any possible alternatives

Approach 

All the proposals were published on the council’s website on 3 November 2015 with 
feedback requested by 14 December 2015. Respondents were directed to a central index 
page, with a video message from the Chief Executive outlining the background to the 
exercise.

Information relating to this proposal was linked directly from this index page. This contained 
more detailed information on what was specifically proposed, information on what we 
thought the impact might be, as well as what else we had considered in developing and 
arriving at this proposal. Feedback was then invited through an online form, two meetings 
with providers of services, and a meeting for parents organised by a parent group and 
through a dedicated email address. 

Each individual budget proposal was placed on our Consultation Portal which automatically 
notified those registered that an exercise had been launched. Members of the West 
Berkshire community panel (around 800 people) and local stakeholder charities, 
representative groups and partner organisations were also emailed directly, notifying them of 
the exercise and inviting their contributions.  

Heads of Service made direct contact with those organisations affected by any of the budget 
proposals prior to them being made publically available.

A press release was issued on the same date, as well as publicised through Facebook and 
Twitter.

Page 59

http://info.westberks.gov.uk/index.aspx?articleid=31554
http://info.westberks.gov.uk/index.aspx?articleid=31554
http://info.westberks.gov.uk/index.aspx?articleid=28602


Budget Proposals 2016-17: Short Breaks for Disabled Children

Summary of Feedback Received and Key Findings

Background 

At present, our support for families with disabled children is provided through contractual 
arrangements from a range of partners. These partners are largely from local or national 
charity organisations and help provide a range of services, including short break residential 
respite, local activities and groups for children with disabilities and their families.

Much of this activity is non-statutory and can take different forms, such as:
 supporting children returning home from their out of district, residential school during 

the holidays 
 offering activities at weekends within peer group settings  
 providing regular respite care so children can be cared for close to home 
 supporting parents or carers in looking after their children at home

This activity is provided alongside the support families are able to receive through Direct 
Support Payment arrangements, and gives opportunities for many of the activities on offer 
for disabled children, to be subsidised.

At present, the service provides a range of support in different amounts and at different 
levels to children with additional needs and their families. This support is provided through a 
range of different contract arrangements, funded by the council, but delivered predominantly 
through external providers.

The proposal is to cease all the current contractual arrangements, in order to rationalise 
these arrangements; revising and reducing the breadth of the current provision and 
refocusing support to those children and families assessed to be in the greatest need.

It is also proposed to reduce council funding and deliver significantly more limited short 
breaks provision, whilst working with the community based organisations and charities to 
help provide support for those families who are most able to manage their own support 
arrangements for their disabled children. This will save the council £345,000.

Summary of Key Points 

58 responses were received, including 46 from parents or carers. The remainder were from 
organisations, members of the public and two Parish Councils (Tilehurst and Pangbourne).
The organisations that responded were:

 Homestart westberkshire  West Berkshire Mencap
 Parent Voice  Crossroads
 National Autistic Society  Unison
 Brookfields school  Oasis and Spectrum club (National 

Autistic Society)

In addition to the online formal consultation:

 Met with 8 providers of short breaks (contracts) on 30/11/15 and 4/12/15. These were 
Mencap, Crossroads, KIDS, Dingley, Homestart, Guideposts, National Autistic Society 
and PALS.

Page 60



Budget Proposals 2016-17: Short Breaks for Disabled Children

Summary of Feedback Received and Key Findings

 9 parents attended an open meeting arranged by Parent Voice (parent participation 
organisation) 

 Parents views collated by Mencap and Crossroads (14)

 Petition online (via 38 degrees) with 3,173 signatures

The feedback from parents and carers stressed the value and importance of services and 
they were against any reduction. Families stated how stressful caring for a disabled child 
could be and how these services were vital for providing respite and a break. Families also 
said that services were important for their children socially as they often provided only 
leisure or social activity they were able to use.

The ceasing of the council’s funding via contracts for short breaks will have a significant 
impact on the capacity of the organisations to continue to provide services to families. If 
there is no future funding then most organisations are likely to continue to provide a very 
limited range of services and will need to increase charges to cover costs. For larger 
organisations like Mencap and Crossroads, who provide services to the greatest number of 
children with disabilities, they say they will need to make staff redundant and close some 
services completely.

All feedback from families has said how much they value and rely on these short breaks 
services. Feedback also stated that these services were important to preventing family 
breakdown, the need for costly residential care and preventing family distress and stress.
Feedback from organisations stressed similar points as to the value and need for services.
Some organisations said they would continue in a smaller and different way. They could 
increase charges which may penalise the less well off and reduce range of services 
provided.

1. Are you, or anyone you care for, a user of this service?

There were 27 carers or parents that responded who were users; plus the other parent 
feedback as outlined above

2. What do you think we should be aware of in terms of how this proposal might 
impact people?

 Overall reduction in support to families with disabled children.
 Increased stress on families, more use of more costly and specialised services, 

more social isolation of disabled children. 
 Young People with SEN cannot access other services. Loss of confidence if service 

lost
 Likely increase of family breakdown and use of residential care. 
 Very valued service, which is cost effective. 
 May lead to some organisations closing through loss of core funding.
 Families rely on these services, they trust them to care for their children with 

complex needs

3. Do you feel that this proposal will affect particular individuals more than others, 
and if so, how do you think we might help with this?

Page 61



Budget Proposals 2016-17: Short Breaks for Disabled Children

Summary of Feedback Received and Key Findings

It will particularly affect families with disabled children and disabled children 
themselves

4. Do you have any suggestions as to how this service might be delivered in a 
different way? If so, please provide details.

Generally responses were against any reduction in services. More personal budgets to
be made available, peer support, charities could work together in a more effective way.

5. Is there any way that you, or your organisation, can contribute in helping to 
alleviate the impact of this proposal?  If so, please provide details of how you 
can help.

Some organisations said they could apply for grants elsewhere although this is very 
challenging and loss of core council funding does impact this sometimes. Some 
organisations said they could increase changes

6. Do you have any suggestions on how we can best identify other sources of 
support and alternative arrangements, breaks and activities for families and 
their children with disabilities?  If so, please provide details.

The current range are good and don’t need changing, provide more personal budgets, 
Special schools could run after school clubs and holiday care.

7. Any further comments?

This will end up costing the council more in long run because of the increased likely 
need for more specialised services.
The council is not facing up to its responsibilities and statutory requirements,
The council must protect services to children with autism

Conclusion 

There appears no additional information from feedback to lead to this proposal not 
proceeding as planned

Please note: In order to allow everyone who wished the opportunity to contribute, feedback 
was not sampled. Therefore this wasn’t a quantitative, statistically valid exercise. It was 
neither the premise, purpose, nor within the capability of the exercise, to determine the 
overall community’s level of support, or views on the proposals, with any degree of 
confidence. 

The feedback captured therefore should be seen in the context of ‘those who responded’, 
rather than reflective of the wider community. 

All the responses have been provided verbatim as an appendix to this report. Whilst this 
summary seeks to distil the key, substantive points made, it should also be read in 
conjunction with the more detailed verbatim comments to ensure a full, rounded perspective 
of the views and comments are considered. 

Page 62



Budget Proposals 2016-17: Short Breaks for Disabled Children

Summary of Feedback Received and Key Findings

Juliet Penley
Service Manager

Children and Families Service
8 January 2016
Version 1 (CB)

Page 63



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 64



Budget Proposals 2016/17: Short Breaks for Disabled Children | Verbatim Responses | 1

ID Group / 
organisation 
responding 
on behalf of 
(if 
applicable):

Are you, or is 
anyone you 
care for, a 
user of this 
service?

What do you think we should be 
aware of, in terms of how this 
proposal might impact people?

Do you feel that this proposal will 
affect particular individuals more 
than others, and if so, how do 
you think we might help with 
this?

Do you have any 
suggestions as to how 
this service might be 
delivered in a different 
way?  If so, please 
provide details.

Is there any way that 
you or your 
organisation can 
contribute in helping 
to alleviate the impact 
of this proposal? If so, 
please provide details 
of how you can help.

Do you have any 
suggestions on how we 
can best identify other 
sources of support and 
alternative 
arrangements, breaks 
and activities for families 
and their children with 
disabilities?  If so, 
please provide details.

Any further comments?

1  Yes A reduction of £345,000 is a significant 
amount to cut. Ceasing these contracts 
will effectively shut down these existing 
services which are supported by this 
funding.  The impact to these families 
and children with additional needs will 
be devastating as there is already a 
shortage of services out there at the 
moment.

This proposal will deeply affect the 
family & careers of children with 
additional needs. It is not just the 
children which are affected, but their 
family & everyone around who 
support them who will take on 
additional stress.    Helping these 
families can be achieved by not 
cutting this funding especially in 
such a drastic manner without any 
concrete transition plans to a 
replacement service of equal quality 
& access.

This is hard to say as 
there are varying services.  
A clear transition to 
replacement services 
would be helpful.

  I believe these existing charities 
& organisation which deliver 
these services are best placed 
to as this is their specialist skills. 
Bring this back in house to the 
council would create a 
significant ramp to match the 
existing services currently 
available.

2  Yes Oasis Youth Club for young people with 
autism would close.  I set the club up so 
fully understand the financials and know 
that voluntary income will not sustain it.    
Befriending for young people with 
autism would close.    And what else is 
there for young people with autism in 
West Berks - nothing.    This will 
detrimentally impact around 30 young 
people with autism and another  100 or 
so parents and siblings.

Yes  Young people with autism at 
the Oasis Club or in Befriending 
have no alternative provision.  
Schools or Youth Groups do not 
give these youngsters the ability to 
relax and make friends - the fact 
that they are with neuro-typical 
people means that the young people 
with autism remain tense and 
stressed as they try to conform.  
The don't need to at Oasis.    
Befriending is a life line too.  The 
ability todo something with a trained 
and carefully matched adult allows 
the child to do thinfs without their 
parents, building self esteem and 
confidence.  And it is a massive 
break for parents that otherwise are 
unlikely to get any break from caring 
for often very challenging yound 
people.

Both services are already 
very heavily reliant on 
volunteers.  Reduction or 
removal of funding would 
lead to closure.

See above - the 
services will close.  I 
have dedicated a 
decade of my life to 
helping establish and 
run services for people 
with autism in West 
Berks, as have many 
other parents.  There is 
no more we can give.

Perhaps all members of 
Council could train as 
volunteers and take on 
running Oasis and 
Befriending!  More 
seriously it is appreciated 
how much councillors and 
others do give of their 
time.  West Berks could 
directly fund these two 
services in return for the 
significant West Berks 
savings made by the work 
of the National Autistic 
Society West Berks 
Branch volunteers

These two services run with 
extremely limited overhead, no 
building maintenance and no 
reserves.  If all after-school 
activities and youth groups are 
closing, if play parks are all 
being closed, if all other youth 
amenities are being shut, if all 
other support to vulnerable 
youngsters is being withdrawn - 
then and only then should 
support to young people with 
autism, who have no choice and 
no alternative, be removed

3  Yes The social impact this will have on the 
family as a whole! By cutting all these 
services you are at risk of putting more 
families at crisis point due to not having 
enough or any support! 

  If there's is anything we 
can do to help or work 
with we will!  NAS west 
Berkshire branch!   

 I am a parent of a child with 
specials needs and I'm also a 
professional (family support 
worker) so I see both sides and 
the frustrations that comes with 
this! I constantly think of things I 
can do professionally to help my 
families I work with and this 
mainly just by giving them my 
time to talk etc! As a parent 
trying to   Find the right support 
is difficult to come by! By cutting 
what we do have would be 
detrimental! 

P
age 65



Budget Proposals 2016/17: Short Breaks for Disabled Children | Verbatim Responses | 2

ID Group / 
organisation 
responding 
on behalf of 
(if 
applicable):

Are you, or is 
anyone you 
care for, a 
user of this 
service?

What do you think we should be 
aware of, in terms of how this 
proposal might impact people?

Do you feel that this proposal will 
affect particular individuals more 
than others, and if so, how do 
you think we might help with 
this?

Do you have any 
suggestions as to how 
this service might be 
delivered in a different 
way?  If so, please 
provide details.

Is there any way that 
you or your 
organisation can 
contribute in helping 
to alleviate the impact 
of this proposal? If so, 
please provide details 
of how you can help.

Do you have any 
suggestions on how we 
can best identify other 
sources of support and 
alternative 
arrangements, breaks 
and activities for families 
and their children with 
disabilities?  If so, 
please provide details.

Any further comments?

4  Yes Children with complex needs such as 
severe learning disabilities, Autism and 
associated challenging behaviours who 
function about 10 years below their 
mainstream peers, accessing standard 
community activities is utterly 
impossible. With this level of need, even 
accessing most of the provision for 
'special needs' children and YP is often 
also almost impossible. However, with 
the specialised 1-1 support that Mencap 
playschemes and clubs can provide, 
such children and YP can access 
appropriate activities with vital contact 
with their peers.     The 'by product' of 
these rich, rare but immensely valuable 
opportunities for the child /YP also 
comes the almost equally important 
opportunity for parents and carers to 
take a break from their relentless 
responsibilities. Particularly during 
school holiday periods, such breaks 
from these immensely demanding 
duties, is not just beneficial for the 
parent / carer, I would say that it is 
utterly essential.

I think that it will affect young people 
with complex needs and severe 
disabilities in their teenage years 
more than the younger children. I 
believe this because the gap 
between them and their peers is for 
ever growing wider and wider, their 
behaviours can be growing severely 
anti social, their size makes them 
even more difficult to manage safely 
in general community settings and I 
think that the general public are far 
far less tolerant and accepting of 
large teenage children displaying 
antisocial behaviours than they are 
of younger, 'cuter' children who may 
have similar disabilities.     I think 
that it is essential that the After 
School Club, Youth Club and 
holiday playschemes continue to be 
funded but I think that by far the 
most important provisions are the 
holiday playschemes as it is during 
this time that parents lose the vital 
support of the school team and can 
be left caring single handedly for 
their child / YP for days or weeks on 
end, and I know that delivering 
consistently high quality care under 
such circumstances, without a 
break, is impossible.    

 I am already a foster 
carer providing care for 
only an allowance of 
roughly £500 a week 
which can easily include 
during school holidays 
over 100 hours of 
waking care. I used to 
also provide respite and 
shared care for other 
children with disabilities 
until this became too 
difficult to manage for 
my full time placement 
child. I have no more 
capacity and need WB 
to maintain respite 
provisions to support 
me in the care of the 
child they have placed 
with me. 

Maintain and increase 
funding to support the 
Special Schools to provide 
care during school holiday 
periods. This will prevent 
parents and carers having 
to move our children into 
privately run residential 
schools. 

My child is already in foster 
care. He has been placed full 
time with me for 7 years and I 
know that I am saving the LA an 
absolute fortune by proving 
care, single handedly, in my 
own home. The thought that 
these services at Mencap are 
going to be taken away from a 
child who already has the LA 
with full parental responsibility 
seems to me to be beyond short 
sighted. 

5  Yes This proposal will take away a vital 
support system to parents with disabled 
children. Numerous activities including 
holiday camps, after school clubs will be 
terminated as a result of this. Disabled 
children who attend the Castle School 
will no longer have an after school club 
which they can attend and be safe at. 
Every other school and 'non disabled' 
child has these facilities available to 
them. I cannot understand how it is fair 
to remove this from the most vulnerable 
people in the district.     One of the 
Council's core aims is to 'safeguard 
vulnerable children and adults'. By even 
proposing this type of budget cut you 
have failed miserably in achieving this.

Yes disabled children are going to 
be severely affect by this where as 
non disabled children will not be 
affected at all by the budget cuts.     
You are punishing children and 
parents who find life more of a 
struggle to being with!    Re-instate 
the funding is the only way to help 
with this.

   It is a disgrace the way in which 
the Council is prepared to shrug 
off and reduce it's responsibility 
to disabled children. Proposals 
like this make it an 
embarrassment to work for the 
Council.     The people making 
this decision have no idea of the 
consequences it will cause and 
are too narrow minded to listen 
to how this is going to affect 
people. In particular the former 
leader, Gordon Lundie has 
acted disgracefully in his attack 
on charities (Mencap). The 
basis of his attack was formed 
on a complete lack of 
understanding of financial 
accounts. A formal apology for 
this should be issued.

P
age 66



Budget Proposals 2016/17: Short Breaks for Disabled Children | Verbatim Responses | 3

ID Group / 
organisation 
responding 
on behalf of 
(if 
applicable):

Are you, or is 
anyone you 
care for, a 
user of this 
service?

What do you think we should be 
aware of, in terms of how this 
proposal might impact people?

Do you feel that this proposal will 
affect particular individuals more 
than others, and if so, how do 
you think we might help with 
this?

Do you have any 
suggestions as to how 
this service might be 
delivered in a different 
way?  If so, please 
provide details.

Is there any way that 
you or your 
organisation can 
contribute in helping 
to alleviate the impact 
of this proposal? If so, 
please provide details 
of how you can help.

Do you have any 
suggestions on how we 
can best identify other 
sources of support and 
alternative 
arrangements, breaks 
and activities for families 
and their children with 
disabilities?  If so, 
please provide details.

Any further comments?

6  No Families in difficulty rely on this service. 
Looking after a child with disabilities is 
extremely hard work and without the 
respite services Mencap provides many 
families will struggle. Some to the extent 
that their child may need to be looked 
after by the local authority (ultimately 
costing more both in terms of money 
and in human suffering).

Some individuals rely more heavily 
on Mencaps services, either be 
ause their children have more 
complex needs or because they 
have no family support to fall back 
on. These families will need to 
continue having respite provided or 
their families may end up breaking 
down.

    

7 West 
Berkshire 
Mencap

No I will be completing this survey on behalf 
of West Berkshire Mencap although 
many of the comments have been 
agreed by some of the other 
organisations involved in this cut.    We 
have received a letter terminating all 
Short Breaks that we provide and this 
will impact our families hugely.  We have 
over 3000 names on our petition which 
is still growing and both myself and 
other staff are being contacted daily by 
different parents/carers most of whom 
are desperate at the thought of losing 
their respite.  There are people who will 
have to give up work and go onto 
benefits.  Some of the families have said 
that they will no longer be able to keep 
their children with them which is 
incredibly hard for them.  I believe that 
this is a very short term cut, the benefits 
of which will be lost if one child goes into 
care.  These families do not want to lose 
their children but feel that they have no 
choice.  We are regularly described as a 
lifeline for the families.    The impact will 
be huge.  We will close our children's 
services except for a couple of projects 
that have different funding.  We will lose 
our staff and volunteers, many have 
been with us for years and know the 
young people very well.  We regularly 
take children that no one else feels able 
to take because they are too challenging 
or their health needs are too high.      
The benefits are not jut for the children 
and families, the children socialise and 
get to enjoy experiences that children 
without disabilities may take for granted.   
Families get to spend time with siblings 
after school and during playschemes etc 
and also we have a huge number of 
young volunteers recruited from local 
schools that work on a one to one basis 
with each young person who attends.  

It will have a different impact on 
different individuals as they all have 
their own needs, complexities and 
challenges.  Not all of the young 
people and families are currently 
known to Social Services but they 
are far more likely to be known once 
they have their respite and short 
breaks cut.  I would think that Social 
Services are aware of the more 
challenging young people ie the 
2:1's etc and we would be able to sit 
with officers to compose a list of 
those who we think would be most 
affected.      We are often able to 
see the family as a whole and 
predict if there are issues that may 
be putting the family on the verge of 
breakdown, or indeed things are 
going well and help isnt needed.  
We would be prepared to share this 
information and indeed can direct 
people to the Disabled Childrens 
Team for help.  Currently we work 
as a buffer between the family and 
the Council and we resolve a lot of 
issues ourselves.  However this has 
become more difficult since 55% of 
our Family Advisor funds were cut 
and it will be virtually impossible 
once the Short Break money is cut.  
We are spending our reserves on a 
Family Adviser currently as the role 
is vital but this wont be sustainable 
so we will need to be sending more 
families to Social Care for the help 
that they need.

I think that the way 
WBMencap has been 
delivering short breaks 
and respite have worked 
very well.  There are a 
number of our young 
people that are not able to 
access Castlegate 
because of their 
challenging behaviour and 
we take them on.  What I 
understand from the 
parents and carers is that 
they need regular respite 
that can be relied on, they 
like their young people to 
socialise as much as 
possible whilst remaining 
safe and happy.  With us 
they can socialise with 
their peers as well as their 
volunteers.      Castlegate 
offers a good service to 
the people it takes but we 
need much more respite.  
After School club and Play 
Scheme are the most 
popular and needed 
services that we offer and 
parents have asked if they 
can have more of these.  
They have also asked 
about a transition group 
which we have tried to 
start but reached a 
standstill re transport.  
The local authority offers it 
to another organisation 
but we havent got very far 
ourselves in getting 
transport from Newbury 
College to The Slater 
Centre in Bone Lane.  

We are fortunate in that 
we are able to provide a 
lot of added value to our 
short breaks/respite 
through the use of our 
young volunteers and 
fundraising.  Therefore 
services which cost over 
£150 per session are 
heavily subsidised so 
that parents only pay 
£25 per session, this is 
for the Greenfields 
playscheme for children 
with severe health 
needs that we were 
asked to provide by 
Social Services.  
Because we are a 
charity we are able to 
apply for grants that will 
help give added value to 
the schemes we provide 
such as trips out, 
entertainment, extra 
services etc.  However 
we need the core 
element that has been 
cut as it provides us 
with sustainability 
including the ability to 
retain our trained staff.      
We are always happy to 
discuss if you think that 
there are areas that we 
could develop that 
would tie in with 
something you feel is 
needed as long it is 
within our remit to 
provide and we have 
the resources or we 
believe we can try to 
grant fund for it.  

I would think that you have 
the best knowledge in that 
area ie West Berkshire 
Mencap, Crossroads, 
Castlegate etc.

To be frank this has been a very 
difficult time.  To receive the 
letter of termination which was 
very short and to the point was 
a shock.  We appeared to have 
been left off the email 
communications re 
consultations for a long while 
and the whole process has 
been extremely difficult in many 
ways.  We are trying to 
encourage and support parents 
who are panicking, trying to 
keep our staff so that services 
can continue whilst not knowing 
anything ourselves.      I was 
sent a copy of an email from 
Gordon Lundie to a parent 
which he copied to ALL 
councillors which had several 
'mistakes' in it including naming 
me personally as contacting the 
local paper and starting a PR 
war when in fact the paper 
contacted me and asked me to 
respond to Mr Lundies 
comments which were personal 
(and this will stay with me for 
ever) "Leila Ferguson is 
cynically using children with 
disabilities to further her own 
political aims".  That was both 
untrue and unnecessary and 
very hurtful.  However we need 
to work together to make 
provision for the  people that 
need it and we can do it with 
civility    Personally I feel that 
this is a dreadful time for all 
involved, the local authority has 
to make massive cuts and I truly 
sympathise but I feel it is very 
shortsighted to make cuts in this 
area which is so preventative 

P
age 67



Budget Proposals 2016/17: Short Breaks for Disabled Children | Verbatim Responses | 4

ID Group / 
organisation 
responding 
on behalf of 
(if 
applicable):

Are you, or is 
anyone you 
care for, a 
user of this 
service?

What do you think we should be 
aware of, in terms of how this 
proposal might impact people?

Do you feel that this proposal will 
affect particular individuals more 
than others, and if so, how do 
you think we might help with 
this?

Do you have any 
suggestions as to how 
this service might be 
delivered in a different 
way?  If so, please 
provide details.

Is there any way that 
you or your 
organisation can 
contribute in helping 
to alleviate the impact 
of this proposal? If so, 
please provide details 
of how you can help.

Do you have any 
suggestions on how we 
can best identify other 
sources of support and 
alternative 
arrangements, breaks 
and activities for families 
and their children with 
disabilities?  If so, 
please provide details.

Any further comments?

We offer huge amounts of training and 
the volunteers return regularly, often 
choosing careers based on their time 
with us.

and could lead to huge costs if 
not provided.  These costs 
would be financial to the local 
authority and emotional to the 
families involved.    Please don't 
make these cuts to the short 
break/respite, life is hard 
enough for these families and 
we help them to hang on and 
even enjoy family life.  Both our 
children's and our adult services 
are very much needed.

8 Pangbourne 
Parish Council

No This service is a life line for many 
families. it can support parents in many 
ways and provide much needed respite 
in a safe environment.  It is also vital, in 
many cases, for other family members 
to have the full attention of their parents 
for a period of time,

 This service should be 
rationalised with more 
liaison with charities and 
other voluntary agencies 
which provide help.

   

9 West 
Berkshire 
Parent Voice 

Yes   Parent Voice is West Berkshire parent 
carer participation charity. It has been 
running for about 16 months and is 
funded by the DfE through Contact A 
Family Nationally It has a website and 
regularly communicates with parents via 
Facebook and Twitter. We know many 
of our members have give feedback 
directly to the council however we felt it 
important to offer a evening session for 
those who wanted to discuss the 
proposals and be part of the Paent 
Voice community feedback.     We held 
the meeting on 30th November at St 
Johns Church rooms, it was advertised 
widely through our networks and those 
of our partners.     The feeling of the 
meeting was that the provision offered 
through short breaks is currently a 
minimum and would not withstand any 
cut.     Withhout maintaining the current 
service children and young people with 
Special Educational Needs and or a 
Disability will be significantly 
disadvantaged and will not be given the 
opportunity to ‘live ordinary lives’ as set 
out in the Children and Families Act 
2014 and the Equalities Act 2010.     
Accessing services currently is a 
challenge as the families service are 
oversubscribed with waiting lists in 
place.     

  Parent present felt children and 
young people with significant and 
complex needs receive very few 
services as it is, they are hard to 
place and are not able to make 
changes in placement as easily as 
other children, therefore any change 
has a huge and long lasting impact 
on the children, young people and 
their parent carers    Afterschool and 
Youth clubs were of great 
importance to the parents who 
attended. The Crossroads provision 
and Mencap was seen as essential 
services which should not be cut 
under any circumstances, they are a 
life line to children, young people 
and their parent carers.     Youth 
Clubs such as Spectrum, Oasis, and 
Cosmos provide the opportunity for 
young people to learn and practice a 
range of social skills, and for many 
in West Berkshire, both Mencap or 
Crossroads are their only services, 
and without it them will have no 
social outlet at all.       Parents and 
Young people at the meeting failed 
to see how the council can adhere 
to their Short Breaks statement as 
set out in the extract below should 
these cuts take place.     ‘West 
Berkshire Council is committed to 
working with its partners to make 

  Sadly the  feeling of the 
meeting was one of 
distrust of the council and 
therefore there was a 
reluctance to offer any 
solutions as they feel a 
distrust towards the 
council and are concerned 
any suggestions offered 
would been seen as an 
acceptance of any cuts 
which is not the situation 
at all.       The group were 
disappointed they had not 
been approached earlier 
and given the opportunity 
to work with the council 
from the ‘get go’ as set 
out in the Short Breaks 
statement above and 
supported by the Children 
Act 2014.     

It is not in Parent Voice 
gift to contribute directly 
to alleviate the impact of 
these cuts. We would 
have like to have been 
consulted earlier in the 
process and to have 
enable to council to 
acces parent to gain 
their views and ideas 
before the consultation 
process.      Of those 
present at the meeting 
100% have used the 
Short Break service but 
none had used the 
Local Offer and only 
one person had heard 
of it. We, like the 
government, see the 
Local Offer a crucial to 
parent accessing 
services. We know the 
resources for this site 
are also being reduced 
which will make it even 
more difficult to find 
suitable services.     To 
alleviate the impact 
Parent Voice would see 
continue support of the 
Local Offer is needed. 

    Council to take it back in 
house and use their own 
facilities and staff. Can 
base usage on known 
needs from disabled 
children’s team and SEN 
team.      Access lottery 
funding not just for sports!      
Increase access to 
‘normal’ provisions for 
children with milder special 
needs       Afterschool 
clubs in schools/ castle V 
disabled kids difficult to 
place in less specialised 
setting, set up    Buddy 
families to reduce cost of 
afterschool care and 
activities etc.    Swings and 
smiles to provide respite 
breaks     PIP (more 
expensive for councils and 
difficult to manage)        

    a couple of quotes from 
parents      ‘Short breaks are so, 
so important to us’     ‘The 
sitting service is the only break I 
get’     The meeting wanted the 
council to recognise many 
families are very, very isolated 
and stuck at home looking after 
children with very complex 
needs. Many were not able to 
attend the meeting as they have 
no one who can care for their 
children while they have just an 
hour off.     Short breaks are an 
essential service not an added 
extra, parents felt that without 
this support there would be 
more family breakdown which in 
turn would cost the council even 
more money.      The meeting 
asked that  we shout as loud a 
possible    PLEASE DONT 
MAKE THESE CUTS, THESE 
ARE SOME OF  THE MOST 
DISADVANTAGED FAMILIES 
WHO CAN NOT WITHSTAND 
A  CUT IN SHORT BREAKS.     

P
age 68



Budget Proposals 2016/17: Short Breaks for Disabled Children | Verbatim Responses | 5

ID Group / 
organisation 
responding 
on behalf of 
(if 
applicable):

Are you, or is 
anyone you 
care for, a 
user of this 
service?

What do you think we should be 
aware of, in terms of how this 
proposal might impact people?

Do you feel that this proposal will 
affect particular individuals more 
than others, and if so, how do 
you think we might help with 
this?

Do you have any 
suggestions as to how 
this service might be 
delivered in a different 
way?  If so, please 
provide details.

Is there any way that 
you or your 
organisation can 
contribute in helping 
to alleviate the impact 
of this proposal? If so, 
please provide details 
of how you can help.

Do you have any 
suggestions on how we 
can best identify other 
sources of support and 
alternative 
arrangements, breaks 
and activities for families 
and their children with 
disabilities?  If so, 
please provide details.

Any further comments?

sure a wide range and type of short 
breaks are available to families.   
The council will;  1. Ensure that we 
listen to all disabled children, act on 
their views, and provide   them with 
choices - West Berkshire’s Short 
Break Statement   2. Ensure all 
disabled children and their families 
are supported to take part in   and 
enjoy local community life, wherever 
possible using local childcare              
facilities, leisure and recreational 
activities  3. Ensure that as parents 
and carers you are supported to 
become equal   partners in making 
decisions about service 
development and priorities, so we   
work together to 'get better'  4. 
Ensure we provide you with useful 
information when you need it’    All 
of the above will help to ensure that 
we meet the requirements of the 
Disability   Discrimination Acts (1995 
and 2005).   “West Berkshire 
Council is committed to equality of 
opportunity.   We will treat everyone 
with respect, regardless of race, 
disability, gender, age,   religion or 
sexual orientation.”       Parents at 
the meeting felt the Short Breaks 
statement had been totally 
disregarded. They all felt this has 
been illustrated by the recent action 
of the council in:  • Sending out 
letters of notice to providers prior to 
any consultation with children, 
young people, parents, carers or 
providers.   • The consultation 
process entered into by the council 
taking  place over a shorter period 
than that recommended by the 
National Governments’ Compact 
guidelines as it is over six weeks 
compared to the 12 weeks 
recommended in the guidance  • 
The consultation period is taking 
place during the very busy run up to 
Christmas.   • No consultation 
events have been held by the 
council to gain the views of parent 
carers and young people.   

P
age 69



Budget Proposals 2016/17: Short Breaks for Disabled Children | Verbatim Responses | 6

ID Group / 
organisation 
responding 
on behalf of 
(if 
applicable):

Are you, or is 
anyone you 
care for, a 
user of this 
service?

What do you think we should be 
aware of, in terms of how this 
proposal might impact people?

Do you feel that this proposal will 
affect particular individuals more 
than others, and if so, how do 
you think we might help with 
this?

Do you have any 
suggestions as to how 
this service might be 
delivered in a different 
way?  If so, please 
provide details.

Is there any way that 
you or your 
organisation can 
contribute in helping 
to alleviate the impact 
of this proposal? If so, 
please provide details 
of how you can help.

Do you have any 
suggestions on how we 
can best identify other 
sources of support and 
alternative 
arrangements, breaks 
and activities for families 
and their children with 
disabilities?  If so, 
please provide details.

Any further comments?

10  No Keep KIDS UK & Crossroads  -  
weekend breaks for children/young 
people with Learning Difficulties  -  there 
is no alternative that can take this on.    
You cannot just access and pay  -  it 
would not exist!

     

11  Yes No breaks for families with a young 
person with Learning Difficulties who do 
not meet the criteria under the Social 
Care Disabled Children's Team....or 
don't want a full service just a little break 
instead.

Yes  -   as above.    It would cost far 
more money if these families then 
requested assessment by DCT and 
met the criteria.....or went into crisis 
due to losing this small service.

Using the voluntary sector 
is always far cheaper than 
using any internal service.    
Spend a little to prevent 
crisis...saves loads than 
reacting to crisis!

 This service is vital....so 
many children & young 
people have a little break 
to learn independent skills, 
away from mum/dad, and 
the rest of the family have 
a break to re-charge their 
batteries to carry on for 
another year!

 

12 West 
Berkshire 
Mencap

Yes Our daughter, xxx, is 6 years old. She is 
severely disabled and has complex 
health needs. She has just failed to 
meet the Continuing Health Care 
criteria, though she has been eligible for 
this since she was first assessed when 
very young, so we are even more 
concerned about the proposed loss of 
service from West Berkshire Mencap in 
Newbury.  West Berkshire Mencap has 
become a core provider of care for xxx 
over the last few years. xxx has been 
looked after by a small team of people 
whom she has come to know and 
recognise, which is obviously important 
for her happiness. As she has such 
complex health needs and she is unable 
to communicate, it is vital she is looked 
after by people who have known her for 
a long period of time, who are tuned in 
to her. This is because they need to 
know if she is some discomfort, for 
example, and very importantly if she is 
becoming unwell as she can require 
immediate transfer to hospital. She has 
had two ICU admissions this year from 
chest infections.  We moved house two 
years ago so xxx could have adapted 
living. This has required an increased 
mortgage and so we both need to work. 
We are both teachers at Kennet School. 
My husband works full time and I work 
part time. The hours I work fit well with 
hospital appointments and if xxx is ill in 
hospital it has allowed us to manage this 
and looking after xxx’s younger brother, 
as well as allowing me to get shopping, 
housework etc done. As such, we are 

This is difficult to answer. For 
families like us, with a child with 
such high and complex needs, it 
removes a vital part of the network 
of support that gives us the chance 
to function as a family. For others, 
who receive no additional support, it 
removes ALL their support. The 
thing you need to understand is that 
an organization like Mencap, as a 
specialist, can tailor their support to 
individual needs. It will hit all 
families very hard. What would be 
the gain of having someone new 
learn all about xxx’s and other 
children’s needs; and surely it is 
extremely difficult for children with 
autism (not xxx) to become 
familiarised with new people and 
surroundings.

Not really. Mencap does a 
good, cost-efficient job, as 
it is partly staffed by 
volunteers, and does its 
own fund-raising. West 
Berks is a small district, 
and there cannot be many 
alternative providers 
locally. To go out of the 
area is bound to be costly. 
We have past experience 
of respite provided by 
foster-carers: they are 
hard to come by, are 
rarely specialists in 
children like xxx, the 
relationship can break 
down, and it can involve 
long distances (in one 
case we had to take xxx 
to central Reading for 
short respite breaks 
provided by foster-carers). 
Castle School might take 
on a role in after-school 
clubs, but it is difficult 
think of anything else. In-
home care has its place, 
but this option means our 
daughter will hardly get 
out of the house, and not 
be able to access the 
specialist facilities and 
social options Mencap 
has. Social exclusion is a 
real issue for families like 
us.

No. As a hard-pressed 
family we have neither 
the time nor the 
financial resources for 
this.

See responses to question 
5

Our understanding is that most 
of these services under threat 
actually fulfill your statutory 
obligations, which Mencap are 
merely delivering on your behalf 
as part of a contractual 
agreement. Some of the 
confrontational language used 
by Mr Lundie, on behalf of the 
council, has been dreadful. 
Furthermore, we were promised 
by David Cameron that 
vulnerable families like us would 
not be targeted by the austerity 
measures, and yet this 
threatens to hit us very hard. 
The term ‘short breaks’ can, to 
outsiders, imply that these are 
somehow ‘holidays’ when in fact 
they are a vital means of 
support in helping families like 
us cope, and children like xxx 
exercise their right to equality.

P
age 70



Budget Proposals 2016/17: Short Breaks for Disabled Children | Verbatim Responses | 7

ID Group / 
organisation 
responding 
on behalf of 
(if 
applicable):

Are you, or is 
anyone you 
care for, a 
user of this 
service?

What do you think we should be 
aware of, in terms of how this 
proposal might impact people?

Do you feel that this proposal will 
affect particular individuals more 
than others, and if so, how do 
you think we might help with 
this?

Do you have any 
suggestions as to how 
this service might be 
delivered in a different 
way?  If so, please 
provide details.

Is there any way that 
you or your 
organisation can 
contribute in helping 
to alleviate the impact 
of this proposal? If so, 
please provide details 
of how you can help.

Do you have any 
suggestions on how we 
can best identify other 
sources of support and 
alternative 
arrangements, breaks 
and activities for families 
and their children with 
disabilities?  If so, 
please provide details.

Any further comments?

reliant on xxx’s place at Mencap After 
School Club on Mondays and 
Wednesdays while I am at school. The 
staff also give xxx her tea and get her in 
her pyjamas. This takes away some of 
the high ‘workload’ we have looking after 
xxx, as when home she requires 
medicines, fluid, nappy changes every 
half hour to hour up until after 10pm. xxx 
needs to be checked in the night and so 
we always have interrupted sleep, so 
this bit of help goes a long way for us. 
My husband has a high workload and I 
can get more work done at school due 
to this help.  xxx also accesses the 
Mencap holiday play schemes three 
days a week; and Saturday Club once a 
month. We believe very strongly that xxx 
has a right to socialise with other 
children without her parents there. She 
really enjoys these opportunities, smiling 
and interacting with others. xxx requires 
one to one to do anything and so this is 
very difficult for us to do at home without 
paying someone (if available) at a great 
deal of expense. If left she will sleep and 
then be more awake at night. These 
play schemes also give us a much 
needed break. It also allows xxx’s 
brother to spend quality time with us and 
for us all to be involved with activities we 
cannot do with xxx. This includes 
socialising with xxx’s friends and 
participation in exercise, which we find 
helps our mental wellbeing, which we 
both have some difficulty with due to 
xxx’s high care needs and fragile health.   
To be frank, I am concerned about our 
ability to cope looking after xxx if 
Mencap’s services cease. This is not 
something I ever thought we would have 
to explain to somebody.  

13 West 
Berkshire 
Green Party

No It is clear from the comments of people 
who use this service that it would cause 
considerable distress to remove it.

 The former council 
leader's grotesquely 
misjudged and very public 
attacks on Mencap, which 
were followed by his swift 
departure from office, 
contained the repeated 
suggestion that the charity 
should use its reserves to 
fund the services it 
provides.    We suggest 

   

P
age 71



Budget Proposals 2016/17: Short Breaks for Disabled Children | Verbatim Responses | 8

ID Group / 
organisation 
responding 
on behalf of 
(if 
applicable):

Are you, or is 
anyone you 
care for, a 
user of this 
service?

What do you think we should be 
aware of, in terms of how this 
proposal might impact people?

Do you feel that this proposal will 
affect particular individuals more 
than others, and if so, how do 
you think we might help with 
this?

Do you have any 
suggestions as to how 
this service might be 
delivered in a different 
way?  If so, please 
provide details.

Is there any way that 
you or your 
organisation can 
contribute in helping 
to alleviate the impact 
of this proposal? If so, 
please provide details 
of how you can help.

Do you have any 
suggestions on how we 
can best identify other 
sources of support and 
alternative 
arrangements, breaks 
and activities for families 
and their children with 
disabilities?  If so, 
please provide details.

Any further comments?

that the council follows 
this advice, at least for 
2016/17.

14 Parent Yes There is families that use the service 
that can not get direct payments but do 
still need respite. I feel that some 
families that can not get this help are the 
ones or are just coping at present but 
without the services, may not cope. So 
they end up in crisis. How does that 
benefit anyone.

The people that can not get 
personal budgets because they will 
not get the help. The only thing that 
would help is to change criteria for 
getting a social worker.

  Grants made available and 
easier to access.

I think a lot of parents with 
disabled children find life hard 
enough trying to find people you 
trust with your children and 
money is tight because not 
everyone can go back to work, 
some people work only because 
you trust the people you leave 
your child with. If all these 
services disappear, what 
happens to our children they 
spend all their time at school 
and home and no social life at 
all.

15 Parent Yes There are families around that cannot 
apply to have Direct Payments, as they 
cannot get Social Worker support. 
These are the people who will really 
suffer as they have been able to access 
respite before, but will priced out by 
considering to pay privately. Because 
these families cannot get support from a 
Social Worker are basically being 
punished by just about coping with the 
behaviour of their disabled children.

It will affect the families that cannot 
get Direct Payments and will 
therefore would have to consider 
paying privately.     Changing the 
rules to enable Social Worker 
support to be accessed by more 
families including those to appear to 
be coping. Making grants available 
to those families who cannot get 
Direct Payments.

If the cuts are carried out, 
then there are not other 
ways as Children's 
Centres are also being 
closed and staff being 
made redundant.

 Grants to be made 
available for short breaks 
as not all families can get 
Direct Payments. 

The council boasts that they 
look after Carers. If these cuts 
are carried out, then some 
families may be put into crisis 
and their children may be put at 
risk of harm as some families 
may not know which way to 
turn. On the other side, Carers 
may be put at risk as their 
children's behaviour may push 
them to the limit. It is amazing 
that one day in the holidays can 
help Carers recharge and get 
through the holidays. Do the 
council want injuries or maybe 
even deaths on their 
conscience.

16  Yes Xxx my twelve year old son has 
autism.He goes to the after school club 
twice a week and the the holiday clubs 
during the school holidays.  He is a only 
child and has no friends in the 
neighbourhood  and his only social 
interaction is going to Mencap.  If 
Mencap  ends the facilities for children, 
he may go backwards in his social 
development  and be in the world autism 
for the rest of his life.

All disabled children at Mencap.  All 
parents,carers and siblings.  

Personal budgets for 
disabled children through 
the council.

Would pay a higher 
contribution for the 
facility

Feel Mencap have the 
expertise and value to 
continue with facility

 

P
age 72



Budget Proposals 2016/17: Short Breaks for Disabled Children | Verbatim Responses | 9

ID Group / 
organisation 
responding 
on behalf of 
(if 
applicable):

Are you, or is 
anyone you 
care for, a 
user of this 
service?

What do you think we should be 
aware of, in terms of how this 
proposal might impact people?

Do you feel that this proposal will 
affect particular individuals more 
than others, and if so, how do 
you think we might help with 
this?

Do you have any 
suggestions as to how 
this service might be 
delivered in a different 
way?  If so, please 
provide details.

Is there any way that 
you or your 
organisation can 
contribute in helping 
to alleviate the impact 
of this proposal? If so, 
please provide details 
of how you can help.

Do you have any 
suggestions on how we 
can best identify other 
sources of support and 
alternative 
arrangements, breaks 
and activities for families 
and their children with 
disabilities?  If so, 
please provide details.

Any further comments?

17 West 
Berkshire 
Parent Voice 

Yes Parent Voice a participation service 
based in the Voluntary Sector initiated 
about 16 months ago, it is funding with 
DfE monies through the National charity 
Contact A Family.    The service has 
made contact with all of its users with 
regard to the consultation, many have 
replied directly through the councils 
portal others have emailed or attended 
an open event held on the 30th 
Novemeber in Newbury.    It is from all 
of the feedback and on behalf of the 
group this response if given.     The 
feeling of the meeting was that the 
provision offered through short breaks is 
currently a minimum and would not 
withstand any cut.    Without maintaining 
the current service children and young 
people with Special Educational needs 
and or a Disability will be significantly 
disadvantaged and will not be given the 
opportunity to ‘live ordinary lives’ as set 
out in the Children and Families Act 
2014 and the Equalities Act 2010.     
Accessing services currently is a 
challenge as the families services are 
oversubscribed with waiting lists in 
place.       Of those present at the 
meeting 100% have used the Short 
Break service but none had used the 
Local Offer and only one person had 
heard of it.     the services used were as 
follows:  Mencap   –     Afterschool Club   
Crossroads – Shorts breaks                         
Stay at Butlin’s                         Day trips 
during holidays     Pals                
Afterschool club                         Daytrips 
during the holiday clubs                          
Residential holiday trips       Buddies          
Volunteers to accompany child to 
mainstream activities                         
Dingley            Currently provision for 
under 5’s        SPECTRUM, OASIS, 
COSMOS       Weekly meetings for ASD 
so valuable for providing friendship                                                               
opportunities and developing social 
skills.        

  Parent present felt children and 
young people with significant and 
complex needs receive very few 
services as it is, they are hard to 
place and are not able to make 
changes in placement as easily as 
other children, therefore any change 
has a huge and long lasting impact 
on the children, young people and 
their parent carers.    The meeting 
recognised that many parents were 
unable to attend the consultation 
event as they were stuck at home 
caring for their children and young 
people. Those present spoke on 
their behalf: there is currently little 
rest-bite care with many having no 
break from their care role outside of 
school hours and for some school 
attendance was limited as their 
children and young people were 
often too ill to attend.    It was felt 
that young people were the most 
disadvantage in the community with 
little or no opportunities for 
socialising. Maintaining the current 
provision was seen as essential.      
Afterschool and Youth clubs were of 
great importance to the parents who 
attended. The Crossroads provision 
and Mencap was seen as essential 
services which should not be cut 
under any circumstances, they are a 
life line to children, young people 
and their parent carers.     Youth 
Clubs such as Spectrum, Oasis, and 
Cosmos provide the opportunity for 
young people to learn and practice a 
range of social skills, and for many 
in West Berkshire, both Mencap or 
Crossroads are their only services, 
and without it them will have no 
social outlet at all.     Parents and 
Young people at the meeting failed 
to see how the council can adhere 
to their Short Breaks statement as 
set out in the extract below should 
these cuts take place.       ‘West 
Berkshire Council is committed to 
working with its partners to make 
sure a wide range and type of short 
breaks are available to families.   
The council will;  1. Ensure that we 

The feeling of the meeting 
was one of distrust of the 
council and therefore 
there was a reluctance to 
offer any solutions as they 
were concerned any 
suggestions offered would 
been seen as an 
acceptance of any cuts 
which is not the situation 
at all.     The group were 
disappointed they had not 
been approached earlier 
and given the opportunity 
to work with the council 
from the ‘get go’ as set 
out in the Short Breaks 
statement above and 
supported by the Children 
Act 2014.     The only 
suggestions offered were 
to use reserves held by 
the council to continue to 
provide the short breaks 
services. 

Parent Voice is currently 
and will in the future be 
happy to consult it 
members and give 
feedback on all aspects 
of the councils work. It 
is fair to say we were 
disappointed to hear 
indirectly of the intention 
to cut service and find it 
hard to support the 
council work when the a 
partnership approach is 
diluted in such a way. It 
would have been a lot 
easier to have managed 
our member's dismay if 
we had know earlier and 
been able to share the 
council  a strategic view 

  use personal budgets 
through PIP (more 
expensive for councils and 
difficult to manage)    
Increase access to 
‘normal’ provisions for 
children with milder special 
needs     Afterschool clubs 
in schools/ castle     V 
disabled kids difficult to 
place in less specialised 
setting put in more 
resources to enable this to 
happen     Buddy families 
to reduce cost of 
afterschool care and 
activities etc.    Swings and 
smiles to provide respite 
breaks     Council to take it 
back in house and use 
their own facilities and 
staff. Can base usage on 
known needs from 
disabled children’s team 
and SEN team    Access 
lottery funding not just for 
sports!    

 

P
age 73



Budget Proposals 2016/17: Short Breaks for Disabled Children | Verbatim Responses | 10

ID Group / 
organisation 
responding 
on behalf of 
(if 
applicable):

Are you, or is 
anyone you 
care for, a 
user of this 
service?

What do you think we should be 
aware of, in terms of how this 
proposal might impact people?

Do you feel that this proposal will 
affect particular individuals more 
than others, and if so, how do 
you think we might help with 
this?

Do you have any 
suggestions as to how 
this service might be 
delivered in a different 
way?  If so, please 
provide details.

Is there any way that 
you or your 
organisation can 
contribute in helping 
to alleviate the impact 
of this proposal? If so, 
please provide details 
of how you can help.

Do you have any 
suggestions on how we 
can best identify other 
sources of support and 
alternative 
arrangements, breaks 
and activities for families 
and their children with 
disabilities?  If so, 
please provide details.

Any further comments?

listen to all disabled children, act on 
their views, and provide   them with 
choices - West Berkshire’s Short 
Break Statement   2. Ensure all 
disabled children and their families 
are supported to take part in   and 
enjoy local community life, wherever 
possible using local childcare              
facilities, leisure and recreational 
activities  3. Ensure that as parents 
and carers you are supported to 
become equal   partners in making 
decisions about service 
development and priorities, so we   
work together to 'get better'  4. 
Ensure we provide you with useful 
information when you need it’    All 
of the above will help to ensure that 
we meet the requirements of the 
Disability   Discrimination Acts (1995 
and 2005).   “West Berkshire 
Council is committed to equality of 
opportunity.   We will treat everyone 
with respect, regardless of race, 
disability, gender, age,   religion or 
sexual orientation.”     Parents at the 
meeting felt the Short Breaks 
statement had been totally 
disregarded. They all felt this has 
been illustrated by the recent action 
of the council in:  • Sending out 
letters of notice to providers prior to 
any consultation with children, 
young people, parents, carers or 
providers.   • The consultation 
process entered into by the council 
taking  place over a shorter period 
than that recommended by the 
National Governments’ Compact 
guidelines as it is over six weeks 
compared to the 12 weeks 
recommended in the guidance  • 
The consultation period is taking 
place during the very busy run up to 
Christmas.   • No consultation 
events have been held by the 
council to gain the views of parent 
carers and young people.     Parent 
present felt children and young 
people with significant and complex 
needs receive very few services as 
it is, they are hard to place and are 
not able to make changes in 

P
age 74



Budget Proposals 2016/17: Short Breaks for Disabled Children | Verbatim Responses | 11

ID Group / 
organisation 
responding 
on behalf of 
(if 
applicable):

Are you, or is 
anyone you 
care for, a 
user of this 
service?

What do you think we should be 
aware of, in terms of how this 
proposal might impact people?

Do you feel that this proposal will 
affect particular individuals more 
than others, and if so, how do 
you think we might help with 
this?

Do you have any 
suggestions as to how 
this service might be 
delivered in a different 
way?  If so, please 
provide details.

Is there any way that 
you or your 
organisation can 
contribute in helping 
to alleviate the impact 
of this proposal? If so, 
please provide details 
of how you can help.

Do you have any 
suggestions on how we 
can best identify other 
sources of support and 
alternative 
arrangements, breaks 
and activities for families 
and their children with 
disabilities?  If so, 
please provide details.

Any further comments?

placement as easily as other 
children, therefore any change has 
a huge and long lasting impact on 
the children, young people and their 
parent carers.    

18 on behalf of 
West Berks 
Mencap

Yes The cuts will affect the most exposed, 
defenceless and susceptible in society.  
Also the carers well being and ability to 
continue their role caring for these 
vulnerable children/young people.

The individuals are being similarly 
affected here.

I assume personal 
budgets are being 
considered.  To me this 
seems a much more 
expensive individual 
option for the council.  
With West Berks Mencap 
they provide group 
settings and also with 
volunteers which is a cost 
effective way of providing 
care to a number of 
children with disabilities.

 If personal budgets are 
being considered perhaps 
families could be grouped 
so they share the same 
support where appropriate.

 

19 Transport 
Services 
Team

 "The proposals are unclear in terms of 
the overall effects on individuals and the 
position of Respite, Castlegate and 
Mencap. Without more clarity it is 
difficult to comment on the implications.    
If the use of Council transport is 
reduced, it could have significant 
financial implications on other parts of 
the Council that operate vehicles. In 
addition, Mencap and Castlegate have 
Council fleet vehicles, and there may be 
early termination penalties if vehicles 
are returned before the end of their 
lease."  

     

20 UNISON West 
Berkshire

No This will affect the most vulnerable.    
The removal of these services is likely to 
result in more demand for other 
services, increasing the workload for 
already overstretched staff. It may also 
affect the achievement of the Council's 
ambitions to have a stable CFS 
workforce that is not reliant on agency 
staff.    If pursued, this could end up 
costing the Council more than it saves 

Children and their families. No. No. No. No.

P
age 75



Budget Proposals 2016/17: Short Breaks for Disabled Children | Verbatim Responses | 12

ID Group / 
organisation 
responding 
on behalf of 
(if 
applicable):

Are you, or is 
anyone you 
care for, a 
user of this 
service?

What do you think we should be 
aware of, in terms of how this 
proposal might impact people?

Do you feel that this proposal will 
affect particular individuals more 
than others, and if so, how do 
you think we might help with 
this?

Do you have any 
suggestions as to how 
this service might be 
delivered in a different 
way?  If so, please 
provide details.

Is there any way that 
you or your 
organisation can 
contribute in helping 
to alleviate the impact 
of this proposal? If so, 
please provide details 
of how you can help.

Do you have any 
suggestions on how we 
can best identify other 
sources of support and 
alternative 
arrangements, breaks 
and activities for families 
and their children with 
disabilities?  If so, 
please provide details.

Any further comments?

and will have a longer term impact on 
staff.  

21 Tilehurst 
Parish Council

      Advice, support and guidance 
for these families could be 
managed through the Children’s 
Centres. It is felt that we are 
unable to comment on the 
proposal with the information 
provided, but it would appear 
that some of the services could 
be run through Children’s 
Centres and others through 
Crossroads.

22  No I think that these services are an 
important lifeline for people having a 
very difficult time. I do not need to use 
them myself (yet....who knows what the 
future holds?) but I am more than happy 
that my taxes as a local  resident are 
used to pay for them. I think that if you 
take away the services, the resulting 
effects e.g family breakdown, stress, 
illness, will cost more than it would have 
cost to keep them going in the first 
place.

Clearly it will affect families with 
disabled children the most: probably 
some of the most vulnerable 
families of all.

   I do not understand why we 
can't just use the tax system to 
ensure that those with a higher 
salary contribute more and the 
most vulnerable don't suffer the 
most. I know a lot of people in 
the area who feel the same.

23  Yes 1.Elimination of social opportunities for a 
significant number of children and young 
people. Many young people with 
disabilities - including my son - cannot 
access mainstream activities and clubs, 
and have little or no social life outside 
their families. Removing short breaks 
funding will in many cases remove the 
only opportunity for young people to 
socialise with their peers, leading to 
isolation and mental health issues.  
2.Childcare. Many young people and 
children with disabilities cannot access 
mainstream childcare - after school 
clubs, holiday schemes and child 
minders are unable to cater for them. 
Short Break providers are able to not 
only provide such schemes, but do so at 
a cost to parents that is on par with 
mainstream activities. Removing these 
schemes means that many families will 
need to massively reduce their working 
hours, or will be unable to work at all as 
childcare will be either unavailable or 
prohibitively expensive compared to 

This will affect all children and 
young people with disabilities who 
use short breaks services.  It will 
particularly affect those who have 
no other options for respite - 
whether that be because they have 
no family or friends who can care for 
their child, or because their child's 
needs are too great.

If anything, a wider range 
of short breaks needs to 
be made available. There 
are normally waiting lists 
for the different services.  
West Berkshire has a duty 
to provide a wide range of 
different short breaks to 
meet differing needs.

Given that most of the 
short break providers 
operate on a shoestring 
with minimum wages 
and volunteers to run 
their services, I don't 
see how much further 
organisations can help.  
In order to provide short 
breaks, carers must be 
trained, supported, DBS 
checked and insured. 
Likewise there are 
ongoing costs for venue 
hire and equipment. 
This cannot be done for 
free, even if time was 
provided on a volunteer 
basis.

Contact parents - family 
voice, local charities and 
volunteers to find out what 
parents need. Local offer 
is probably a good place to 
start.

Cutting Short Breaks funding is 
a false economy. The cost of 
residential care for a single child 
with complex needs is likely to 
be in excess of the enitre Short 
Breaks funding cuts.  Cutting 
Short Breaks funding is 
destroying a whole community 
of support.   The impact of the 
short breaks services goes well 
beyond childhood and into 
adulthood - helping young 
people become more confident 
and independent in society.

P
age 76



Budget Proposals 2016/17: Short Breaks for Disabled Children | Verbatim Responses | 13

ID Group / 
organisation 
responding 
on behalf of 
(if 
applicable):

Are you, or is 
anyone you 
care for, a 
user of this 
service?

What do you think we should be 
aware of, in terms of how this 
proposal might impact people?

Do you feel that this proposal will 
affect particular individuals more 
than others, and if so, how do 
you think we might help with 
this?

Do you have any 
suggestions as to how 
this service might be 
delivered in a different 
way?  If so, please 
provide details.

Is there any way that 
you or your 
organisation can 
contribute in helping 
to alleviate the impact 
of this proposal? If so, 
please provide details 
of how you can help.

Do you have any 
suggestions on how we 
can best identify other 
sources of support and 
alternative 
arrangements, breaks 
and activities for families 
and their children with 
disabilities?  If so, 
please provide details.

Any further comments?

mainstream. These families will likely 
require additional benefits if they are 
unable to work.  3. Family breakdown. 
Parenting children with additional needs 
is physcially and mentally relentless. 
The small amount of respite offered by 
short break providers is often the 
difference between families surviving, or 
going into crisis. When a family hits 
crisis and is no longer able to look after 
their young person, West Berkshire will 
become responsible, and more than 
likely at a greater cost than the short 
breaks provisioning.

24  Yes      As parents of a 14 year old girl 
with special needs, we are 
writing to you with regard to the 
proposed cuts from West 
Berkshire Council which will 
result in the closure of Mencap’s 
Children’s Services.    Our 
daughter has regularly attended 
the Mencap After School Club 
twice a week for the past five  
years. This is the only After 
School Club that she is able to 
access. Not only does it have all 
the  specialist equipment that 
allows her to play — something 
all children should be able to 
access — but itis an activity that 
is especially for her as opposed 
to her 5iblings. Invariably she 
spends a lot of time watching 
her younger brother and sister 
playing football, hockey, 
swimming etc not to 
mentionmeeting up with friends 
and going to numerous birthday 
parties. She regularly asks if 
she can take part to which the 
answer is always ‘no’ which is 
heart-breaking for both her and 
us.    With the Mencap After 
School Club she has a fun 
activity with her friends which 
she isn’t otherwise  afforded. If 
this valuable service is forced to 
close our daughter will spend 
two more evenings a  week 
seeing her siblings have fun 
while she has to sit and watch. 
These children are already at a  

P
age 77



Budget Proposals 2016/17: Short Breaks for Disabled Children | Verbatim Responses | 14

ID Group / 
organisation 
responding 
on behalf of 
(if 
applicable):

Are you, or is 
anyone you 
care for, a 
user of this 
service?

What do you think we should be 
aware of, in terms of how this 
proposal might impact people?

Do you feel that this proposal will 
affect particular individuals more 
than others, and if so, how do 
you think we might help with 
this?

Do you have any 
suggestions as to how 
this service might be 
delivered in a different 
way?  If so, please 
provide details.

Is there any way that 
you or your 
organisation can 
contribute in helping 
to alleviate the impact 
of this proposal? If so, 
please provide details 
of how you can help.

Do you have any 
suggestions on how we 
can best identify other 
sources of support and 
alternative 
arrangements, breaks 
and activities for families 
and their children with 
disabilities?  If so, 
please provide details.

Any further comments?

disadvantage so why take 
something so valuable away 
from them? They are not in a 
position to find an alternative 
because there are no other 
alternatives available to them.    
Our daughter also accesses the 
Mencap Saturday Club and the 
Summer Play Scheme for the 
same reasons that she attends 
the After School Club. The 
closure of both of these will 
have the same effect as those 
we’ve listed above. There are 
currently waiting lists for all 
Mencap Children’s Services— 
the demand for these is genuine 
and much-needed.    We 
appreciate that cuts have to be 
made but it seems very unfair to 
make cuts that will affect such a 
vulnerable group of young 
people who already miss out on 
so much - not least quality of 
life. We  urge West Berkshire 
Council to find other ways of 
saving the £135,000 a year 
needed to keep  Mencap 
Children’s Services open — 
even if it means an increase in 
taxation such as parking 
charges — surely the general 
public would see this as a small 
price to pay for such an 
essential service forspecial 
needs children in the 
community.    We are aware 
that Gordon Lundie feels 
strongly that Mencap has 
sufficient funds to pay for these  
services itself. However, having 
questioned West Berkshire 
Mencap about this and having 
been  provided with a 
breakdown of their capital it is 
fair to say that a large amount of 
the money they  have is 
restricted and, as such, cannot 
be used to pay for Children’s 
Services. They also need to 
keep significant reserves in 
order to run the charity in a 
responsible way.    The quality 

P
age 78



Budget Proposals 2016/17: Short Breaks for Disabled Children | Verbatim Responses | 15

ID Group / 
organisation 
responding 
on behalf of 
(if 
applicable):

Are you, or is 
anyone you 
care for, a 
user of this 
service?

What do you think we should be 
aware of, in terms of how this 
proposal might impact people?

Do you feel that this proposal will 
affect particular individuals more 
than others, and if so, how do 
you think we might help with 
this?

Do you have any 
suggestions as to how 
this service might be 
delivered in a different 
way?  If so, please 
provide details.

Is there any way that 
you or your 
organisation can 
contribute in helping 
to alleviate the impact 
of this proposal? If so, 
please provide details 
of how you can help.

Do you have any 
suggestions on how we 
can best identify other 
sources of support and 
alternative 
arrangements, breaks 
and activities for families 
and their children with 
disabilities?  If so, 
please provide details.

Any further comments?

of life for our daughter, and 
many like her, and the rest of 
our family, will be seriously  
affected should these closures 
go-ahead. Yet again we will find 
ourselves in a position whereby 
we  have to deny our daughter 
the joy of playing with her 
friends in a safe and secure 
environment —  please do not 
let this be the case.

25  Yes Young people with special needs will no 
longer have access to any after school 
clubs, holiday play schemes or Saturday 
morning play schemes. Not only do the 
children who attend really enjoy these 
opportunities (there are no other 
opportunities available to them) but 
these services offer the rest of the family 
some respite time. Equally,as a working 
parent, time available to be at work will 
be restricted given there are no other 
after school clubs available to children 
with special needs.    

I think the more severely disabled 
children and their families will be 
particularly affected as looking after 
a disabled child is incredibly hard 
work and stressful and puts stress 
on other members of the family.   I 
think you could help with this by 
finding a different service to take 
money from.

No -  the service that is 
currently delivered is 
second to none as are the 
staff. The children are 
happy in a safe and 
secure environment and 
are able to socialise which 
they can't do anywhere 
else. It is more often than 
not impossible to take 
disabled children to 
mainstream settings. This 
service should most 
definitely not be cut - the 
most vulnerable families 
and children are the ones 
who will suffer.

I am not an organisation 
I am a parent of a 
special needs child.

Surely the Council is 
already aware of these 
services. As a parent I can 
advise you that there are 
very few other sources of 
support and from what I 
understand ,the other 
organisations such as 
KIDS are also going to 
have their budgets cut so 
we, and our children, will 
lose out again.

Why was West Berkshire 
Council so vitriolic towards West 
Berkshire Mencap? I have 
looked at West Berkshire 
Mencap's figures and these do 
not add up to £800,000 worth of 
spare cash just sitting in the 
bank. A large proportion of 
these funds are restricted and, 
as such, can not be put towards 
the general running costs of 
Mencap's Children's Services. It 
is also good practice to have 
reserves in the bank which are 
not unreasonable once the 
restricted funds have been 
taken into account. If they had 
less money in the bank then 
they could be criticised for poor 
financial management. 

26 Mencap Yes Isolation will be a major factor in their 
lives also will be a big impact on the 
parents as it is respite for the parents.  
the parents will be having to cut their 
work times and possibly give up their job 
to care for their child when they are in 
mencap, following on from this that will 
be less money for the family and you will 
find families struggle with money and 
providing for their child. 

yes i do! for example my son as he 
has no friends around where we live 
and his only form for socialising is 
through mencap, also children that 
are severely disabled.     the way 
you would be able to help this is to 
not cut the budget, as you promised 
to look after every single special 
needs child/ adult in West Berkshire.

  this present system is not 
broken and doesn't needs 
fixing 

just put yourself in the families 
shoes.... i think these cuts will 
cause more problems then you 
are anticipating. 

27 Parent Yes This proposal would impact on my 
daughters life SIGNIFICANTLY because 
she has no other way to socialise with 
her peers!!   She gets to go to the 
cinema or out for a meal with peers that 
she won't get to do otherwise.   As a 
young 16 year old lady it is her human 
right to be able to do what a neurotypical 
teen can do,BUT she needs the extra 
help to do so which is what this service 
provides and provides outstandingingly! 

I feel it will affect most people the 
same although some families with 
more than 1 disabled child will be 
affected more

  Yes!! The likes of 2 
charities KIDS and 
CROSSROADS which are 
all facing the same cuts so 
what exactly will there be 
for he's children?????

 

P
age 79



Budget Proposals 2016/17: Short Breaks for Disabled Children | Verbatim Responses | 16

ID Group / 
organisation 
responding 
on behalf of 
(if 
applicable):

Are you, or is 
anyone you 
care for, a 
user of this 
service?

What do you think we should be 
aware of, in terms of how this 
proposal might impact people?

Do you feel that this proposal will 
affect particular individuals more 
than others, and if so, how do 
you think we might help with 
this?

Do you have any 
suggestions as to how 
this service might be 
delivered in a different 
way?  If so, please 
provide details.

Is there any way that 
you or your 
organisation can 
contribute in helping 
to alleviate the impact 
of this proposal? If so, 
please provide details 
of how you can help.

Do you have any 
suggestions on how we 
can best identify other 
sources of support and 
alternative 
arrangements, breaks 
and activities for families 
and their children with 
disabilities?  If so, 
please provide details.

Any further comments?

!!

28  Yes People with disabilities need all the help 
and support they can get. For many of 
them Mencap is a life line. It provides 
Social activities and Family support and 
information.  I have four children the 
youngest two have ASD.  For the past 
five years they have attended an out of 
county school. This is a two hour 
journey to school and a two hour journey 
home every day.  They have no friends 
or classmates locally, the only social life 
they have is Mencap.  As they attend a 
special school they are not allowed to 
attend Spectrum or Oasis groups which 
provide a service for ASD children.  
Mencap is our only option.  If we do not 
support and encourage our young 
people we are going to make life harder 
for them as they grow older.  To take 
away funding from this vital service is 
false economy. Our children will need 
much more care later on if you undo all 
the good work Mencap has done for 
them so far.

I feel that families like mine with 
more than one special needs child 
will be hit hardest. 

Make it easier and clearer 
to claim for Personal 
Budgets.  Provide better 
information and support 
for Families.   I had never 
even heard of Personal 
Budgets let alone been 
offered one until I 
attended a recent meeting 
at Mencap.

I wish I could! More publicity? Most 
families have little 
information. Organisations 
need to make themselves 
known.

Please don't cut the Children's 
Services budget.

29  No I have registered concern at all cuts for 
children and young adults with SEN. 
Unless you have lived with this difficulty 
in your family you cannot imagine how 
difficult it is and how low life can 
become.    I know 6ft police officers who 
deal with organised crime by day but cry 
at night for their SEN child and family 
life.    These breaks are lifelines for 
exhausted parents, siblings and SEN 
children who target keeping the home 
running until the next break. Their life 
cannot be changed. This is how it will 
be. To remove these services will make 
life intolerable and lead to greater costs 
for children being taken into homes, 
residential schools and mental health 
care for all.

     

P
age 80



Budget Proposals 2016/17: Short Breaks for Disabled Children | Verbatim Responses | 17

ID Group / 
organisation 
responding 
on behalf of 
(if 
applicable):

Are you, or is 
anyone you 
care for, a 
user of this 
service?

What do you think we should be 
aware of, in terms of how this 
proposal might impact people?

Do you feel that this proposal will 
affect particular individuals more 
than others, and if so, how do 
you think we might help with 
this?

Do you have any 
suggestions as to how 
this service might be 
delivered in a different 
way?  If so, please 
provide details.

Is there any way that 
you or your 
organisation can 
contribute in helping 
to alleviate the impact 
of this proposal? If so, 
please provide details 
of how you can help.

Do you have any 
suggestions on how we 
can best identify other 
sources of support and 
alternative 
arrangements, breaks 
and activities for families 
and their children with 
disabilities?  If so, 
please provide details.

Any further comments?

30  Yes My daughter has severe, multiple and 
complex physical and learning 
disabilities. She requires constant care 
with feeding and toileting. She is blind, 
and cannot walk or speak. She needs 
repeated medication throughout the day. 
Both my wife and I receive counselling 
to help deal with the stresses of being 
full-time carers, and my wife is on 
medication for anxiety. The stress of 
caring has had a real impact on our 
relationship.  This will have a huge 
impact on families like us. As I 
understand it, you have a statutory duty 
to provide short breaks any way, and I 
am puzzled why you are making such 
cuts. It is noticeable that you make no 
direct mention of what these duties are.  
Mencap After School Club: this allows 
us to work. To lose this would mean my 
wife or I would need to reduce our 
hours, with substantial financial 
consequences for us.  Saturday Club: 
Allows us to do 'normal' things with our 
youngest son, that are just not possible 
otherwise.  Holiday clubs: Allows us to 
do things with our son, take him to 
clubs, have friends to play, and have 
some respite for ourselves. Mencap is 
my daughter's only chance to have 
social time and sensory play outside the 
home. Staff know her and are sensitive 
to her complex needs.  The time before 
we got the level of support from Mencap 
that we now receive was a very black 
time for us. Since we received it, we 
have been able to cope better. The 
support we receive allows to a 
semblance of a 'normal' family life: it is 
NOT a luxury. The chance for my 
daughter to be in a group setting is 
surely a way of helping her access her 
right to normal things as well.

For some families, the short breaks 
Mencap provides are the only 
respite they get, so to remove it 
would reduce their support to zero.  
Working parents need the after-
school club as Castle School offers 
very limited provision and 
mainstream childcare services do 
not offer services for children like 
ours.    Where else would we go? 
West Berkshire is a small authority - 
there are not, to my knowledge, 
alternative providers around.    
Families such as us are some of the 
most vulnerable people in the 
community, which is why these 
breaks are statutory in the first 
place. Please understand the reality 
of what these breaks mean, and 
what the effects will be.

Not really.  In-home 
support would not deliver 
the same benefits in terms 
of socialising and access 
to specialised facilities. 
Mencap are specialists in 
their field, so they are best 
placed to deliver the 
service.  Castle School 
might run an after-school 
club, but could not help at 
weekends or the school 
holidays.

No. As a family we are 
stretched to the limit 
already. That is why we 
need the service!

West Berks is a small 
place. I doubt there are 
any locally. Castle School 
could offer an after-school 
club on-site?

Please protect us. Short breaks 
are a lifeline that allow us at 
least some of the things that 
families with mainstream 
children take for granted.    As I 
understand it, you have a 
statutory duty to provide short 
breaks any way, and I am 
puzzled why you are making 
such cuts. It is noticeable that 
you make no direct mention of 
what these duties are.  This has 
been handled in a 
confrontational way by the 
council, and has already caused 
distress.

31 Oasis Yes My son who is 14, I have always 
struggled to encourage him to come out 
with me to do family activity's and day to 
day things. He never wanted to do any 
thing or go anywhere just stay home, 
which obviously impacted the whole 
family. When this club came to our 
attention and my son attended it 
became clear he was enjoying himself. 
Hes always excited about going to this 

The children who attend will be most 
affected, by not closing the club I 
feel this would help them.

No the service is fine as it 
is.

No No No

P
age 81



Budget Proposals 2016/17: Short Breaks for Disabled Children | Verbatim Responses | 18

ID Group / 
organisation 
responding 
on behalf of 
(if 
applicable):

Are you, or is 
anyone you 
care for, a 
user of this 
service?

What do you think we should be 
aware of, in terms of how this 
proposal might impact people?

Do you feel that this proposal will 
affect particular individuals more 
than others, and if so, how do 
you think we might help with 
this?

Do you have any 
suggestions as to how 
this service might be 
delivered in a different 
way?  If so, please 
provide details.

Is there any way that 
you or your 
organisation can 
contribute in helping 
to alleviate the impact 
of this proposal? If so, 
please provide details 
of how you can help.

Do you have any 
suggestions on how we 
can best identify other 
sources of support and 
alternative 
arrangements, breaks 
and activities for families 
and their children with 
disabilities?  If so, 
please provide details.

Any further comments?

club and always talks to me afterwards 
about what he gets up to and how much 
fun he has. If this proposal goes ahead I 
feel my son may sink back into his old 
ways.

32 Mencap No Carers of severely mentally 
handicapped people are saving the 
council/country thousands of £. They 
deserve some respite from their 
extremely tough daily lives.     If they 
cannot get this, I fear they will pass the 
responsibility on to the council, 
completely overwhelming any budget 
saving that this measure creates.     The 
human toll should be seen to be 
believed. 

Carers deserve our support Take all of these 
handicapped people into 
full time care and see how 
much that costs!

Mencap respite care 
services are an 
inexpensive way of 
delivering this service

I don't know of any other 
way

 

33  No It will severely impact families with 
disabled children and young people, 
resulting in an increased demand for 
statutory services.

It will affect disabled children. The 
council has a statutory duty to make 
provision for them to achieve the 
best possible educational and other 
outcomes.  

1. Provide families with a 
personal budget  2. Invest 
in increasing the capacity 
of mainstream providers 
to include disabled 
children in what they 
provide  3. Charge a 
contribution to families 
using short breaks

   

34  Yes My child has autism and would regress 
in his social and emotional functioning. 
They will lose the confidence the 
Spectrum club has given them. Since 
receiving support from Spectrum club 
my son has learnt new skills and pay for 
things in shops. Because of their autism, 
they need consistent, specialist, expert 
support to retain these skills and to 
maintain the confidence they have 
gained from attending the club.    The 
impact will be likely to be a loss of 
confidence and self-esteem, a loss of 
friends (the only friends they have), and 
a decrease in mental health. Before 
attending the club, my son did not go out 
and had no friends, they had been 
unable to access mainstream clubs and 
suffered poor mental health. If they 
could no longer attend the Spectrum 
club then they would go back to being 
socially isolated.    The impact of closing 
this scheme will also be felt by us as the 
parents – the club has given us 
essential respite and have allowed us to 
have a bit of time for ourselves and 
spend time with our daughter. The 

This proposal absolutely affects 
young people with autism more than 
others. The proposals by West 
Berks Council are to shut existing 
clubs and schemes with the 
intention of these young people 
accessing more mainstream clubs 
and activities. It is part of the 
condition of autism which means 
that kids with autism cannot just 
participate in mainstream activities 
and clubs. Many children with 
autism have sensory sensitivities 
which mainstream clubs and venues 
don’t cater for (ie. Swimming pools, 
leisure centres too loud and 
crowded and unpredictable).    
Young people with autism must 
have routine, structured activities 
which they are prepared for by 
staff/volunteers who are trained in 
autism so that they know how to 
communicate with the young people 
in a way they understand. Young 
people with autism are far more 
socially isolated than other groups 
of young people (42% of children 

We are not aware of 
another provider other 
than the NAS in the West 
Berks area who are 
sufficiently trained in 
autism to deliver these 
clubs if they were shut.

We are parents of a 
child with autism and we 
have had to fight for 
every bit of support 
we’ve ever received. 
We find it offensive to 
be asked to help deliver 
services for our disabled 
son. It is the Council’s 
legal obligation to 
provide short breaks for 
disabled children. 
Autism spectrum 
disorders are a disability 
and as such the Council 
must provide services 
for them.    The NAS 
Branch and other 
parents already do their 
best – as volunteers - to 
help other families 
affected by autism in 
West Berks. But they 
cannot and should not 
be asked to take on 
more and start providing 
services for free which 

We can't answer this 
question as we simply 
don't know any other 
sources of support.

Young people with autism were 
identified as a particular group 
of young people with disabilities 
who must not be disadvantaged 
in accessing short breaks. West 
Berks Council must take into 
consideration that children with 
ASDs have been specifically 
highlighted as a disadvantaged 
group who must be able to 
access short breaks appropriate 
to them and their autism. The 
‘Aiming High for Disabled 
Children: Short Breaks 
Implementation Guidance’ 
recognised the need for local 
authorities to provide specialist 
short breaks provision for 
children and young people with 
autism, as it states that a short 
breaks service should:    
“provide fit for purpose and age 
appropriate provision which 
ensures the following groups 
are not disadvantaged in 
accessing short breaks:     a) 
children and young people with 

P
age 82



Budget Proposals 2016/17: Short Breaks for Disabled Children | Verbatim Responses | 19

ID Group / 
organisation 
responding 
on behalf of 
(if 
applicable):

Are you, or is 
anyone you 
care for, a 
user of this 
service?

What do you think we should be 
aware of, in terms of how this 
proposal might impact people?

Do you feel that this proposal will 
affect particular individuals more 
than others, and if so, how do 
you think we might help with 
this?

Do you have any 
suggestions as to how 
this service might be 
delivered in a different 
way?  If so, please 
provide details.

Is there any way that 
you or your 
organisation can 
contribute in helping 
to alleviate the impact 
of this proposal? If so, 
please provide details 
of how you can help.

Do you have any 
suggestions on how we 
can best identify other 
sources of support and 
alternative 
arrangements, breaks 
and activities for families 
and their children with 
disabilities?  If so, 
please provide details.

Any further comments?

whole family has benefited from this 
scheme – his sister is happier because 
we have been able to spend more time 
with her and we are happier because we 
get some time to do essential household 
things without having to worry about 
him. We fear that if the scheme was 
closed that my other child would suffer 
as she would have less time with us to 
herself and would have more caring 
responsibilities. My son would certainly 
regress in terms of socialising and 
confidence and his overall well-being.  

with autism have no friends as 
opposed to 1% of other children). 
Their autism means that 
adjustments have to be made to 
activities and communication. They 
have to be supported to understand 
social rules and communications. If 
these schemes are shut, these 
young people will not just be able to 
adapt to mainstream clubs and 
activities – their disability makes this 
impossible. They have a disability 
which is lifelong and extremely 
complex with the biggest difficulties 
being around social communication 
– this means they will be unfairly 
affected by these closures as they 
are unable to join other clubs/ 
activities without the staff and 
venues making reasonable 
adjustments and training their staff 
in autism to make their venues and 
communication accessible to young 
people with autism.  

the Council has a duty 
to commission for 
disabled children.  

ASD. These are likely to have 
other impairments, such as 
severe learning disabilities or 
have behaviour, which is 
challenging.”     If these cuts to 
autism-specific short breaks 
provision goes ahead, West 
Berkshire Council will be acting 
against national guidance and 
will also be creating 
circumstances which are likely 
to lead to much higher spending 
needs in the near future.   

35 Home-Start 
West 
Berkshire

No This proposal will impact the families 
that we support who have children under 
5 with disabilities as we will no longer be 
able to prioritise their needs within our 
service. Parents will no longer have 
respite time to focus on their own needs 
or the needs of other children within the 
family. The impact is difficult to quantify 
as it will be different for each family, for 
some the lack of respite may have a 
negative impact on the mental health of 
the parent and other members of the 
family.

This proposal will affect those with 
disabled children.  The impact on 
particular individuals will be 
dependent on what other support is 
in place. A planned ending would 
help, what plans are now in place 
rather than just ending. If a family 
has our support and we intend to 
end we want to ensure they know 
what universal services there are 
that they could engage with or what 
other services offer support even if 
this would now have to be paid for. 
Ensuring vulnerable families know 
what is the current offer even if it no 
longer includes us would help.

Peer to peer support; 
potential for those families 
affected to help one 
another - take in turns so 
there is still a period of 
respite.  Paid support.  
Groups funded by other 
funders.  Means tested 
access, those who can 
afford to pay do so while 
those unable to are 
supported.  Access 
'tokens' to ensure fair take 
up by all with support 
evenly distributed to every 
family impacted.   
Communication between 
service providers; we 
have found that we were 
supporting a family to use 
another service funded by 
same funding. We are 
also aware there are 
families that access a 
range of breaks and some 
who do not access 
anything.  

Providing information to 
families impacted.  
Providing names of 
families supported by 
this funding to WBC to 
enable analysis of 
families most affected.

  

P
age 83



Budget Proposals 2016/17: Short Breaks for Disabled Children | Verbatim Responses | 20

ID Group / 
organisation 
responding 
on behalf of 
(if 
applicable):

Are you, or is 
anyone you 
care for, a 
user of this 
service?

What do you think we should be 
aware of, in terms of how this 
proposal might impact people?

Do you feel that this proposal will 
affect particular individuals more 
than others, and if so, how do 
you think we might help with 
this?

Do you have any 
suggestions as to how 
this service might be 
delivered in a different 
way?  If so, please 
provide details.

Is there any way that 
you or your 
organisation can 
contribute in helping 
to alleviate the impact 
of this proposal? If so, 
please provide details 
of how you can help.

Do you have any 
suggestions on how we 
can best identify other 
sources of support and 
alternative 
arrangements, breaks 
and activities for families 
and their children with 
disabilities?  If so, 
please provide details.

Any further comments?

36  Yes The support offered in invaluable in 
terms of taking the strain off the rest of 
the family. If this service was reduced 
the impact could be detrimental to the 
entire family putting them at breaking 
point which would then possibly have a 
knock on effect on their mental health, 
requiring them to need support in this 
area. Therefore the overall expense to 
the authority will be greater than leaving 
them as they are at the moment.

Yes, it will affect people with the 
most complex needs. It is essential 
that those with the greatest needs 
do not have their support cut.

    

37  Yes You should be aware that the cuts are 
hitting the same group of people from 
many different angles eg cuts to respite 
services and to camhs are affecting the 
same families.So the effect is 
cumulative and therefore catastrophic. A 
few hours respite a few times a year 
may not seem like much to you but to a 
family it is the difference between coping 
and not coping. If a family can't cope 
then the costs for social and health 
services is huge. Short term cuts may 
mean long term burdens on the 
services.

Yes. Its affects those of us with 
disabled children more than other 
people.By targetting respite care for 
children, camhs and childrens 
centres you are drastically cutting 
things that families with disabled 
children rely on to survive. Spread 
the cuts and be careful of cutting 
services which affect the same 
group of people more than once. 
We can cope with potholes. We cant 
cope with what are already very 
difficult situations with very little 
support anyway being made worse. 
Its not as though there is an 
abundance of help to start with. You 
are threatening to take away the 
bare minimum.

No. We get help from 
Crossroads in the form of 
a few hours respite a 
year. Organisations that 
cater for one childs 
disability and none of the 
other childrens needs 
from our family are 
inappropriate as we get 
no respite and physically 
taking our children to 
different clubs according 
to their needs is not 
possible, so clubs run by 
charities to cater en 
masse are not the anwer. 
Sometimes somethings 
are already run on a 
shoestring and are the 
bare minimum anyway 
and cant be cut.  Camhs 
is a joke already with over 
2 years waiting list for 
children who are suffering 
and families who are 
suffering. Any cuts to 
camhs are insane!  I 
suggest maybe cheaper 
office space for the 
council? We don't 
particularly care about 
christmas lights or any 
frivolities in west berks, so 
maybe cut spending there 
rather than on vulnerable 
groups who are easy to 
target. 

 You need to bear in mind 
that although charities may 
provide groups for children 
with disabilities they are 
not providing the same 
service and it isnt 
appropriate for those who 
currently use Crossroads 
care, otherwise they would 
use them.

 

38 Brookfields 
School

Yes this service gives parents the much 
needed respite  that they need, disabled 
children are emotionally and physically 
draining and some of us have no family 
to help and rely on this service, it also 

definitely, those children that need 
24 hour care, their parents and 
carers need that break in order to 
have some time for themselves, 
some children do not sleep so these 

  perhaps contact some of 
these charities that claim 
they help children, the 
lottery fund, children in 
need, comic relief

 

P
age 84



Budget Proposals 2016/17: Short Breaks for Disabled Children | Verbatim Responses | 21

ID Group / 
organisation 
responding 
on behalf of 
(if 
applicable):

Are you, or is 
anyone you 
care for, a 
user of this 
service?

What do you think we should be 
aware of, in terms of how this 
proposal might impact people?

Do you feel that this proposal will 
affect particular individuals more 
than others, and if so, how do 
you think we might help with 
this?

Do you have any 
suggestions as to how 
this service might be 
delivered in a different 
way?  If so, please 
provide details.

Is there any way that 
you or your 
organisation can 
contribute in helping 
to alleviate the impact 
of this proposal? If so, 
please provide details 
of how you can help.

Do you have any 
suggestions on how we 
can best identify other 
sources of support and 
alternative 
arrangements, breaks 
and activities for families 
and their children with 
disabilities?  If so, 
please provide details.

Any further comments?

helps the children to socialise and learn 
to adapt to new surroundings and 
people,

breaks are vital.

39 Mencap Yes this proposal might lead to closure of 
some services to children with special 
needs. My daughter will be losing her 
after school club and holiday play 
scheme at mencap which she enjoys 
and needs most as no other 
organisation or school provides these 
services for such low prices.

i think it will effect all the individuals 
using the services.

yes, if schools like castle 
school can do after school 
clubs and holiday clubs.

we can pay from the 
direct payments we get.

    yes, if schools like 
castle school can do after 
school clubs and holiday 
clubs.

 

40 Mencap/Cross
roads

Yes I am the Mum of a profoundly disabled 
13yo son who has Williams syndrome 
and autism. He uses Mencap and 
Crossroads regularly and they provide a 
lifeline to my family. My son thoroughly 
enjoys going there and he is loved and 
cared for with kindness in a safe 
environment. This provides some 
essential respite for my family.  Until you 
have a disabled child, it is very difficult 
to appreciate the enormity of the task 
which faces a family in this situation. 
Without these essential services, my 
family and many others like me would 
be at breaking point. There are very few 
places available which are able to care 
for children and young people with 
complex disabilities so, if these services 
are withdrawn, many families would 
suffer terribly. Many of these families are 
already isolated, struggling and 
withdrawn and the situation would only 
be made worse.  I feel very strongly that 
this will have a severe and detrimental 
impact on some of the most vulnerable 
and deprived families. This cannot be 
reasonable or fair in our society. 

I think these proposals will affect all 
young people and there families 
who use the services form Mencap 
and Crossroads.

These services need 
experienced, specialised 
and dedicated staff often 
with many years of 
training to care for these 
young people with very 
complex needs.  I think it 
would be very difficult and 
costly to attempt to 
provide these services 
elsewhere and I cannot 
see how anyone would 
benefit.

No! I am an experienced Mum 
and also a Consultant 
Paediatric Orthopaedic 
Surgeon. Hence, I have a 
wide experience of 
children with special 
needs.  The level of care 
required for these complex 
children is almost 
impossible to find and I 
cannot see, as things 
stand, that there are any 
other provisions available. 

I feel very strongly that this 
would cause a very desperate 
situation to many families with 
children with special needs. 
There is nothing else for them 
and nowhere else to go as they 
require very specialised care.  I 
understand that the numbers 
affected are small but the 
impact on these families would 
be huge. Surely this is not a 
reasonable way to treat our 
most vulnerable.

41  Yes This reduction will impact very 
negatively on the children who need 
additional support and for whom respite 
provides an opportunity to widen their 
horizons.    This will also impact 
negatively on the parents and carers of 
children with Special Needs. This 
service allows parents and carers to do 
normal everyday activities that would 
otherwise not be possible. Simple things 
like doing the household shopping, 
cleaning, and self care will be severely 
impacted. It is impossible to do these 
things whilst caring for a Special Needs 
child.    In addition to the above this 

People on low income or not in work 
will be hardest hit by this, as there is 
no other way that they can afford to 
obtain this care.

   Stop trying to shirk your moral 
duties to the most vulnerable 
within the council area.    
Attacking children for cuts is 
reprehensible, targeting 
disabled children is just 
cowardly. Disable children are 
the most vulnerable part of our 
society because they are least 
able to communicate the huge 
impact this will have on them.    
If you are looking for cost 
reductions, try looking at the 
ludicrously high salaries paid to 
executives and top managers 

P
age 85



Budget Proposals 2016/17: Short Breaks for Disabled Children | Verbatim Responses | 22

ID Group / 
organisation 
responding 
on behalf of 
(if 
applicable):

Are you, or is 
anyone you 
care for, a 
user of this 
service?

What do you think we should be 
aware of, in terms of how this 
proposal might impact people?

Do you feel that this proposal will 
affect particular individuals more 
than others, and if so, how do 
you think we might help with 
this?

Do you have any 
suggestions as to how 
this service might be 
delivered in a different 
way?  If so, please 
provide details.

Is there any way that 
you or your 
organisation can 
contribute in helping 
to alleviate the impact 
of this proposal? If so, 
please provide details 
of how you can help.

Do you have any 
suggestions on how we 
can best identify other 
sources of support and 
alternative 
arrangements, breaks 
and activities for families 
and their children with 
disabilities?  If so, 
please provide details.

Any further comments?

provides valuable time for parents and 
carers to take some time for themselves, 
to recharge their batteries and to be able 
to continue caring for the child within the 
home.    If this time is taken away it will 
mean that parents and carers are less 
able to take care of the child and 
ultimately will lead to the council being 
required to assist with more children in 
care. This time provides a lifeline to 
parents and carers and is much cheaper 
then the council having to pay for 52 
week care of the child.

within this organisation. How 
can these people look 
themselves in the mirror every 
morning whilst they continue to 
take these huge salaries at the 
same time as taking benefits 
away from the most vulnerable 
parts of our society. Have you 
no shame!!!!    

42  Yes What it is like living with a child with 
additional needs, the impact and strain it 
has on day to day life. The difficulties we 
face as the child gets older in accessing 
places etc 

I think it will affect all carers and put 
a strain on there family life. You can 
help by not cutting this service 

    

43 Mencap and 
NAS

Yes I have a daughter aged 7 who has 
autism, ADHD, sensory processing 
disorder and epilepsy. We love her 
deeply but the challenges she faces are 
immense and the repercussions of those 
challenges on the family unit are 
immense too. My daughter has no 
control over her emotional system and is 
constantly seeking sensory kicks. This 
means that on an average day she will 
bite her hand until it bleeds, kick, scratch 
and bite us and her 11 year old brother, 
throw shoes, cups, sometimes even 
knives at us, pour milk over lap-tops, 
pour water under her brothers door 
because she wants to get in. We can’t 
leave her on her own for long in case 
she has an epileptic fit. We can’t go out 
as a family in any kind of relaxed way 
because everything has to be on her 
agenda and she will scream and lash 
out if it isn’t. We tried to visit Newbury 
Show this year but it was too much for 
her and we ended up as a family in the 
craft tent huddled under a picnic blanket 
to create an impromptu “quiet space”. 
Mostly we just don’t go to the kind of 
family events that most of you take for-
granted.  Most of the time we feel that 
we are living in a war zone.    Think for a 
second of the effect all this has on my 
little boy xxx. He has just started at St 
Barts. Yesterday he was crying his heart 
out because he had tried to play hide 
and seek with his sister and she had 

I think many disabled children and 
their families will be affected by 
these cuts in slightly different ways.     
For families with children with 
complex needs and or severe 
behavioural problems like mine, 
these cuts are likely to tip many 
parents over the edge into mental 
health problems or seeking 
residential care for their children.     
For the proposed cuts to clubs for 
Aspergers children and teenagers 
as run by the local Branch of the 
NAS I would say this: These 
children spend their life struggling 
with incredible anxiety and low self 
esteem  - much of it caused by 
feeling out of place and rejected or 
wrong footed in society. If you went 
to see the young people at the 
Oasis and Spectrum clubs you 
would see them at peace in an 
environment that gets them and 
values them. They learn there the 
social skills to make friends that 
they carry with them for years. They 
learn that they are accepted and 
that they can be happy in the world. 
This opportunity for these kids is 
worth more than gold. the vast 
majority of Aspergers people, when 
they leave school become isolated 
and depressed leading them to put 
a huge burden on social services 
and the NHS. Groups like these give 

I could imagine that in the 
case of Mencap, children 
could be moved onto 
personal budgets. Parents 
would then tend to chose 
Mencap as their provider 
because they have the 
best facilities, the right 
staff, social set up and 
because they are 
extraordinary value for 
money.

   

P
age 86



Budget Proposals 2016/17: Short Breaks for Disabled Children | Verbatim Responses | 23

ID Group / 
organisation 
responding 
on behalf of 
(if 
applicable):

Are you, or is 
anyone you 
care for, a 
user of this 
service?

What do you think we should be 
aware of, in terms of how this 
proposal might impact people?

Do you feel that this proposal will 
affect particular individuals more 
than others, and if so, how do 
you think we might help with 
this?

Do you have any 
suggestions as to how 
this service might be 
delivered in a different 
way?  If so, please 
provide details.

Is there any way that 
you or your 
organisation can 
contribute in helping 
to alleviate the impact 
of this proposal? If so, 
please provide details 
of how you can help.

Do you have any 
suggestions on how we 
can best identify other 
sources of support and 
alternative 
arrangements, breaks 
and activities for families 
and their children with 
disabilities?  If so, 
please provide details.

Any further comments?

ended up kicking him in the face. He has 
a chain lock on his door so that he can 
have some privacy, but she will stand 
outside banging on it incessantly or 
calling him names over and over to get 
his attention. Sometimes he finds all this 
just too much. He is frightened and 
frustrated. We had to seek counselling 
support for him at school.    This isn’t the 
kind of family life my husband and I 
envisaged. I love being a Mum. I want to 
be able to spend time with him, talking 
about his day, helping him with his 
homework. He has just started a new 
school and I want to support him 
through this transition. But when my 
daughter is around this is not possible. 
She will demand my attention constantly 
and if she doesn’t get it she will spiral. It 
takes all evening to get my daughter to 
sleep too so we don’t even have time 
then.    My daughter goes to the Mencap 
after school club on a Monday which 
gives me 2 precious hours to spend with 
my son. Last summer (parents with 
autistic children DREAD summer 
holidays) my daughter attended the 
Mencap summer school twice a week. 
This gave us as a family unit time to re-
ground ourselves before the next 
onslaught. On one of these days I took 
xxx for a trip to Bletchley Park. Again the 
sort of day out that many parents take 
for granted. For us it was a wonderful 
and rare gift to be able to relax and 
enjoy each other’s company.     Without 
Mencap children’s services none of this 
would be possibly for my family. These 
service are not a nice-to-have. For many 
families, including mine, that struggle to 
create any sense of family equilibrium, 
they are the difference between coping 
and not coping. They are a lifeline. They 
keep families together.    Early last July, 
things at home were so unremittingly 
stressful I called the disabled children’s 
team in tears saying that if more support 
was not put in place we might have to 
start looking at a residential placement 
for my daughter. I was anticipating my 
worst nightmare. There are many 
families like mine in West Berkshire that 
use Mencap. It would only take one 

them a social network which 
bolsters their resilience beyond 
measure. Many of them create their 
own groups when they leave. Many 
of these children will not qualify for 
personal budgets.

P
age 87



Budget Proposals 2016/17: Short Breaks for Disabled Children | Verbatim Responses | 24

ID Group / 
organisation 
responding 
on behalf of 
(if 
applicable):

Are you, or is 
anyone you 
care for, a 
user of this 
service?

What do you think we should be 
aware of, in terms of how this 
proposal might impact people?

Do you feel that this proposal will 
affect particular individuals more 
than others, and if so, how do 
you think we might help with 
this?

Do you have any 
suggestions as to how 
this service might be 
delivered in a different 
way?  If so, please 
provide details.

Is there any way that 
you or your 
organisation can 
contribute in helping 
to alleviate the impact 
of this proposal? If so, 
please provide details 
of how you can help.

Do you have any 
suggestions on how we 
can best identify other 
sources of support and 
alternative 
arrangements, breaks 
and activities for families 
and their children with 
disabilities?  If so, 
please provide details.

Any further comments?

family to get to breaking point and ask 
for their child to be placed at a 
residential school to wipe out entirely 
any saving that the council may think 
they have made through £137,000 worth 
of cuts to Children’s Services. I would 
say that if you make these cuts, this will 
be an inevitable outcome. It is financially 
and socially short-sighted. I know of 
several families who are on the edge 
and seriously considering aplying for 
residential placements.      If I am going 
to leave my child it needs to be with 
someone who is trained in ASD and 
epilepsy. My friends don’t usually offer 
because they are worried they would not 
be able to cope. Other respite services 
can cost about £20 ph. We know one 
parent whose child uses Mencap who 
were charged £200 per day by one 
private provider of respite care because 
they said that he needed 2:1 care.  
Mnecap charge a pittance in 
comparison. Mencap staff are 
extraordinary. Not only have they won a 
Queen’s award for setting up the 
volunteer scheme which leads many of 
them to move into a career in a related 
field, these young people embrace our 
children with a love and commitment 
which is wonderful. There are children at 
Mencap after school club who have 
been turned down by all other care 
providers in many area of the UK. When 
out with our children we have to endure 
the tutting and eye rolling and the “can’t 
you control your child”. Many of us have 
known being asked to leave churches 
and shops. When we pick up from 
Mencap we are accepted with open 
arms. It is hard to put into words how 
important this is.     Gordon Lundie has 
said that you are considering expanding 
the provision that Castlegate provide. I 
have significant doubts  that Castlegate, 
however good, can in and of itself meet 
the need of families requiring respite 
services. At present it only takes 
children over the age of 8 and only 
offers overnight care – not after school, 
Saturday  or holiday provision. For that 
reason we have been unable to use this 
service. Our social worker was also very 

P
age 88



Budget Proposals 2016/17: Short Breaks for Disabled Children | Verbatim Responses | 25

ID Group / 
organisation 
responding 
on behalf of 
(if 
applicable):

Are you, or is 
anyone you 
care for, a 
user of this 
service?

What do you think we should be 
aware of, in terms of how this 
proposal might impact people?

Do you feel that this proposal will 
affect particular individuals more 
than others, and if so, how do 
you think we might help with 
this?

Do you have any 
suggestions as to how 
this service might be 
delivered in a different 
way?  If so, please 
provide details.

Is there any way that 
you or your 
organisation can 
contribute in helping 
to alleviate the impact 
of this proposal? If so, 
please provide details 
of how you can help.

Do you have any 
suggestions on how we 
can best identify other 
sources of support and 
alternative 
arrangements, breaks 
and activities for families 
and their children with 
disabilities?  If so, 
please provide details.

Any further comments?

doubtful  as to whether it would suit xxx: 
we are intending to visit the facility to 
see for ourselves but she felt that the 
children there were almost all with very 
severe disabilities and she was 
concerned that xxx (who despite her 
behavioural problems is very bright and 
verbal) would feel deeply uncomfortable. 
It is important, when thinking about the 
council’s provision of respite services to 
meet the demands of the Children’s Act, 
that the provision is varied enough to 
meet the needs of children with very 
different profiles and needs: It would be 
impossible for high functioning 
Aspergers children to feel at home or 
stimulated in an environment with mostly 
children with severe intellectual and 
physical disabilities – just as neuro-
typical people wouldn’t want to spend all 
their social time with people with severe 
cognitive disabilities. In order for the 
provision to be respite at all the parents 
need to be confident that their children 
are happy.     Mencap after school club 
and holiday club are MASSIVELY 
oversubscribed. We have only been 
able to get Estella into one session a 
week after school and we desperately 
need more. There are many other 
parents like us. I know many parents 
who have found it hard to get places at 
Castlegate. We need more short break 
provision in Newbury not less. I do not 
see how Castlegate could provide 
anything like the necessary level of 
service.      As parents of some of the 
most vulnerable members of society this 
is the most recent of a barrage of cuts 
we have had to bear. CAMHS has 
become a not—fit –for-purpose service 
in the eyes of most people I speak to, 
the Mencap sitting service and Family 
Advice Service along with Buddies have 
also been cut. How much more are we 
supposed to take? And this year council 
salaries went up by 12.5 per cent. It is 
not only parents of disabled children 
who are horrified and up in arms at this: 
our neighbours and friends in Newbury 
are similarly aghast and are asking what 
they can do to support us in our 
campaign for a U-turn here. It runs 

P
age 89



Budget Proposals 2016/17: Short Breaks for Disabled Children | Verbatim Responses | 26

ID Group / 
organisation 
responding 
on behalf of 
(if 
applicable):

Are you, or is 
anyone you 
care for, a 
user of this 
service?

What do you think we should be 
aware of, in terms of how this 
proposal might impact people?

Do you feel that this proposal will 
affect particular individuals more 
than others, and if so, how do 
you think we might help with 
this?

Do you have any 
suggestions as to how 
this service might be 
delivered in a different 
way?  If so, please 
provide details.

Is there any way that 
you or your 
organisation can 
contribute in helping 
to alleviate the impact 
of this proposal? If so, 
please provide details 
of how you can help.

Do you have any 
suggestions on how we 
can best identify other 
sources of support and 
alternative 
arrangements, breaks 
and activities for families 
and their children with 
disabilities?  If so, 
please provide details.

Any further comments?

counter to most people’s sense of what 
a humane society looks like.         

44 West Berks 
Mencap

Yes There are, as far as I know, no other 
services of this kind for children with 
disabilities and their parents in the area.  
It will mean that children who have a 
severely limited ability to access 
recreational facilities that are available 
for the general population have nowhere 
to go that is safe and suitable for them.  
For their parents, on whom a significant 
burden of caring falls, the loss of this 
valuable respite could mean despair and 
exhaustion, as well as possibly 
depression.  For some, it may mean that 
they have to give up work (if they are 
currently able to balance working with 
caring responsibilities).  Clearly, this 
could have a knock on effect in terms of 
cost elsewhere (benefits, health service) 
and, if the bigger picture is considered, I 
would question whether the proposal is 
in fact a saving.      In terms of the 
impact on the children/young people 
who will lose the service, it could impact 
on their health (the centre provides 
outdoor exercise and fresh air) and the 
self-esteem that socialising at the centre 
provides.  The way that they are 
understood and compassionately 
treated by the trained staff and 
volunteers will potentially contrast with 
the way they will often be treated by 
those in mainstream type environments 
(if indeed their parents venture to take 
them to such places).  It is extremely 
difficult as a parent to take your child 
where their behaviour or condition 
attracts comments and stares, which 

Yes, it will affect disabled 
children/young people and their 
families, but obviously not the 
general population, who won't 
access the service anyway.   
Obviously the more severely 
disabled the child/young person is, 
the more they will be affected, since 
less disabled individuals would be 
more likely to be able to access (to 
varying degrees) general 
recreational facilities.  See answer 
to 3 above.    Providing holiday and 
after school care for disabled 
children (i.e. replacement services) 
would be helpful, though it is difficult 
to see how this would be better 
done by West Berks Council rather 
than Mencap.

In terms of after school 
care, my own view is that 
secondary schools and 
primary schools should be 
obliged to provide after 
school care, at least 3 
days per week (most 
primary schools seem to 
do so, but the (incorrect) 
assumption appears to be 
that this requirement falls 
away once a child is at 
secondary school).  If 
children are disabled, this 
should not affect their 
ability to access these 
services i.e. there should 
be sufficient staff kept on 
to provide it.      For 
school holiday care, it 
would seem that the only 
way my child could 
access the facilities 
available to neurotypical 
children would be if he 
had a one-to-one, which 
would make him stand out 
like a sore thumb.  Many 
of the holiday clubs 
available (like the one my 
daughter attended last 
summer at St Gabriel's 
School) are on sites which 
simply don't have the 
facilities for children who 
attend West Berkshire 
Mencap and where there 

N/A As far as I am aware, there 
are no alternatives in this 
area (as it is I drive for 30 
mins to reach this venue).      
As suggested above, for 
after school care you could 
look at making much better 
provision in schools 
themselves. Personally, I 
would be prepared to pay 
for this & it would be in an 
environment my son is 
familiar with.  I was quite 
put out that although my 
local special school has an 
after school club, my son 
cannot attend that as an 
alternative (he is in an 
autistic unit with no after 
school care) because it is 
only for the kids attending 
that school.  Some 
children therefore fall 
through the gaps and even 
the West Berks Mencap 
provision is out of reach 
(except in holidays).     For 
holiday clubs I'm afraid I 
see no easy answer: the 
mainstream ones I have 
called say that I would 
need to provide a one-to-
one if I were to book my 
son in there, which would 
surely have a cost in 
excess of £100 per day 
once the fees were also 

The West Berkshire Mencap is 
an excellent service with 
dedicated, well trained staff.  
The venue is good and they 
organise various activities and 
outings for the children so that 
they are well stimulated.    I last 
tried putting my son in 
mainstream holiday clubs when 
he was around 8 (he is now 12).  
He lasted until the second day, 
when they rang me up to tell me 
he couldn't stay and they would 
give me my money back.  This 
was because they only had 3 
staff with 20 kids to look after 
and, since he was not interested 
in sitting colouring in or playing 
with the others, he insisted on 
staying in the playground where 
they couldn't monitor him 
properly.  I was called back from 
my work (as a civil servant) and 
had to take the rest of that week 
off to care for him.     I have 
managed to work part time (until 
relatively recently, due to the 
lack of secondary stage after 
school childcare) by using West 
Berks Mencap in the school 
holidays.  I could truly relax 
leaving him there, knowing they 
are set up to give the best 
possible experience to children 
like him.  If this service closes 
and there is nothing to replace 
it, I will have little chance of 

P
age 90



Budget Proposals 2016/17: Short Breaks for Disabled Children | Verbatim Responses | 27

ID Group / 
organisation 
responding 
on behalf of 
(if 
applicable):

Are you, or is 
anyone you 
care for, a 
user of this 
service?

What do you think we should be 
aware of, in terms of how this 
proposal might impact people?

Do you feel that this proposal will 
affect particular individuals more 
than others, and if so, how do 
you think we might help with 
this?

Do you have any 
suggestions as to how 
this service might be 
delivered in a different 
way?  If so, please 
provide details.

Is there any way that 
you or your 
organisation can 
contribute in helping 
to alleviate the impact 
of this proposal? If so, 
please provide details 
of how you can help.

Do you have any 
suggestions on how we 
can best identify other 
sources of support and 
alternative 
arrangements, breaks 
and activities for families 
and their children with 
disabilities?  If so, 
please provide details.

Any further comments?

reaction sadly persists in society despite 
campaigns and general increased 
awareness from the media.    Where, as 
in my own case, the disabled child has 
siblings who access a variety of clubs 
and holiday activity programmes, they 
are surely likely to feel this loss 
particularly strongly.   My child has 
autism and it is very difficult and unfair 
on him to put him with mainstream kids 
unless he has a one-to-one support as 
he invariably is picked on and teased by 
them.

is no security of the 
perimeter.  I cannot see 
how this service can 
easily be replaced by e.g. 
summer camps run in 
mainstream schools, 
because they are not set 
up to cope (however, you 
could look at whether 
certain of these could 
offer disabled services).  
However, even if West 
Berkshire was able to find 
a suitable venue and run 
these services itself, that 
would surely not result in 
a cost saving.    

taken into account. returning to work anytime soon.    
I would urge those considering 
making these cuts to pay a visit 
to the service and observe 
these beautiful, but very needy 
children: ask yourselves 
whether, if your life involved 
caring for them and trying to fit 
in work and all the other 
necessities of life around that, 
could you do it without support?   
Please do not withdraw these 
services, certainly if nothing will 
be put in which can adequately 
replace them.

45  No This proposal will have a significant 
detrimental effect on anyone involved in 
the service.     The many young people 
who volunteer with West Berkshire 
Mencap will lose a brilliant opportunity to 
work directly with children and young 
people with disabilities which helps 
foster a sense of community not often 
seen in people of this age group, and 
helps to instill a healthy and inclusive 
attitude towards people with disabilities. 
It also provides valuable work 
experience (particularly for those such 
as myself interested in careers in a 
healthcare profession or in education).    
It will threaten the jobs of staff members, 
some of whom have spent years 
developing a highly specialised, 
effective service. This is a service that is 
unique to West Berkshire, and losing the 
expertise of these staff members would 
be a huge mistake, as it is more than 
likely that in the future the council will 
again recognise the need for a well-run 
children's service and will then have to 
start again from scratch.    Most 
importantly it will quite obviously affect 
children and young people with 
disabilities and their families. Children 
with disabilities are at greater risk of 
isolation, and the current childrens' 
services allow them the opportunity to 
socialise with the other children and 
volunteers in a way that they would not 
be able to at home. Younger children 
benefit from shared access to play 

As mentioned above, this will affect 
everyone currently involved in 
running and using the service, but 
children and young people and their 
families, especially families with 
working parents or those where 
more than one sibling has a 
disability will be hardest hit. This can 
be helped by continuing to fund the 
existing services. 

No N/A No I had the extremely valuable 
opportunity of working as a 
volunteer at the afterschool 
clubs and holiday playscheme's 
provided by West Berkshire 
Mencap childrens' services 
when I was at secondary 
school. I then moved to Wales 
to go to medical school but 
when I tried to find similar 
volunteering opportunites as a 
student I did not come across 
any other schemes providing 
the same level of support for 
children and young people with 
disabilities and their families. I 
am now a qualified paediatric 
doctor and have worked in 
several hospitals in Wales and 
south-west England, and 
frequently work with children 
with disabilities. I have seen first 
hand the immense amount of 
strain that these families are 
under, and I often wish that 
there were local services in my 
area as good as those that are 
currently provided by West 
Berkshire Mencap that I could 
refer my families to.     The 
services currently available in 
West Berkshire are fantastic, 
and to pull the funding from 
these well established schemes 
would be incredibly short-
sighted and will have a huge 

P
age 91



Budget Proposals 2016/17: Short Breaks for Disabled Children | Verbatim Responses | 28

ID Group / 
organisation 
responding 
on behalf of 
(if 
applicable):

Are you, or is 
anyone you 
care for, a 
user of this 
service?

What do you think we should be 
aware of, in terms of how this 
proposal might impact people?

Do you feel that this proposal will 
affect particular individuals more 
than others, and if so, how do 
you think we might help with 
this?

Do you have any 
suggestions as to how 
this service might be 
delivered in a different 
way?  If so, please 
provide details.

Is there any way that 
you or your 
organisation can 
contribute in helping 
to alleviate the impact 
of this proposal? If so, 
please provide details 
of how you can help.

Do you have any 
suggestions on how we 
can best identify other 
sources of support and 
alternative 
arrangements, breaks 
and activities for families 
and their children with 
disabilities?  If so, 
please provide details.

Any further comments?

equipment and activities, and older 
children and teenagers get to enjoy 
some independence from their parents.     
It goes without saying that their families 
also benefit. The pressure placed on 
families with a child with additional 
needs cannot be underestimated. 
Taking away after-school clubs and 
holiday playschemes would take away 
time for parents to do household chores/ 
shop/ give siblings time and attention. 
These key activities obviously become a 
lot more difficult with a child at home 
who may have complex and time-
consuming medical or behavioural 
needs. It would of course make 
childcare arrangements even more 
difficult for parents who work.     Taking 
away established supportive services 
from these families is very likely to push 
some families over the edge, and in the 
long term the cost of emergency foster 
care placements for some of these 
children is likely to far outstrip the cost of 
running the existing service that helps 
parents to continue providing the care 
themselves, as well as providing all the 
benefits for others mentioned above. 

negative effect on the families 
who use the services.

46  Yes Oasis club. My son xxx attends this club. 
I feel is one oif the few times he gets to 
socialise with others you people in a 
similar situation. I dont know what he 
would do if Oasis was to close. It would 
certainly affect his confidence.

Yes. Some will depend on it more 
than others.

Voluntary payment from 
people.

   

47  Yes This would have long term lasting effect 
this on individuals that currently access 
the service and their families/carers.  
The world becomes VERY limited with a 
disability especially without the right 
support or access to environments that 
cater for individual needs with Qualified 
staff.  The long term effect of taking 
services away from children is the future 
adults needing greater help and a bigger 
dependence on services, support i.e. 
Social services, secure homes, police 
and NHS.  There are a lot of young 
people who do work experience within 
these services they are also the future. If 
these services are cut how will the 
young of today gain knowledge and 
experience in these job roles ? Again 
this will have a lasting impact on our 

This proposal will have a wide and 
varied impact on a great number of 
families/carers.  It will isolate not 
only individuals who access the 
services but also their 
families/carers. The world outside 
everyone's front door is a difficult 
and complex one at the best of 
times, without any disabilities.  The 
continuation of the MUCH needed 
current services should be top 
priority for the local authority !  If 
there needs to be change then a 
longer and wider consultation is 
needed ? To just stop things mid 
flow seems very short sighted.  

Why do we need to keep 
changing things ??????  
Maybe once everyone 
knows exactly what's 
happening then the fine 
tuning can begin !

N/A Talk to the parents, carers 
and adults who need them. 
They are the best informed 
people.  Consultation with 
Social Services would 
surely give the up to date 
information that is needed 
?      

This is a very worrying time for 
my family and I as we watch 
and wait to see the outcome of 
our vital services currently 
under threat !

P
age 92



Budget Proposals 2016/17: Short Breaks for Disabled Children | Verbatim Responses | 29

ID Group / 
organisation 
responding 
on behalf of 
(if 
applicable):

Are you, or is 
anyone you 
care for, a 
user of this 
service?

What do you think we should be 
aware of, in terms of how this 
proposal might impact people?

Do you feel that this proposal will 
affect particular individuals more 
than others, and if so, how do 
you think we might help with 
this?

Do you have any 
suggestions as to how 
this service might be 
delivered in a different 
way?  If so, please 
provide details.

Is there any way that 
you or your 
organisation can 
contribute in helping 
to alleviate the impact 
of this proposal? If so, 
please provide details 
of how you can help.

Do you have any 
suggestions on how we 
can best identify other 
sources of support and 
alternative 
arrangements, breaks 
and activities for families 
and their children with 
disabilities?  If so, 
please provide details.

Any further comments?

social services, NHS, mental health 
services, without the support staff and 
professionals all of the above will fail.    

48  Yes This will have a devastating effect on my 
son with special needs and on us, his 
parents. For our son it will mean losing 
his only opportunity to interact with other 
children and adults outside of his special 
school environment. Because our son is 
physically disabled and still in nappies at 
age 11, the other providers of social 
interactions will not accept him and we 
are regularly turned down by these other 
organisations. Mencap in Newbury and 
Thames Valley Adventure Playground 
are the only two organisations that 
provide us with respite and Daniel really 
enjoys his time there. If Mencap have to 
stop their Saturday club (once a month) 
we will only have one social group for 
Daniel to belong to (TVAP). Mencap 
also provide a holiday club which is vital 
to enable my husband and I to both 
keep working to pay our large mortgage 
because we have to live in a bungalow 
to be able to cope with our disabled son 
which was more expensive.  The 
devastating impact on my husband and I 
as carers if we lose this small but vital 
respite is very worrying. We both work, 
the rest of our time (24 hours a day for 
the last 11 years and for the rest of our 
lives) is spent looking after our son. We 
don't have family who can help and 
friends have disappeared over the years 
as we have no-one to look after our son 
in the evening - we haven't been out in 
the evening together for 11 years - just 
think about that for a minute. If we lose 
our 3 hours one Saturday a month at 
Mencap and the 5 hours at TVAP once 
a month (we pay £30 and £25 for those 
using direct payments money) we will be 
totally isolated and I'm not sure how we 
will cope.  WBC have already cut the 
funding to our son's special school so 

I totally disagree with making the 
cuts to Children's Services. You 
should look elsewhere in your 
organisation to make cuts and leave 
the most vulnerable people alone.

I totally disagree with 
making the cuts to 
Children's Services. You 
should look elsewhere in 
your organisation to make 
cuts and leave the most 
vulnerable people alone.

I totally disagree with 
making the cuts to 
Children's Services. You 
should look elsewhere 
in your organisation to 
make cuts and leave the 
most vulnerable people 
alone.

I totally disagree with 
making the cuts to 
Children's Services. You 
should look elsewhere in 
your organisation to make 
cuts and leave the most 
vulnerable people alone.

I totally disagree with making 
the cuts to Children's Services. 
You should look elsewhere in 
your organisation to make cuts 
and leave the most vulnerable 
people alone.

P
age 93



Budget Proposals 2016/17: Short Breaks for Disabled Children | Verbatim Responses | 30

ID Group / 
organisation 
responding 
on behalf of 
(if 
applicable):

Are you, or is 
anyone you 
care for, a 
user of this 
service?

What do you think we should be 
aware of, in terms of how this 
proposal might impact people?

Do you feel that this proposal will 
affect particular individuals more 
than others, and if so, how do 
you think we might help with 
this?

Do you have any 
suggestions as to how 
this service might be 
delivered in a different 
way?  If so, please 
provide details.

Is there any way that 
you or your 
organisation can 
contribute in helping 
to alleviate the impact 
of this proposal? If so, 
please provide details 
of how you can help.

Do you have any 
suggestions on how we 
can best identify other 
sources of support and 
alternative 
arrangements, breaks 
and activities for families 
and their children with 
disabilities?  If so, 
please provide details.

Any further comments?

they were unable to provide as much 
summer holiday club this year. Because 
we both work we don't have enough 
annual leave to cover all the school 
holidays and these holiday clubs are 
vital to help us manage them.

49  Yes Comments (in the Council's own budget 
proposal) such as "They would have to 
adjust to considering a reduced range of 
options from other organisations and 
through different arrangements rather 
than the same range of more familiar 
providers." make me realise how out-of-
touch the Council is when it comes to 
the needs of our disabled children. You 
make it sound as easy as choosing to 
shop in Tesco's instead, if Sainsbury's 
closed down. It is not always easy for an 
able-bodied, 'typically developing' child 
or teenager to adapt to change. The 
children who use Mencap's disabled 
children's services can be extremely, 
frighteningly affected by new situations. 
My son has to have the same spoon to 
eat his cereal, will only wear one 
particular t-shirt, has only ever allowed 
me (and not even his father)  to wash 
his hair (and he is BY NO MEANS the 
least adaptable of the children who use 
Mencap's services). He has been going 
to Mencap's children's groups since he 
was 2. He knows the staff and the 
buildings - and they know him, and that's 
just as important. There is 15 years' 
worth of knowledge and experience and 
trust built up on both sides. If we lost 
Mencap I would not know where to turn 
and I don't know I have the energy to 
start again, maybe with new people and 
different surroundings. SO the impact on 
xxx would be no more social life. His 
anxious behaviours such as rocking and 
rubbing his hands will probably increase. 
There will be no more days when the 
other three people in xxx's family can 
put themselves first for once, instead of 

     

P
age 94



Budget Proposals 2016/17: Short Breaks for Disabled Children | Verbatim Responses | 31

ID Group / 
organisation 
responding 
on behalf of 
(if 
applicable):

Are you, or is 
anyone you 
care for, a 
user of this 
service?

What do you think we should be 
aware of, in terms of how this 
proposal might impact people?

Do you feel that this proposal will 
affect particular individuals more 
than others, and if so, how do 
you think we might help with 
this?

Do you have any 
suggestions as to how 
this service might be 
delivered in a different 
way?  If so, please 
provide details.

Is there any way that 
you or your 
organisation can 
contribute in helping 
to alleviate the impact 
of this proposal? If so, 
please provide details 
of how you can help.

Do you have any 
suggestions on how we 
can best identify other 
sources of support and 
alternative 
arrangements, breaks 
and activities for families 
and their children with 
disabilities?  If so, 
please provide details.

Any further comments?

only ever choosing activities and venues 
that xxx is comfortable with. The impact 
on me would be that I lose the free time 
I currently have when xxx is at Mencap. 
I would certainly withdraw from the 
volunteering that I currently do with the 
local Downland Volunteer Group as I 
doubt very much I would have any 
energy to think of anyone but myself and 
my family. 

50  Yes Individuals who may have ASD services 
withdrawn (Oasis club) will be at risk of 
greater social isolation.  This, at a young 
age can lead to lifelong depression and 
its accociated risk factors which might 
include socio economic and personal 
problems arising from feelings of 
isolation and depression.

The cutting back of any services for 
young people with ASD will effect al 
lof those who currently use the 
service.  It is an invaluable lifeline to 
these youngsters who benefit from a 
sense of wellbeing and feelings of 
inclusion and safety amongst 
likeminded people with trusted staff 
who are aware of their spectrum of 
disabilities.

No.  It is imperative that 
Oasis club is able to 
continue as it has been for 
many years providing a 
safe haven for ASD 
sufferers to socialise with 
a feeling of independance 
in a looked after fashion.

  My son attended both the 
Spectrum club and the Oasis 
club.  He is not currently a 
member as he has now turned 
16 years of age.      I was very 
saddened to read in a 
communication from Oasis club 
that the club is under threat.  My 
son loved and needed that club.    
He felt safe amongst like 
minded people (his own words).  
He gained a huge amount of 
enjoyment and sense of 
fullfilment from participating in 
the differing activities on offer 
especially cooking.  He used 
money independantly in the tuck 
shop to buy his own snacks and 
drink.  This little bit of free 
choice away from his family 
were some of the first 
indications of him growing up 
from a child to a young man.    
He attended the club every 
Thursday evening for some 
years.  When he was tired or 
poorly he still insisted on 
attending the club because he 
needed it so much.    I am very 
sad indeed to think that there 
are other families in West 
Berkshire with young Autistic 
children who might not now be 
offered this great 'Oasis' for 
their child.      Please don't 
change/end the Oasis/Spectrum 
ASD youth club.

P
age 95



Budget Proposals 2016/17: Short Breaks for Disabled Children | Verbatim Responses | 32

ID Group / 
organisation 
responding 
on behalf of 
(if 
applicable):

Are you, or is 
anyone you 
care for, a 
user of this 
service?

What do you think we should be 
aware of, in terms of how this 
proposal might impact people?

Do you feel that this proposal will 
affect particular individuals more 
than others, and if so, how do 
you think we might help with 
this?

Do you have any 
suggestions as to how 
this service might be 
delivered in a different 
way?  If so, please 
provide details.

Is there any way that 
you or your 
organisation can 
contribute in helping 
to alleviate the impact 
of this proposal? If so, 
please provide details 
of how you can help.

Do you have any 
suggestions on how we 
can best identify other 
sources of support and 
alternative 
arrangements, breaks 
and activities for families 
and their children with 
disabilities?  If so, 
please provide details.

Any further comments?

51 Oasis Yes  My son xxx is autistic and attends 
Kennet School as a mainstream sixth 
form student, he has never attended a 
school trip or outing.. He has attended 
Spectrum club and now Oasis club 
every Thursday evening since he was 
seven years old. xxx does not have 
friends at his secondary school. 
Spectrum and Oasis have been very 
important to xxx and his parents. The 
group is the only activity outside of the 
school day that xxx attends. He has tried 
cubs, scouts, sports groups and other 
youth clubs. Xxx has always felt 
uncomfortable and threatened when he 
had attended these groups. The impact 
will almost certainly be a loss of 
confidence and self-esteem, a loss the 
only friends that he has made. He has 
made games and activities that he has 
taken to Oasis and Spectrum club so 
that he can share his idea with his 
friends there.    When he started 
Spectrum club he felt at ease straight 
away and has rarely missed a weeks 
meeting. He has attended every 
weekend away and shows that he has 
enjoyed every minute of the group. If he 
could no longer attend the Oasis club 
then he would go back to being socially 
isolated and what provision will there be 
for these mainstream autistic children 
that find mixing with others so difficult.    
Since attending Spectrum and then 
Oasis group, the support from the staff 
has been invaluable. The adult helpers 
are amazing and understand the 
children's needs. The young helpers are 
invaluable in breaching that gap 
between child and adulthood that these 
precious children struggle with. xxx has 
learnt new skills that school has been 
unable or unwilling to teach because of 
their resources and lack of insight or 
training. Because of xxx's autism, he 
needs consistent, specialist, expert 
support to retain these skills and to 
maintain the confidence that he has 
learnt from attending Spectrum and 
Oasis club.      

Xxx and other children like him have 
sensory sensitivities which 
mainstream clubs and venues don’t 
cater for. Cinema's, other youth 
clubs, swimming pools etc. are too 
loud and crowded and unpredictable 
nature of other people that children 
and adults like xxx find difficult.  This 
proposal absolutely affects young 
people with autism more than others 
as Young people with autism are far 
more socially isolated than other 
groups of young people. Xxx and 
others like him must have routine, 
structured activities which they are 
prepared for by staff/volunteers who 
are trained in autism so that they 
know how to communicate with the 
young people in a way they 
understand.     They have to be 
supported to understand social rules 
and communications, so as to no 
harm not only comes to children like 
xxx but to other children and young 
adults as well. xxx needs to be in an 
environment where he is safe as he 
does not pick up on the clues of 
dangers in some situations.If these 
schemes are shut, these young 
people will not just be able to adapt 
to mainstream clubs and activities – 
their disability makes this 
impossible. They have a disability 
which is lifelong and extremely 
complex with the biggest difficulties 
being around social communication 
– this means they will be unfairly 
affected by these closures as they 
are unable to join other clubs/ 
activities without the staff and 
venues making reasonable 
adjustments and training their staff 
in autism to make their venues and 
communication accessible to young 
people with autism.   

I am not aware of another 
provider other than the 
NAS in the W Berks area 
who are sufficiently 
trained in autism to deliver 
these clubs if they were 
shut.     

I wondered whether a 
small increase in the 
weekly fees and asking 
for a larger contribution 
to their weekend away 
that they go on once a 
year.

No I am just so disappointed that 
yet again I am (as a parent) 
having to justify and put up a 
fight for my son. I do not expect 
the council to pay for my son 
and his disabilities, he is my son 
and my responsibility but I 
expect for there to be provision 
for activities and groups with 
appropriately trained staff where 
the children ad adults feel safe 
and protected. And if these 
groups close then what will the 
provision be?

P
age 96



Budget Proposals 2016/17: Short Breaks for Disabled Children | Verbatim Responses | 33

ID Group / 
organisation 
responding 
on behalf of 
(if 
applicable):

Are you, or is 
anyone you 
care for, a 
user of this 
service?

What do you think we should be 
aware of, in terms of how this 
proposal might impact people?

Do you feel that this proposal will 
affect particular individuals more 
than others, and if so, how do 
you think we might help with 
this?

Do you have any 
suggestions as to how 
this service might be 
delivered in a different 
way?  If so, please 
provide details.

Is there any way that 
you or your 
organisation can 
contribute in helping 
to alleviate the impact 
of this proposal? If so, 
please provide details 
of how you can help.

Do you have any 
suggestions on how we 
can best identify other 
sources of support and 
alternative 
arrangements, breaks 
and activities for families 
and their children with 
disabilities?  If so, 
please provide details.

Any further comments?

52 Oasis Club Yes My son xxx is 16 and has Asperger's 
syndrome.  Oasis and Spectrum ( the 
same club but your younger members) 
has been the only club xxx has used, 
since he was 10, and felt he had to 
leave scouts, as he did not feel safe 
there as he had in Cubs. Where he as 
nurtured, and the boys had not reached 
the loud boisterous stage.  Xxx does not 
make friends really, and he is vulnerable 
to being mistreated.  I once asked him 
why he liked it as the club, and his reply 
was "Because it it the only place people 
understand me."    He can be his self 
there, as much as he can be at home. 
and there is nowhere else I can say that 
of.     So. If this group is taken away. xxx 
will lose the only social outlet available 
he has.     I can't tell you how sad that 
makes me.     .  

The club is aimed at people at main 
stream school, with Autism in some 
form.  To my understanding, for 
these people, their autism makes it 
extremely difficult to socialise, but 
aware still. that they want to be part 
of all the things that are going on 
around them in society.    I do not 
believe there is ANYTHING 
remotely similar in the area, that xxx 
and similar people could use, should 
this club be closed.     So, I urge you 
so very strongly, not to take this 
away from them.  Life is already so 
tough for them!      

This club is already very 
simply structured, and run 
with a lot of voluntary 
help.   I can not see how it 
can really be streamlined 
to cost less. I believe it is 
to save money that the 
club is under threat?    I 
am happy to help in any 
way I can, and have 
offered to do so. But if I 
came helped at the  club, 
that rather defeats the 
object of giving my son 
independence.  Also, I do 
not think that is what the 
club is in need of anyway.    
So No I do not.     

Other than talking to 
members to help them 
with the loss of their 
beloved club, I can think 
of no way to help 
alleviate the impact. 

No. see above comments. Xxx will already have to leave 
this club, when he is a little 
older, and I find it really sad, as 
there is nothing else similar out 
there for him.     It has been a 
social lifeline for him while he 
has been the ages to attend.     
It would be a huge loss for 
others in his situation not to 
benefit in such a way.    In fact I 
think we  should be extending 
the service to a wider age 
group, and so making it 
impossible to runl

53  Yes As it has been helping with practising 
independence for my son's, they will 
probably end up with a life just behind 
their computer desks and all of the 
potential health problems that this can 
incur, Ie; Scheunmens Disease, also for 
Autistic Spectrum Children non 
compliance

They need Befrienders, who are 
neutral to the family as a bridge to 
independence

No the current way works 
just fine

 Befriending helps the 
children allot, they can be 
taken to places, or practice 
elements of independence, 
with ie; practice run on the 
bus with the Befriender

 

54 National 
autistic society 
OASIS

Yes My son has autism and would regress in 
his social and emotional functioning. he 
will lose the confidence the Oasis club 
has given them. Since receiving support 
from OASIS and SPECTRUM before 
that Ben has learnt new skills and made 
lots of friends.     The impact will be 
likely to be a loss of confidence and self-
esteem, a loss of contact with his friends 
outside of sitting at his computer - when 
not attending the clubs he rarely goes 
out.  I would expect to see a marked 
decline in his mental health and the on-
set of depression (which he has already 
had)     The impact of closing these 
schemes will also be felt by me as the 
parent – the clubs have given me 
essential respite and have allowed me 

Definably young people with autism 
more than others. Autism means 
that our children cannot not access 
and just participate in mainstream 
activities and clubs. Many children 
with autism have sensory 
sensitivities which mainstream clubs 
and venues don’t cater for.  I believe 
that you are also going to axe the 
NAS befriending service and PALS - 
I hear that many parents use these 
to supply a friend to take their child 
to a main stream club.     Young 
people with autism must have 
routine, structured activities which 
they are prepared for by 
staff/volunteers who are trained in 
autism so that they know how to 

There is not another 
provider other than the 
NAS who are well enough 
trained to deliver these 
services if they were shut.

Through the years we 
have had to fight for 
every bit of support 
we’ve ever received - 
from appointments with 
CAMHS (which you are 
also hitting with cuts) to 
getting support in 
school.    I already 
volunteer with other 
activities to help my 
child  It is the Council’s 
legal obligation to 
provide short breaks for 
disabled children. ASD 
are a disability and as 
such the Council must 
provide services for 

. If you axe autism-specific short 
breaks you will be acting 
against national guidance and 
will also be creating 
circumstances which are likely 
to lead to much higher spending 
needs in the near future - do 
you really want to have to spend 
more money when families and 
children reach crisis point.     

P
age 97



Budget Proposals 2016/17: Short Breaks for Disabled Children | Verbatim Responses | 34

ID Group / 
organisation 
responding 
on behalf of 
(if 
applicable):

Are you, or is 
anyone you 
care for, a 
user of this 
service?

What do you think we should be 
aware of, in terms of how this 
proposal might impact people?

Do you feel that this proposal will 
affect particular individuals more 
than others, and if so, how do 
you think we might help with 
this?

Do you have any 
suggestions as to how 
this service might be 
delivered in a different 
way?  If so, please 
provide details.

Is there any way that 
you or your 
organisation can 
contribute in helping 
to alleviate the impact 
of this proposal? If so, 
please provide details 
of how you can help.

Do you have any 
suggestions on how we 
can best identify other 
sources of support and 
alternative 
arrangements, breaks 
and activities for families 
and their children with 
disabilities?  If so, 
please provide details.

Any further comments?

to have a bit of time for myself - even if it 
is only to get the shopping done in 
peace  

communicate with the young people 
in a way they understand - if these 
services are axed they will not be 
able to adjust to mainstream clubs 
and activities. ASD is a lifelong 
disability and is very extremely 
complex -  the biggest difficulties 
being around social communication 
– this means they will be unfairly 
affected by these closures as they 
are unable to join other clubs/ 
activities without the staff and 
venues making reasonable 
adjustments and training their staff 
in autism to make their venues and 
communication accessible to young 
people with autism.    Young people 
with ASD are more socially isolated 
than other groups of young people 
(42% of children with autism have 
no friends as opposed to 1% of 
other children). Their autism means 
that adjustments have to be made to 
activities and communication and 
they have to be supported to 
understand social rules and 
communications  

them.    The NAS 
Branch and other 
parents already do their 
best – as volunteers - to 
help other families 
affected by autism in the 
area. They cannot and 
should not be asked to 
take on more and start 
providing services for 
free which the Council 
has a duty to 
commission for disabled 
children. Some of us are 
already at the end of our 
tether - asking us is 
quite frankly offensive      

55        I read today on the medium that 
the whole world can read that 
you are to cut funding to several 
local charities that help children 
with disabilities.  Shame on you. 
In one of the richest countries 
you cannot arrange the publics 
funds to provide Aid to these 
children and their parents.  I 
have worked in public and court 
offices a d experienced the 
waste. Over warm rooms with 
the windows open. Huge 
courtrooms , redecorated on the 
whim of a magistrate on over 
generous expenses.  Have 
another look for savings that are 
not so cruel.  

P
age 98



Budget Proposals 2016/17: Short Breaks for Disabled Children | Verbatim Responses | 35

ID Group / 
organisation 
responding 
on behalf of 
(if 
applicable):

Are you, or is 
anyone you 
care for, a 
user of this 
service?

What do you think we should be 
aware of, in terms of how this 
proposal might impact people?

Do you feel that this proposal will 
affect particular individuals more 
than others, and if so, how do 
you think we might help with 
this?

Do you have any 
suggestions as to how 
this service might be 
delivered in a different 
way?  If so, please 
provide details.

Is there any way that 
you or your 
organisation can 
contribute in helping 
to alleviate the impact 
of this proposal? If so, 
please provide details 
of how you can help.

Do you have any 
suggestions on how we 
can best identify other 
sources of support and 
alternative 
arrangements, breaks 
and activities for families 
and their children with 
disabilities?  If so, 
please provide details.

Any further comments?

56  Yes I don't think you have any idea of what 
these services mean to families of 
disabled children. My son has days out 
in holidays and a 3 day break every year 
with Crossroads. The location of his 
school means he has no local friends 
and even though he is 13 it is not safe 
for him to be out and about without 
supervision even if he did have. This 
means that the only place he goes to 
without me or Crossroads trips is school. 
These trips contribute hugely to 
developing social skills and 
independence. The short break is the 
often the only time he has a holiday and 
is the only time me and his brothers 
have a break as there is no-one else 
that I can trust to look after him and 
meet his needs.  

Obviously it is going to affect the 
vulnerable again. Not only that, it 
will affect their families as this is the 
only break they get from caring for a 
child with disabilities. This could 
lead to increased mental health 
issues in carers, families and so on.

   Again you are removing 
services from the most 
vulnerable in our society.

57  No Im not a user but have benefited 
personaly and am who and where I am 
today because of the services west 
berkshire mencap provide.     I started 
as a volunteer with west berkshire 
mencap while still at school, it tought me 
to apprecaite life, treat everyone with 
respect and gave me a real apprecaition 
of life.     This service does not only 
benefit the service users and their 
families, but also the young volunteers, 
thier friends, aquantancies, family and 
future empolyers.   

This will effect every resident of 
west berkshire, now and in the 
future. 

Reverse the 16.5% pay 
increase given to 
councillors and through 
other efficiencies. 

 You shoudlt need too, 
west berkshire mencap 
provide the best possible 
service 

Gordon Lundie should be 
ashamed of his comments and 
how he has dealy with this. Is it 
why he has stood down?

58        THE CASE  OF XXX XXX THE 
MOTHER OF A CHILD THAT 
THE COUNCIL THAT YOU 
BOTH REPRESENT YOU 
BOTH WANT TOO CUT OUT 
THEIR NEEDS FOR THEIR 
CHILD TO CUT FUNDS FOR 
HEALTH CARE THAT THEY 
NEED FOR MENCAP.    THIS 
IS NOT THE WAY TO ACT 
TOWARDS CHILDREN IN THIS 
DAY AND AGE,     I URGE 
YOU TO HAVE SOME 
COMPASSION FOR THESE 
PEOPLE AND OTHETR 
PEOPLE IN THESE 
SITUATION.  

P
age 99



T
his page is intentionally left blank

P
age 100



Appendix B

Equality Impact Assessment - Stage One

We need to ensure that our strategies, polices, functions and services, current 
and proposed have given due regard to equality and diversity.  

Please complete the following questions to determine whether a Stage Two, 
Equality Impact Assessment is required.

Name of policy, strategy or function: Revenue Budget 2016/17

Version and release date of item (if 
applicable):

Owner of item being assessed: Andy Walker

Name of assessor: Andy Walker

Date of assessment: 29.1.16

Is this a: Is this:

Policy No New or proposed Yes

Strategy Yes Already exists and is being 
reviewed No

Function No Is changing Yes

Service No

1. What are the main aims, objectives and intended outcomes of the policy, 
strategy function or service and who is likely to benefit from it?

Aims: To ensure the Council has a balanced revenue budget 
for 2016/17

Objectives:

Outcomes:

Benefits:

2. Note which groups may be affected by the policy, strategy, function or 
service.  Consider how they may be affected, whether it is positively or 
negatively and what sources of information have been used to determine 
this.
(Please demonstrate consideration of all strands – Age, Disability, Gender 
Reassignment, Marriage and Civil Partnership, Pregnancy and Maternity, Race, 
Religion or Belief, Sex and Sexual Orientation.)

Page 101



Group 
Affected What might be the effect? Information to support this

Further Comments relating to the item:

3. Result 

Are there any aspects of the policy, strategy, function or service, 
including how it is delivered or accessed, that could contribute to 
inequality?

No

Please provide an explanation for your answer:

Will the policy, strategy, function or service have an adverse impact 
upon the lives of people, including employees and service users? No

Please provide an explanation for your answer:

If your answers to question 2 have identified potential adverse impacts and 
you have answered ‘yes’ to either of the sections at question 3, or you are 
unsure about the impact, then you should carry out a Stage 2 Equality Impact 
Assessment.

If a Stage Two Equality Impact Assessment is required, before proceeding you 
should discuss the scope of the Assessment with service managers in your 
area.  You will also need to refer to the Equality Impact Assessment guidance 
and Stage Two template.

4. Identify next steps as appropriate:

Stage Two required

Owner of Stage Two assessment:

Timescale for Stage Two assessment:

Stage Two not required: Not required

Name: Andy Walker Date:29.1.16

Please now forward this completed form to Rachel Craggs, the Principal Policy 
Officer (Equality and Diversity) for publication on the WBC website.

Page 102



Equality Impact Assessment Template – Stage Two
Please complete this template if completion of the Stage 1 template has identified 
that a full Equality Impact Assessment is required.

Before proceeding with the Stage 2 Equality Impact Assessment, you should 
discuss the scope of the analysis with service managers in your area.  You will 
also need to refer to the equality impact assessment guidance.

Name of item being assessed: Budget Proposals regarding Short Breaks for 
Disabled Children

Version and release date of item (if 
applicable):

Owner of item being assessed: Juliet Penley

Name of assessor: Juliet Penley

Date of assessment: 28.12.15

Date Stage 1 EIA completed: 30.10.15

STEP 1 – Scoping the Equality Impact Assessment

1. What data, research and other evidence or information is available which will be 
relevant to this Equality Analysis?  Please tick all that apply.

Service Targets Performance Targets x
User Satisfaction x Service Take-up x
Workforce Monitoring Press Coverage
Complaints & Comments Census Data
Information from Trade Union Community Intelligence
Previous Equality Impact  
Analysis

Staff Survey

Other (please specify)

2. Please provide details on how you have used the available evidence, information you 
have selected as part of your Impact Assessment? 

I have taken into account the views and comments provided from the following;

Public consultation published on council’s website and ran from 1.11.15 – 15.12.15. The public 
were encouraged to complete an online form. 58 responses received

Meeting with providers of short breaks (contracts) on 30.11.15 and 4.12.15

Parents open meeting arranged by Parent Voice (parent participation organisation) 9 parents 
attended

Parents views collated by Mencap and Crossroads -14

Petition online (via 38 degrees) with 3,173 signatures

Page 103



3. If you have identified any gaps in relation to the above question, please detail what 
additional research or data is required to fill these gaps?  Have you considered 
commissioning new data or research?  If ‘No’ please proceed to Step 2.

No

STEP 2 – Involvement and Consultation

1. Please use the table below to outline any previous involvement or consultation with 
the appropriate target groups of people who are most likely to be affected or 
interested in this policy, strategy, function or service

Target Groups Describe what you did, with a brief 
summary of the responses gained 
and links to relevant documents, as 
well as any actions

Age – relates to all ages

Disability - applies to a range of people that have a 
condition (physical or mental) which has a significant 
and long-term adverse effect on their ability to carry 
out ‘normal’ day-to-day activities. This protection also 
applies to people that have been diagnosed with a 
progressive illness such as HIV or cancer.

Consultation was undertaken with 
parents of children with a disability as 
detailed in 2 above.

Gender reassignment - definition has been 
expanded to include people who chose to live in the 
opposite gender to the gender assigned to them at 
birth by removing the previously legal requirement for 
them to undergo medical supervision.

Marriage and Civil partnership –.protects 
employees who are married or in a civil partnership 
against discrimination. Single people are not 
protected.

Pregnancy and Maternity - protects against 
discrimination. With regard to employment, the 
woman is protected during the period of her 
pregnancy and any statutory maternity leave to which 
she is entitled. It is also unlawful to discriminate 
against women breastfeeding in a public place

Race - includes colour, caste, ethnic / national origin 
or nationality.

Religion and Belief - covers any religion, religious or 
non-religious beliefs. Also includes philosophical 

Page 104



belief or non-belief. To be protected, a belief must 
satisfy various criteria, including that it is a weighty 
and substantial aspect of human life and behaviour. 

Sex - applies to male or female.

Sexual Orientation - protects lesbian, gay, bi-sexual 
and heterosexual people.

2. Who are the main stakeholders and what are their requirements?

In addition to families, the main stakeholders are the 8 providers who hold contracts with the 
council to provide short breaks. It is these contracts that the council have given notice on and 
are having to consider in terms of future budget savings.

The 8 organisations who hold contracts are Mencap, Crossroads, Dingley, PALS, Guideposts, 
KIDS, National Autistic Society and Homestart. Guideposts have said they do not wish to 
continue to provide any short break services

The 7 remaining organisations need the level of council funding to continue in order to continue 
to provide the same level, range and standard of short breaks going forward.

3. Amongst the identified groups in the previous question, what does your information 
tell you about the potential take-up of resulting services?

The ceasing of the councils funding via contracts for short breaks will have a significant impact 
on the capacity of the organisations to continue to provide services to families. If there is no 
future funding then most organisations are likely to continue to provide a very limited range of 
services and will need to increase charges to cover costs. For larger organisations like Mencap 
and Crossroads who provide services to the greatest number of children with disabilities, they 
say they will need to make staff redundant and close some services completely.

All feedback from families has said how much they value and rely on these short breaks 
services. The following comments are representative of all those received;

‘Crossroads has been a lifeline for our family, its peace of mind to know she is being cared for 
by competent staff. My daughter is very physically disabled and this is the only social 
opportunity she has and the only break for my family.

‘My son has severe autism and has been with Crossroads and Mencap for many years, it is the 
only social life he has. He has no friends.’

‘I have 3 boys with autism and a husband with mental health problems. Somebody giving me a 
break, just once during school holidays, to give me the space to think and recharge has made 
the difference to facing school holidays with dread and finishing them with exhaustion and 
illness to having the strength to enjoy and have fun with the children.’

‘Oasis Youth Club for young people with autism would close.  Befriending for young people with 
autism would close.    And what else is there for young people with autism in West Berks - 
nothing.    This will detrimentally impact around 30 young people with autism and another 100 
or so parents and siblings.’

‘The social impact this will have on the family as a whole! By cutting all these services you are 
at risk of putting more families at crisis point due to not having enough or any support!’

 ‘Parent Voice is West Berkshire parent carer participation charity. We know many of our 

Page 105



members have give feedback directly to the council however we felt it important to offer an 
evening session for those who wanted to discuss the proposals and be part of the Parent Voice 
community feedback. We held the meeting on 30th November at St Johns Church rooms; it 
was advertised widely through our networks and those of our partners.     The feeling of the 
meeting was that the provision offered through short breaks is currently a minimum and would 
not withstand any cut.  Without maintaining the current service children and young people with 
Special Educational Needs and or a Disability will be significantly disadvantaged and will not be 
given the opportunity to ‘live ordinary lives’ as set out in the Children and Families Act 2014 and 
the Equalities Act 2010. Accessing services currently is a challenge as the families service is 
oversubscribed with waiting lists in place.     

STEP 3 – Assessing Impact and Strengthening the Policy

What will be done to improve access to and take-up of, or understanding of the policy, 
strategy, function or service? (these are the measures you will take to mitigate against 
adverse impact)

Those Childrens and families with the highest level of need will be eligible for an assessment 
by Childrens Social Care and will be provided with services such as short breaks to meet their 
needs.

There is likely to be a reduced amount of short breaks funding available so this will be used to 
support those services most valued by families. The overnight breaks are very costly to provide 
and are delivered to a smaller number of children. The services most needed by families 
(according to their feedback) are holiday play schemes, after school clubs and youth clubs so it 
is planned that the remaining money can be targeted to those services.

Some organisations have advised that they will continue to offer short breaks and will either 
increase charges or seek funding elsewhere.

STEP 4 – Procurement and Partnerships

Is this project due to be carried out wholly or partly by contractors?     Yes/No (please 
delete)

If ‘yes’, have you done any work to include equality considerations into the contract 
already? Specifically you should set out how you will make sure that any partner you 
work with complies with equality legislation.

No

STEP 5 – Making a Decision

Summarise your findings and give an overview of whether the policy, strategy, function 
or service will meet the authority’s responsibilities in relation to equality and support the 
Council’s strategic outcomes?

The council has to make very difficult decisions regarding budgets. It is clear from the 
consultation that short break services are very valued and needed by families and there has 
been a huge amount of feedback which all disagrees with the proposal to make reductions in 
funding. There is a risk that by ceasing or reducing the funding to these early help services that 
families with go into crisis and eventually cost the council and other services much more.

The current short breaks services were commissioned following on from the governments 
‘Aiming High for Disabled Children’ initiative (2008-11) when considerable central funding was 
available to councils to develop and increase short breaks for disabled children. So the current 

Page 106



contracts were awarded to organisations to provide short breaks at an early point of need and 
to a far greater number of children. 

Although councils would want to provide prevention/early intervention as well as statutory 
services, it is not now possible given the savings required so this proposed budget savings is to 
those short breaks at ‘preventative’ level 

Short breaks will still be provided by the council to those families who are assessed as being in 
the greatest need.

STEP 6 – Monitoring, Evaluating and Reviewing

Before finalising your action plan, you must identify how you will monitor the 
policy/function or the proposals following the Equality Impact Assessment and include 
any changes of proposals you are making.

What structures are in place to monitor and review the impact and effectiveness of the 
new policy, strategy, function or service?

There will be a procurement process with the remaining funds which will offer a smaller amount 
of support for 2 or 3 services. The contract monitoring processes will continue and impact 
monitored and reported to council management

STEP 7 – Action Plan

Any actions identified as an outcome of going through Steps 1-6 should be mapped 
against the headings within the Action Plan.  You should also summarise actions taken 
to mitigate against adverse impact.

Actions Target Date Responsible post 
holder & directorate

Involvement & 
consultation

Discussions will 
continue with current 
providers to mitigate 
impact of reduction in 
funding and consider 
level of ongoing 
provision

Subsequent to 
consultation period

Service manager 
(C&F services)

Data collection Continue to collect 
data from short break 
providers as currently 

Every quarter Service manager  (C& 
F) 

Assessing impact Data will be used to 
consider any gaps in 
service provision

Post April 2016 As Above

Procurement & Award contracts with 
remaining funds 

April 2016 As Above

Page 107



partnership under the ‘quick 
quote’ process 
through portal

Monitoring, 
evaluation and 
reviewing

New contracts 
awarded will be 
monitored as part of 
contract 
arrangements

April 2016 As Above

STEP 8 – Sign Off

The policy, strategy or function has been fully assessed in relation to its potential 
effects on equality and all relevant concerns have been addressed.

Assessor

Name: Juliet Penley Job Title: Service Manager Date: 29.12.15

Service Director or Senior Officer (sign off)

Name: Job Title: Date:

Please email a copy of the EIA to Rachel Craggs, Principal Policy Officer (Equality & Diversity: 
Rachel.craggs@westberks.gov.uk

Page 108

mailto:Rachel.craggs@westberks.gov.uk


DRAFT
Note: These Minutes will remain DRAFT until approved at the next meeting of the Committee

COUNCIL
MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON

TUESDAY, 1 MARCH 2016
Councillors Present: Steve Ardagh-Walter, Peter Argyle (Chairman), Pamela Bale, Jeff Beck, 
Dominic Boeck, Graham Bridgman, Paul Bryant, Anthony Chadley, Keith Chopping, 
Jeanette Clifford, Hilary Cole, James Cole, Roger Croft, Lee Dillon, Lynne Doherty, 
Billy Drummond, Adrian Edwards, Sheila Ellison, Marcus Franks, James Fredrickson, 
Dave Goff, Nick Goodes, Manohar Gopal, Paul Hewer, Clive Hooker, Carol Jackson-Doerge, 
Marigold Jaques, Mike Johnston, Graham Jones, Rick Jones, Alan Law, Tony Linden, 
Mollie Lock, Alan Macro, Tim Metcalfe, Ian Morrin, Graham Pask, Anthony Pick, James Podger, 
Garth Simpson, Richard Somner, Anthony Stansfeld, Virginia von Celsing, Quentin Webb (Vice-
Chairman), Emma Webster and Laszlo Zverko

Also Present: John Ashworth (Corporate Director - Environment), Nick Carter (Chief 
Executive), Andy Day (Head of Strategic Support), Martin Dunscombe (Communications 
Manager), Peta Stoddart-Crompton (Public Relations Officer), Andy Walker (Head of Finance) 
and Rachael Wardell (Corporate Director - Communities), Moira Fraser (Democratic and 
Electoral Services Manager), Linda Pye (Principal Policy Officer), Honorary Alderman Andrew 
Rowles and Phil Rumens (Digital Services Manager)

Apologies for inability to attend the meeting: Councillor Howard Bairstow, Councillor Jeremy 
Bartlett, Councillor Dennis Benneyworth, Councillor Richard Crumly, Councillor Rob Denton-
Powell and Councillor Gordon Lundie

PART I
94. Declarations of Interest

The Deputy Monitoring Officer announced that in respect of Agenda Item 16 (Revenue 
Budget 2016/17) all Members, except Councillor Nick Goodes, had completed an 
Application for a Grant of a Dispensation in relation to “any beneficial interest” in land 
within the Authority’s area. The Monitoring Officer had granted the dispensation to allow 
all those Members that applied for a dispensation to speak and vote on these items.
Andy Day also reported that Councillor Lynne Doherty had an interest in Agenda Item 16 
(Revenue Budget 2016/17) by virtue of the fact that Councillor Doherty’s employer was a 
recipient of the Short Breaks Funding. Councillor Doherty had applied to the Governance 
and Ethics Committee for a dispensation to speak and vote on this item. The Committee 
decided that Councillor Doherty could speak and vote on the Phase 1 consultation 
responses as a whole, but could only speak on the short breaks for children and not vote 
on this issue should this situation occur.
The Deputy Monitoring Officer stated that Councillors Marcus Franks and Lee Dillon had 
an interest in Agenda Item 16 (Revenue Budget 2016/17) by virtue of the fact that their 
employer, Sovereign Housing Association, received funding from the Council for its 
Neighbourhood Warden Scheme. Both Councillors had applied to the Governance and 
Ethics Committee for a dispensation to speak and vote on this item. The Committee 
decided that a dispensation should be granted but that the dispensation would permit 
Councillor Franks and Councillor Dillon to speak but not vote on this item.

The Deputy Monitoring Officer also informed Members that Councillor Mike Johnston had 
notified him that he had a disclosable pecuniary interest in Agenda Item 16 (Revenue 

Page 109



COUNCIL - 1 MARCH 2016 - MINUTES

Budget) by virtue of the fact that his wife was employed, on a casual basis, by the Visitor 
Information Centre and he would be leaving the room during the course of discussing and 
voting on this matter.
Andy Day explained that Councillor Jeff Beck was a trustee of the Corn Exchange, 
Readibus and the Volunteer Centre West Berkshire. As he had a fiduciary duty to these 
trusts he determined, in respect of Agenda Item 16 (Revenue Budget), to leave the 
Chamber during the discussion of this item and would not take part in the vote.
The Councillors set out below declared a personal interest in Agenda Item 16 (Revenue 
Budget). 

Councillor Outside Body Other
Bale, Pamela East Downlands Children’s 

Centre Advisory Board 

Governor of Pangbourne 
Primary School 

Regular user of Pangbourne 
Library 

Bryant, Paul Greenham Common Trust

Donnington Trust

Harwell Restoration

Clifford, Jeanette Governor of St 
Bartholomew’s School 

A foundation Governor of the 
St Bartholomew’s Foundation

A member of The Corn 
Exchange

Newbury Town Council link 
Councillor to the West 
Berkshire Museum

Trustee of Mabel Luke 
Charity – almshouses

User of Newbury Library; 
User of Northcroft Leisure 
Centre; 

Attends events at The 
Watermill;

Goff, Dave Foundation Governor at St 
Bartholomew’s School

Jackson-Doerge, Carol Corn Exchange

The Watermill Theatre

Governor of St Marys 
Burghfield

Jaques, Marigold West Berks Citizens Advice 
Bureau 

Jones, Rick WB Mencap – WBC 
representative

 

Page 110



COUNCIL - 1 MARCH 2016 - MINUTES

Councillor Outside Body Other
West Berkshire Disability 
Alliance

Lock, Mollie Burghfield Children's Centre - 
Member on the Board (no 
financial responsibilities)

User of Mortimer Library.  

User of No 75 Bus service.  

Bus Passes. 

Macro, Alan Occasional user of Theale 
Library

Member of Theale Parish 
Council. (Theale Parish 
Council utilises, and helps 
fund, the Neighbourhood 
Warden Service and CCTV 
Service)

Podger, James Governing Body at Mary 
Hare School

Stansfeld, Anthony Police and Crime 
Commissioner

106. Revenue Budget 2016/17 (C2979)
(All Members, except Councillor Nick Goodes, had been granted a dispensation by the 
Monitoring Officer to speak and vote on this item).
(Councillor Lynne Doherty declared a personal and disclosable pecuniary interest in 
Agenda Item 16 by virtue of the fact that Councillor Doherty’s employer was a recipient of 
Short Breaks funding. Following the granting of a dispensation to speak and vote on this 
item, unless short breaks for children were specifically discussed, she determined to 
remain in the meeting and vote on the item).
(Councillors Marcus Franks and Lee Dillon declared a personal and disclosable 
pecuniary interest in Agenda Item 16 by virtue of the fact that their employer, Sovereign 
Housing Association, received funding from the Council for its Neighbourhood Warden 
Scheme. Following the granting of a dispensation to speak but not vote on this item they 
determined to take part in the debate but not vote on this item).
(Councillor Mike Johnston declared a personal and disclosable pecuniary interest in 
Agenda Item16 by virtue of the fact that his wife was employed, on a casual basis, by the 
Visitor Information Centre. As his interest was personal and a disclosable pecuniary 
interest he determined to leave the meeting and took no part in the debate or voting on 
the matter).
(Councillor Jeff Beck declared a personal interest in Agenda Item 16  by virtue of the fact 
that he was a trustee of the Corn Exchange, Readibus and the Volunteer Centre West 
Berkshire. However as he had a fiduciary duty to these trusts he determined to leave the 
Chamber during the discussion of this item and did not take part in the vote).
(Councillors Pamela Bale, Paul Bryant, Jeanette Clifford, Dave Goff, Carol Jackson-
Doerge, Marigold Jaques, Rick Jones, Mollie Lock, Alan Macro, James Podger and 

Page 111



COUNCIL - 1 MARCH 2016 - MINUTES

Anthony Stansfeld declared a personal interest in Agenda Item 16 for the reasons set out 
in the table in Agenda Item 4. As their interest was personal and not a disclosable 
pecuniary interest they determined to take part in the debate and vote on the matter). 
(Councillors Jeff Beck and Mike Johnston left the meeting at 8.29pm and did not return).
The Council considered a report (Agenda Item 16) concerning the 2016/17 revenue 
budget.
The Chairman clarified the rules of debate for this item which had been agreed by both 
Group Leaders prior to the meeting. Both Leaders would be permitted to speak for up to 
ten minutes and their presentations should include the submission of any amendments. 
All Portfolio and Shadow Portfolio Holders would be permitted to speak for up to five 
minutes on the motion and amendments with all other Members being allowed two and a 
half minutes to speak.
The Chairman pointed out that Members would have been lobbied on the revenue 
proposals and this was noted. It was also noted that a significant number of Members 
were also Parish or Town Councillors.
MOTION: Proposed by Councillor Roger Croft and seconded by Councillor Graham 
Jones:
“That the Council:

1) Notes the responses received to each of the 47 public facing savings proposals in 
relation to Phase 1 of the public consultation exercise undertaken on the 2016/17 
budget. 

2) Considers the use of the 2016/17 transitional grant as a means of mitigating the 
impact of some of the Phase 1 proposals and where this is not used, the 
recommendations set out in the Overview and Recommendations template be 
approved.

3) Recommends that those public health grant funded services (marked as “to be 
progressed”) in the Overview and Recommendations template totalling £114,000 
be progressed.

4) Approves the 2016/17 revenue budget requirement for Council Tax setting 
purposes of £82.28 million requiring a Council Tax increase of 1.99%.

5) Applies the 2% ring-fenced adult social care precept.
6) Approves the Fees and Charges as set out in Appendix H and the appropriate 

statutory notices be placed where required.
7) Approves the Special Expenses as set out in Appendix I.
8) Approves the Efficiency Strategy for Use of Capital Receipts as set out in 

Appendix O.
9) Authority be delegated to the Executive, on 24 March 2016, to adjust the Council’s 

budget plans, should the responses to Phase 2 of the public consultation require it 
to do so.

10)Permits the Executive, on 24 March 2016, to propose where the transitional grant 
funding of £1.39m be used. 

11)Notes the following amounts for the year 2016/2017 in accordance with 
regulations made under Section 31B of the Local Government Finance Act 1992, 
as amended (by the Localism Act 2011):-
a) 62,626.13 being the amount calculated by the Council, (Item T) in accordance 

with regulation 31B of the Local Authorities (Calculation of Council Tax Base) 
Regulations 1992 (as amended by the Localism Act 2011), as its council tax 
base for the year. 

Page 112



COUNCIL - 1 MARCH 2016 - MINUTES

b) Part of the Council’s area as per Appendix M being the amounts calculated by 
the Council, in accordance with regulation 6 of the Regulations, as the 
amounts of its council tax base for the year for dwellings in those parts of its 
area to which a Parish precept relates. 

12)Calculates that the Council Tax requirement for the Council’s own purposes for 
2016/2017 (excluding Parish precepts) is £82,281,340.

13)Calculates the following amounts for the year 2016/2017 in accordance with 
Sections 32 to 36 of the Local Government Finance Act 1992, amended by the 
Localism Act 2011:-
a) £292,700,038 being the aggregate of the amounts which the Council estimates 

for the items set out in Section 31A (2)(a) to (f) of the Act taking into account all 
precepts issued to it by Parish Councils. 

b) £206,549,768 being the aggregate of the amounts which the Council estimates 
for the items set out in Section 31A(3)(a) to (d) of the Act. 

c) £86,150,270 being the amount by which the aggregate at 13(a) above, 
exceeds the aggregate at 13(b) above, calculated by the Council, in 
accordance with Section 31A(4) of the Act, as its Council Tax requirement for 
the year (Item R).

d) £1375.63 being the amount at 13(c) above (Item R), all divided by 11 (a) above 
(Item T), calculated by the Council, in accordance with Section 31B of the Act, 
as the ‘basic amount of its Council Tax for the year (including Parish precepts).

e) £3,868,930 being the aggregate amount of all special items (parish precepts) 
referred to in Section 34(1) of the Act (as per Appendix M).

f) £1313.85 being the amount at 13(d) above less the result given by dividing the 
amount at 13(e) above by the amount at 11(a) above, calculated by the 
Council, in accordance with Section 34(2) of the Act, as the basic amount of its 
council tax for the year for dwellings in those parts of its area to which no 
special items relate. 

14)Notes that for the year 2016/2017 the Police and Crime Commissioner for Thames 
Valley & the Royal Berkshire Fire and Rescue Service have issued precepts to the 
Council in accordance with Section 40 of the Local Government Finance Act 1992 
for each category of dwellings in the Councils area as indicated in Appendix M.

15)In accordance with Sections 30 and 36 of the Local Government Finance Act 
1992, sets the aggregate amounts shown in the tables in Appendix M as the 
amounts of Council Tax for 2016/2017 for each part of its area and for each of the 
categories of dwellings.”

Councillor Croft in introducing the report noted that this was West Berkshire Council’s 
most challenging budget ever as the principle source of government funding had been 
cut by the Government by 44% in 2016/17. This meant that the savings requirement for 
the Council had increased from £10.8 million to £18 million since December 2015. The 
authority however had a duty to set a balanced budget.
As a consequence Members were required to make difficult decisions as the Council was 
unable to continue to provide the existing levels of service. The Council and its residents 
would have to identify different models for delivering services including supporting Parish 
and Town Councils and community organisations to take on some of the responsibility for 
delivering services if they were valued by local communities.
Councillor Croft explained that the Council had deliberately used its reserves. They were 
currently at a level of around one month’s revenue which could be a critical position if an 
emergency situation, such as flooding should occur.

Page 113



COUNCIL - 1 MARCH 2016 - MINUTES

Executive Members and Officers had been working hard to identify savings proposals 
which would still allow the authority to set a balanced budget. Councillor Croft thanked 
them and all the residents that had responded to Phase 1 and Phase 2 of the public 
consultations. He reminded members of the public that the Phase 2 consultation would 
close on 7 March 2016. Councillor Croft acknowledged the impact some of these savings 
could have on residents’ lives.
Members had lobbied Ministers on their proposed cut to the Revenue Support Grant and 
he thanked West Berkshire’s three Members of Parliament for their support in lobbying 
the Secretary of State. As a result of this, the Council had secured transition funding of 
£1.4m for each of the next two years. This funding would be used to help others to 
develop new models of delivery. The Executive had agreed that all transitional funding 
would be used to support this work.
Councillor Croft stated that the budget comprised three strands. The first of these sought 
to increase revenue. This would be achieved by raising Council Tax by 1.99%. In 
addition, the Chancellor of the Exchequer had granted the ability to raise an additional 
2% precept for adult social care responsibilities which the authority would be taking up. 
This would result in a total increase of 3.99% in Council Tax.
The Leader acknowledged that increasing Council Tax would impact on all residents, 
especially the low paid, the vulnerable and those on fixed incomes. However, faced with 
the level of savings required this increase was unavoidable. 
In addition the Executive was also recommending an increase to other fees and charges 
such as car parking fees. This increase in revenue proposals would generate 
approximately £5m.
The second strand of the budget was the internal efficiencies that the Council would be 
making whilst still meeting its statutory duties. Just over £5m of savings had been 
identified and regrettably this would result in over 100 jobs being lost in 2016/17. Other 
proposals included sharing more services with other local authorities, looking at different 
models of delivery, working with partners, including Parish and Town Councils, and 
working with the community and community organisations.  
The third strand of the budget introduced changes to frontline services. The Council had 
a statutory duty to provide certain services and any savings would have to come from 
discretionary areas. These proposals would generate £8m of savings. Local 
organisations had already started to identify ways of reducing the impact of some of the 
cuts. 
The transition grant would be used to help mitigate some of the effects of the savings the 
Council was being forced to make. As the grant would only be available for two years it 
would be used to fund those services which the residents said that they valued the most. 
Community groups would have to work together to transform those services ensuring that 
they would be sustainable without Council funding going forward.
Councillor Croft stated that before moving on to the detail of the transition funding, he 
would like to propose the first of two amendments. The first amendment proposed that 
the Phase 2 public facing savings proposals be determined by a special meeting of 
Council on 24 March 2016 and not the Executive as recommended in the report.  
If approved the Executive would still meet on the 24 March 2016 and make appropriate 
recommendations to Council on the use of the remaining transition funding.  
He also gave notice of his second amendment that proposed four service areas where 
the Executive recommended some of the £1.4m transition funding should be spent. As 
the Phase 2 consultation would close on 7 March 2016 it would be inappropriate to make 

Page 114



COUNCIL - 1 MARCH 2016 - MINUTES

any comment or decision on those proposals until the consultation closed and the results 
had been analysed.  
Councillor Croft stated that it was with a heavy heart that he put forward the proposals.
AMENDMENT 1: Proposed by Councillor Roger Croft and seconded by Councillor Alan 
Macro:
 “That recommendation (9) be replaced with the following:
‘That the Executive, on 24 March 2016, make appropriate recommendations to a special 
meeting of Council on 24 March 2016, to adjust the Council’s budget plans should the 
responses to Phase 2 of the public consultation require it to do so’.
The Amendment was put to the vote and declared CARRIED.
AMENDMENT 2: Proposed by Councillor Roger Croft and seconded by Councillor 
Graham Jones:
“That recommendation (2) be approved and adopted subject to Council agreeing to 
allocate transition funding, as set out below, to the following Phase 1 public consultation 
areas of service:

 Short Breaks for Children - £170,000
 Two Saints floating support service and Step by Step Lodgings service - £100,000
 Empowering West Berkshire - £25,000
 Adult Social Care Learning Disability Clients - £100,000”

Councillor Lee Dillon commented that this amendment was similar to one which the 
Liberal Democrats had tabled and subsequently changed which included a proposal to 
support the important Short Break service. 
The Amendment was put to the vote and declared CARRIED.
Discussion then returned to the substantive motion. Councillor Alan Macro stated that 
there was no doubt that the Council had been impacted negatively by the timing and 
severity of the cuts in the Revenue Support Grant. He stated that in addition to the 
reduction in the Revenue Support Grant the Government was also decreasing the 
Dedicated Schools Grant. 
He was of the opinion that the Council needed to work with other Councils to achieve 
better deals in terms of procurement, seek to achieve economies of scale for large 
contracts and that all budgets should be subjected to a zero based budgeting approach. 
He also suggested that alternative service delivery options should be looked at. For 
example,  he suggested that a commercial partner should be sought to help run Shaw 
House and that the authority should be seeking to share more back office functions and 
possibly accommodation with other authorities and charities. He also felt that more 
partnership work should be undertaken with town and parish councils. 
(Councillor James Podger left the meeting at 8.45pm and returned at 8.47pm)
Councillor Macro commented that libraries were valued by residents and that every effort 
should be made to save these valued services. Councillor Macro welcomed the fact that 
all the transitional funding would be used and asked for a commitment that if the Council 
received any funding from the Care Act that it too would be used to reverse some of the 
proposed cuts.
AMENDMENT 3: Proposed by Councillor Alan Macro and seconded by Councillor Lee 
Dillon:

Page 115



COUNCIL - 1 MARCH 2016 - MINUTES

“That recommendation (2) be approved and adopted subject to Council agreeing to 
allocate transition funding, as set out below, to the following Phase 1 public consultation 
areas of service
£132,500 to be used to delay the implementation of the cuts to home-to-school transport 
until the start of the new school year. This is to allow the following:

 The works required to improve the walking routes to be completed
 Give parents time to change their family arrangements to allow them to 

accompany or drive their children to school
 Allow parents time to budget for the increase in farepayer fares

£21,000 to delay implementation of the cut of the school crossing patrol service for one 
year to allow schools and communities to find other ways to fund this valued service.”
Councillor Macro reiterated his Group’s support for using £170k of the transitional funding 
to support the short breaks service.  
Cuts to Home to School Transport would mean more children would have to be driven or 
accompanied to school which could prove to be very problematic for parents. His Group 
were therefore proposing to use £132,500 to delay the implementation of these cuts until 
the start of the new academic year. This would allow time for families to put 
arrangements in place to deal with the removal of these services. It would also allow time 
to make the routes safe.
Councillor Macro also informed Council that his Group were proposing to use £21k of the 
transition funding towards school crossing patrollers who were greatly valued by pupils 
and their parents. It was only a small amount of funding in comparison to the total 
budget.
Council Macro stated, that based on advice received, he had withdrawn the proposals 
relating to home to school transport originally set out in the tabled amendment.
Councillor Macro stated that if the transitional funding was used it would give residents 
the opportunity to adjust to the cuts.
Councillor Dominic Boeck stated if the budget was approved then discretionary home to 
school transport provided to some families would be removed. Some families would then 
be asked to pay more for seats on buses than they currently did. This proposal generated 
a large number of consultation responses with children’s safety being a common theme. 
The Council had listened carefully to parents and as a result some changes had already 
been made to some of the routes. Independent advice had been sought on the Mortimer 
to Willink route assessment and the independent advisor had supported the Council’s 
original assessment. Councillor Boeck also noted that Thames Valley Police had not 
declared any of the routes as being unsafe. 
To assist parents of pupils using Mortimer to Willink, Bucklebury to Kennet and 
Aldermaston Wharf to Aldermaston Primary School routes they would be offered priority 
fare paying seats on buses at standard rates and payments could be made via eight 
separate payments spread across the year. 
As parents would be asked to take more responsibility of their children to and from school 
it would not be reasonable to fund school crossing patrollers. Given the level of savings 
required in Phase 2 it would be better not to spend the money suggested in amendment 
3 until the outcome of the consultation was known.
Councillor Hilary Cole stated that school crossing patrols were not a universal service 
and only benefitted pupils at certain schools. It would therefore not be unreasonable to 

Page 116



COUNCIL - 1 MARCH 2016 - MINUTES

ask those schools to fund the service or to seek sponsorship for it. It was unfair to ask 
other residents to subsidise these schools.
Councillor Graham Jones thanked Councillor Macro for removing the reference to home 
to school transport from his original amendment as its inclusion could have fettered 
Members discretion when they were considering the Phase 2 savings. He reiterated 
Councillor Boeck’s comment that if the transition funding was spent now there would not 
be the opportunity to spend it on the Phase 2 proposals and therefore he was unable to 
support the amendment. 
Councillor Mollie Lock noted that the standard fare referred to by Councillor Boeck would 
cost parents around £640 per annum which was a significant increase on the £250 they 
were currently required to pay. She was also concerned that the earliest date on which 
the bus service could be stopped was the 18 April 2016 and Rights of Way Officers had 
confirmed that it would take 55 days (mid June) to upgrade the Mortimer to Willink route. 
Councillor Boeck confirmed that the standard rate bus seat would cost £684.
Councillor Lee Dillon commented that the second amendment allowed some of the 
transition funding to be spent and therefore he felt that it was unfair to turn down the 
amendments set out in amendment 3. The Liberal Democrat amendment set out clearly 
how the transitional arrangements could be achieved to protect residents and were 
genuine attempts to transition services.
Councillor Macro responded to Councillor Cole’s comments by stating that not all schools 
were adjacent to busy roads. He reminded Members that schools were also faced with 
budget problems given the reduction in the Dedicated Schools Grant.  
Councillor Croft stated that around £400k of the transitional funding had been allocated 
and around £1m had deliberately been retained in order to fully consider the outcomes of 
the second consultation.
In accordance with Procedure Rule 4.17.3 it was requisitioned that the voting on 
Amendment 3 be recorded. The names of those Members voting for, against and 
abstaining were read to the Council as follows:
FOR the Amendment
Billy Drummond, Mollie Lock, Alan Macro
AGAINST the Amendment
Steve Ardagh-Walter, Peter Argyle, Pamela Bale,  Dominic Boeck, Graham Bridgman, 
Paul Bryant, Anthony Chadley, Keith Chopping, Jeanette Clifford, Hilary Cole, 
James Cole, Roger Croft, Lynne Doherty, Adrian Edwards, Sheila Ellison, 
James Fredrickson, Dave Goff, Manohar Gopal, Clive Hooker, Carol Jackson-Doerge, 
Marigold Jaques, Graham Jones, Rick Jones, Alan Law, Tony Linden, Ian Morrin, 
Anthony Pick, James Podger, Garth Simpson, Richard Somner, Anthony Stansfeld, 
Virginia von Celsing,  Quentin Webb, Emma Webster and Laszlo Zverko
ABSTENTIONS
Paul Hewer, Tim Metcalfe, Graham Pask
Councillors Lee Dillon, Marcus Franks and Nick Goodes did not vote. Councillors Jeff 
beck and Mike Johnston had left the meeting given that they had declared interests.
The Amended Motion was put to the vote and declared LOST.
Members then returned to the Substantive Motion. Councillor Alan Law stated that he 
had some empathy with residents’ frustration at having services removed that had 

Page 117



COUNCIL - 1 MARCH 2016 - MINUTES

seemed to be in place forever. He outlined the changes that had had a significant impact 
on funding. 
He noted that there had been changes to population demographics. The population was 
ageing and advances in medical technology were also prolonging people’s lifespan often 
at very high costs for treatment and support, and there had been significant changes in 
expectations around safeguarding. As an illustration in 2001 the Council had spent 
£21.9m (31%) on social services and by 2016 this had risen to £56.3m (46%). 
Members were faced with difficult choices between, for example, caring for the most 
vulnerable residents versus keeping libraries open which were used widely by residents. 
He understood that residents would not agree with all the proposals in the budget but he 
hoped that they had gained some understanding of the backdrop and difficulties faced 
following the debate at the meeting. 
Councillor Lynne Doherty stated that as the Portfolio Holder for Children and Young 
People she had a duty to protect children who were at risk of abuse or neglect. She was 
however still able to support this budget. She had a statutory obligation to minimise the 
impact on this vulnerable group. In her opinion the budget delivered on key areas in her 
Portfolio.
(Councillor Rick Jones left at 9.14pm and returned at 9.16pm) 
The Council’s core frontline social care teams and the work they were doing to implement 
the Ofsted Improvement Plan had been protected. The Disabled Children’s Team were 
able to continue their transition work with families with regard to education, health and 
care plans. The Family Resource Team could continue their targeted work with families 
in need. Support could continue to be offered to care leavers, children and young people 
at risk of substance misuse and the successful Turnaround Families Programme would 
continue. There was also funding still available for innovative projects such as the Health 
Academy.
Areas of disinvestment in this area included prevention and early intervention. Although 
she supported early help and universal provision Councillor Doherty appreciated that it 
was difficult to calculate the impact this support had. This area of work was also not the 
sole responsibility of the local authority and by working effectively with partners and 
communities she was sure that the impact of these savings could be mitigated against.
Councillor Doherty had attended the Save our Services meeting and she was pleased to 
see the willingness to look for solutions to allow some discretionary services to continue. 
The children that were supported within her service often did not have vociferous parents 
to champion their needs. The Council had listened to the views raised during Phase 1 
and recognised, in particular, the importance of providing short breaks for parents of 
children with disabilities. She emphasised that it was never the intention to stop providing 
this service but there was a need to rationalise provision. To reach all residents the 
Council would have to look at alternative solutions by working with new and existing 
partners. She was pleased to support the budget, with the amendments, as it provided an 
effective, available and value for money Children’s Service in West Berkshire.
Councillor Hilary Cole had never envisaged having to present savings like these to 
Council. She noted that many of the services in Adult Social Care were statutory. 
Councillor Cole commented that the authority had been let down by the Department of 
Health over funding for the Care Act. 
The transformation programme, which would ensure services were delivered in a 
different way, and which was being implemented in Adult Social Care, would generate 
around £800k in savings. She too was pleased to see that £100k of the transition funding 
would be spent on the Two Saints floating support service and Step by Step lodging 

Page 118



COUNCIL - 1 MARCH 2016 - MINUTES

service and an additional £100k had been allocated to the Adult Social Care Disability 
Clients programme. This funding would allow the organisations and Officers’ time to 
come up with new ways to deliver services to the most vulnerable in the community. 
Within Culture and Countryside Phase 1 savings included closing the Visitor Information 
Centre and public conveniences in the Wharf area in Newbury. She was disappointed 
that neither the Newbury BID nor the Town Council had been able to commit to take 
these on. She was pleased that Kintbury residents had been able to come up with a 
proposal to take over the running of the Kintbury Jubilee Leisure Centre. 
Councillor Hilary Cole thanked Officers for all the work they had undertaken and were still 
undertaking to plug the funding gap that had arisen since Christmas 2015. These 
proposals were still being consulted on and she accepted that none of these savings 
were palatable as they pertained to services that residents valued the most. 
(Councillor Manohar Gopal left the meeting at 9.24pm and returned at 9.27pm)
Councillor Cole stated that she derived no pleasure in decreasing library provision down 
to one library. She had previously stated that she had no intention of closing the libraries 
but circumstances had changed so dramatically that the decision had had to be revisited. 
She was well aware of the effect these decisions would have on the residents of the 
district and these decisions had not been taken lightly. Councillor Cole commented that 
there had been a lot of soul searching about these proposals. Meetings with various 
organisations to consider ways of mitigating the impact were ongoing.
Councillor Cole paid tribute to the Officers for the selfless way they had faced these 
difficult proposals.
Councillor Garth Simpson advised that the reductions to the highways budget affected 
maintenance budgets and operational transport budgets. Although it was not a popular 
option it had been necessary to increase car parking charges across the district. This 
income would be used to protect front line services. The LED replacement street lighting 
programme had also generated significant revenue savings (circa £1m) which would also 
be used to protect some of the frontline services. He commended the difficult budget to 
Members.
Councillor James Fredrickson stated that following the December 2015 announcement 
the Executive had met and agreed to a three phased approach to the budget. The first 
would be to fight for transitionary funding, the second would be to consult on how any 
funding awarded could be used (even if the consultation period had to be reduced to 
three weeks) and thirdly that all the transition funding awarded would be used to assist 
frontline services.
In terms of the consultation process the vast majority of the services the Council provided 
were statutory and there were therefore not that many options available in terms of 
discretionary spending. The budget had to be set against a backdrop of changing 
demographics and an ageing population. The Council still, however, had a legal duty to 
set a balanced budget. The ramifications of not doing so were severe and could result in 
the authority being declared bankrupt or being taken over by another authority for 
statutory services. There were no easy alternatives for the Council. He assured 
Councillor Macro that as Portfolio Holder for Human Resources he had gone through 
their budgets line by line.
Councillor Fredrickson commented that this had been a very painful process for Officers 
and he thanked them for their professionalism, care and dedication in putting together the 
savings proposals at great speed whilst striving to mitigate the impact the savings would 
have.

Page 119



COUNCIL - 1 MARCH 2016 - MINUTES

Councillor Dominic Boeck commented that in continuing to provide care for the most 
vulnerable residents it had become necessary to remove some of the discretionary 
services the Council provided or to deliver them in a different way. The Council would 
continue to provide services it was legally required to provide.
He was aware that the services provided by Children’s Centres were important and 
highly regarded by young families. These services would still be provided albeit in a 
different way. The district would be divided into three family and wellbeing areas. The 
Council would rationalise the number of buildings it used to provide these services and 
would also strive to make use of existing community buildings.
Councillor Boeck commented that there would be further proposals in Phase 2 of the 
savings proposals and he urged all residents affected to respond and to try and identify 
new ways of delivering services.
Councillor Marcus Franks commented that this was a difficult process which was 
exacerbated by the short timescales imposed on the Council. None of the decisions 
would be taken lightly. Members needed to make a balanced decision between services 
provided for the district’s most vulnerable residents and those enjoyed by the wider 
population. 
The transitional funding was the result of a lot of hard work on behalf of the local 
Members of Parliament and he thanked them for that. He urged residents to continue to 
take part in the Phase 2 consultation and to come forward with community led solutions. 
Discussions were also ongoing with neighbouring authorities about cross border charging 
for waste recycling services. He supported the balanced budget in challenging times.
Councillor Lee Dillon commented that he was disappointed not to be able to vote but that 
if he was able to do so he would be voting against the proposals. He was concerned 
about the scale of the savings proposals and the impact they would have on residents. 
He was disappointed that the Liberal Democrat amendment had been lost as it would 
have allowed the Council and communities time to come up with solutions in the areas 
identified in the amendment. He felt that despite the size of the cuts the Council should 
have been in a position to do better.
He was of the opinion that the Council lacked innovation in terms of remodelling services 
and income generation. He noted that other authorities had set up trading companies, 
sold services, invested in property, set up joint ventures, were selling energy and 
expertise etc because they had foreseen the difficult financial future for local councils.
He would be asking the Overview and Scrutiny Management Commission to set up a 
task group to look into income generation initiatives.
Councillor Graham Jones stated that the Council was and had, for some considerable 
time, been looking at income generation, rationalising back office functions and zero 
based budgeting. The issues being experienced by West Berkshire Council were not 
unique and were replicated across the country. 
Councillor Jones stated that it was with regret that the Council would not be able to 
continue to provide all the services it previously had. The Council and its community 
would have to find new ways of delivering services whether that be by creating trusts, 
empowering town and parish councils or by Members working with their communities to 
find alternative solutions.
Councillor Emma Webster requested that in accordance with paragraph 4.9.12 (v) of the 
Constitution the meeting be permitted to go on until 10.30pm if required. The Council 
voted in favour of this proposal.

Page 120



COUNCIL - 1 MARCH 2016 - MINUTES

Councillor Roger Croft noted that this budget also included the Council’s revised fees and 
charges for the forthcoming financial year. Councillor Croft stated that local government 
had to change and at a much faster rate. Members, alongside the district’s MPs, would 
continue to lobby Central Government for better funding and the retention of business 
rates. He commended the budget to Members subject to the inclusion of the agreed 
amendments.
Prior to the vote being taken the Monitoring Officer announced that the Local Authorities 
(Standing Orders) (England) (Amendment) Regulations 2014 (SI 2014/165) (2014 
Regulations) came into came into effect on the 25 February 2014 and as a consequence 
the Council was required to record the names of Members voting for and against the 
budget proposals.
FOR the Substantive-Motion 
Steve Ardagh-Walter, Peter Argyle, Pamela Bale, Dominic Boeck, Graham Bridgman, 
Paul Bryant, Anthony Chadley, Keith Chopping, Jeanette Clifford, Hilary Cole, 
James Cole, Roger Croft, Lynne Doherty, Adrian Edwards, Sheila Ellison, 
James Fredrickson, Dave Goff, Manohar Gopal, Paul Hewer, Clive Hooker, 
Carol Jackson-Doerge, Marigold Jaques, Graham Jones, Rick Jones, Alan Law, Tony 
Linden, Tim Metcalfe, Ian Morrin, Graham Pask, Anthony Pick, James Podger, 
Garth Simpson, Richard Somner, Anthony Stansfeld, Virginia von Celsing, 
Quentin Webb, Emma Webster and Laszlo Zverko
AGAINST the Substantive-Motion 
Billy Drummond and Alan Macro
ABSTAINED
Mollie Lock
Councillors Lee Dillon, Marcus Franks and Nick Goodes did not vote.  Councillors Jeff 
Beck and Mike Johnston had left the meeting given that they had declared interests.

(The meeting commenced at 6.30pm and closed at 9.55pm)

CHAIRMAN …………………………………………….
Date of Signature …………………………………………….

Page 121



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 122



Page 123



Page 124



Page 125



Page 126



Page 127



Page 128



Page 129



Page 130



Page 131



Page 132



Page 133



Page 134



Page 135



Page 136



Page 137



Page 138



Page 139



Page 140



Page 141



Page 142



Page 143



Page 144



Page 145



Page 146



Page 147



Page 148



Page 149



Page 150



Page 151



Page 152



Page 153



Page 154



Page 155



Page 156



Page 157



Page 158



Page 159



Page 160



Page 161



Page 162



Page 163



Page 164


	Agenda
	3. Short Breaks for Disabled Children (Urgent Item)
	Appendix A - Supporting Information
	Appendix Bi (1)
	Appendix Bi (2)
	Appendix Bii (1)
	Appendix Bii (2)
	Appendix Bii (3)
	Appendix Biii(a) - OaR - Short Breaks for Disabled Children
	Appendix Biii(b) SoR - Short Breaks for Disabled Children 160108
	Appendix Biii(c) Verbatim - Short Breaks for Disabled Children ANON
	Appendix Biv - 1
	Appendix Biv - 2 Stage 2 EIA Short Breaks for  Disabled Children 211215
	Appendix Bv
	Appendix C
	Appendix D


